
2023

This SCBaptist resource is made possible through the Cooperative Program
giving of South Carolina Baptist churches.

scbaptist.org | @scbaptist

We help each church
advance  the Great Commission 

together.

Convention
Annual

2023

This SCBaptist resource is made possible through the Cooperative Program
giving of South Carolina Baptist churches.

scbaptist.org | @scbaptist

We help each church
advance  the Great Commission 

together.

Convention
Annual



1 2023 Annual

South Carolina Baptist Convention 
2023 Annual 

 
 
 
 
 

Reports and Minutes of the 
 

203rd Annual Meeting 
 

Shandon Baptist Church 
Columbia, South Carolina - November 13 – 14, 2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Next Annual Meeting 
 
 

Date ............................................................ November 11 – 12, 2024 
Place ................................Columbia First Baptist Church, Columbia 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

©2024 South Carolina Baptist Convention. No portion of this book may be reproduced without permission. 
Commercial, political, or fund-raising use of the information contained herein is strictly prohibited. 



2 2023 Annual

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Officers of the Convention...............................................................................................................................4
Boards and Committees of the Convention.....................................................................................................5
Convention Staff............................................................................................................................................18
Proceedings....................................................................................................................................................22
Historical Table..............................................................................................................................................57
Ministers Serving in South Carolina..............................................................................................................63
Persons Ordained During 2023 Associational Year.....................................................................................131
Persons Licensed During 2023 Associational Year......................................................................................132
Deceased Ministers......................................................................................................................................133
New Churches and Missions........................................................................................................................134
Associational Directory...............................................................................................................................136
Alphabetical Listing of Churches................................................................................................................139
Statistical Summary and Tables...................................................................................................................158
Summary Financial Reports.........................................................................................................................203
Institutions of the Convention......................................................................................................................248
Index............................................................................................................................................................250
Map..............................................................................................................................................................251
Book of Reports...........................................................................................................................................252

Editorial Team
Coordinating Editor........................................................................................................................ Jan Berrian
Executive Editor...........................................................................................................................Bryan Holley
Association Information.............................................................................................................Allison Bardin
Audits....................................................................................................................Kristy Adams/Bryan Holley
Convention Staff........................................................................................................................... Lee Douglas
Proceedings....................................................................................................................................Janet Clonts



3 2023 Annual

Convention Officers, 
Boards,

Committees & Staff



4

Boards & Committees

2023 Annual

Albert Allen
President

Brian Sherwood
Registration Secretary

Wes Church 
President-Elect

Ryan Goodroe
Vice President

Tony Wolfe
Executive Director-Treasurer

 South Carolina Baptist Convention
Officers – 2023



5

Boards & Committees

2023 Annual

 

#Filling an Unexpired Term 
*Laity 
 

BOARDS AND COMMITTEES 
SOUTH CAROLINA BAPTIST CONVENTION 

 
THE EXECUTIVE BOARD 

 
2023 OFFICERS 

 
Steve Hogg 

Chair 
 

Ian Geimer 
Vice-Chair 

 
Roland Dry 
Secretary 

 
MEMBERS 

(Name Church, Association) 
 

 
 
TERMS EXPIRE IN DECEMBER 2023 
Allen, Albert Newberry First, Reedy River (Convention President) 
Coker, Tim Central, Welsh Neck 
Cutchins, Stephen North Augusta First, Aiken 
Dry, Sr., Roland Inspiration, York 
*Flowe, Karen Wassamassaw, Screven 
Geimer, Ian Kingstree First, Williamsburg 
*Hatchette, Carolyn Bethel, North Spartan 
Hogg, Steve  First Baptist of Rock Hill, York 
Leonhardt, Charles Leesville First, Lexington 
Norris, Ronnie Cudd Memorial, Spartanburg County 
Robinson, Barry Lebanon, Saluda 
Sprouse, Chuck Ninety Six First, Lakelands 
Whaley, Jeff Hopewell, Beaverdam 
 
 
TERMS EXPIRE IN DECEMBER 2024 
Bray, Wayne Simpsonville First, Greenville 
Castillo, Gregorio La Reunion/The Gathering, Spartanburg County 
*Catoe, Nathan Hagood Avenue, Barnwell-Bamberg 
Caudell, Kyle Union, Saluda 
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*Crouch, Mary Ann Bellview, Woodruff 
Meyer, John Warren Belvedere, Aiken 
Mize, Doug Greer First, Three Rivers 
*Riser, Caleb Shandon, Columbia Metro 
*Sanders, Martha Edgefield First, Edgefield 
*Scarbrough, Linda Brushy Creek, Greenville 
*Tobias, Talmadge Grace, Santee 
 
 
TERMS EXPIRE IN DECEMBER 2025 
Baldwin, Larry Hillcrest, Palmetto 
Cannon, Stephen Millbrook, Aiken (Member-at-Large) 
*Crompton, Tammy Mt. Pisgah, Piedmont 
Fowler, Terry Providence, Chesterfield 
*Gilmore, Donna Roebuck, Spartanburg County 
Jones, Darren Shell Point, Savannah River 
McAlister, Owen New Holland, Edisto 
Murray, David Cornerstone, Southeast 
*Quigley, Marc Camden First, Kershaw 
*Sieberhagen, Donna Kittiwake, Lexington 
Stamper, Henry Batesburg First, Ridge 
*Stokes, Britt Grace on the Ashley, Charleston 
*Suttles, Michael Hoffmeyer Road, Florence 
Yelton, Bryan New Pleasant, Broad River 
 
 
TERMS EXPIRE IN DECEMBER 2026 
Goudelock, John Living Water, Waccamaw 
Johnson, Todd  
Shorter, Keith Mt. Airy, Piedmont (Member-at-Large) 
*Williams, Donna Union, Marion 
 
 
EX OFFICIO MEMBERS OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD SERVING ONE YEAR 
Church, Wes Columbia First, Columbia Metro; Convention President-Elect 
*Burns, Cindy Jones Avenue, Piedmont; WMU President 
Sherwood, Brian Darlington First, Welsh Neck; Registration Secretary 
Goodroe, Ryan Utica, Beaverdam; Vice President  
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#Filling an Unexpired Term 
*Laity 
 

STANDING COMMITTEES OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD 
 
 

BUDGET, FINANCE, & AUDIT COMMITTEE 
Talmadge Tobias 

Chair 
Chuck Sprouse 

Vice-Chair 
 
*Flowe, Karen   2023   
Geimer, Ian   2023   
Goudelock, John  2026   
*Hatchette, Carolyn  2023   
*Quigley, Marc  2025  
   

*Riser, Caleb   2024 
Sprouse, Chuck  2023 
*Stokes, Britt   2025 
*Tobias, Talmadge 2024 

    
      
   

KINGDOM ADVANCEMENT COMMITTEE 
Doug Mize 

Chair 
Jeff Whaley 
Vice-Chair 

 
Allen, Albert   2023 
*Burns, Cindy   2021 
Church, Wes   2023 
*Crompton, Tammy  2025 
*Crouch, Mary Ann  2024 
Dry, Sr., Roland  2023 
Goodroe, Ryan  2023 
Hogg, Steve   2023 
Jones, Darren   2025 
McAlister, Owen  2025 

Mize, Doug   2024 
Norris, Ronnie   2023 
Robinson, Barry  2023 
*Scarbrough, Linda  2024 
Sherwood, Brian  2023 
Shorter, Keith   2026 
*Sieberhagen, Donna  2025 
*Suttles, Michael  2025 
Whaley, Jeff   2023 
Williams, Donna  2026 
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OPERATIONS COMMITTEE 
 

Tim Coker 
Chair 

Nathan Catoe 
Vice-Chair 

 
Baldwin, Larry   2025 
*Catoe, Nathan  2024  
Coker, Tim   2023 
Johnson, Todd   2026  

Leonhardt, Charles  2023 
Meyer, John   2024 
*Sanders, Martha  2024  
Yelton, Bryan   2025

 
PRIORITY ADVANCEMENT COMMITTEE 

Stephen Cutchins 
Chair 

Stephen Cannon 
Vice-Chair 

  
Bray, Wayne   2024 
Cannon, Stephen  2025 
Castillo, Gregorio  2024 
Caudell, Kyle   2024 
Cutchins, Stephen  2023 

Fowler, Terry   2025 
*Gilmore, Donna  2025 
Murray, David   2025 
Stamper, Henry  2025
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2023 CONVENTION OFFICERS & COMMITTEES 
 

OFFICERS 
 

Albert Allen 
President 

 
Wes Church 

President-Elect 
 

Ryan Goodroe 
Vice President 

 
Brian Sherwood 

Registration Secretary 
 
 

ALL CONVENTION COMMITTEES 
(Name Church, Association) 

 
 

                                                                 COMMITTEE ON COMMITTEES 
                               (Appointed by Convention President; One-Year Term) 

 Cory Horton  
Chair 

Chuck Sprouse 
Vice-Chair 

 
ALL TERMS EXPIRE IN DECEMBER 2023 
Beacham, Phillip Wise Drive, Santee 
Caudell, Kyle North Anderson, Saluda 
Corder, Terry Mt. Pisgah, Kershaw 
Crawford, Michael Florence First, Florence 
Dye, Nathan Cowpens First, Spartanburg Network 
Frederick, Ken Blackville First, Barnwell-Bamberg 
Gillen, Pat Simpsonville First, Greenville 
Horton, Cory Brushy Creek, Greenville 
McCrary, Clark St. Matthews First, Orangeburg-Calhoun 
McMinn, Mike Whitefield, Palmetto 
*Richardson, Anna Fountain Inn First, Greenville 
Silva, Arnaldo Iglesia Refugio, Greenville 
Spires, Chris Murrells Inlet First, Waccamaw 
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*Laity 
 

Sprouse, Chuck Ninety Six First, Lakelands 
Wood, Dale Memorial, Screven 

 
 

STANDING COMMITTEES OF THE CONVENTION 
 
 

BYLAWS COMMITTEE 
(Elected by Convention Messengers; Three-Year Term) 

Ryan Goodroe 
Chair 

Joel Ainsworth 
Vice-Chair 

 
Ainsworth, Joel Church at Cane Bay, Screven 2024 
#Creech, Jeremy Barnwell First, Barnwell-Bamberg 2024 
Goodroe, Ryan Utica, Beaverdam   2023 
Henderson, Brian Jackson First, Aiken  2025 
Ladd, Benji Brushy Creek, Greenville  2025 
Wallace, Charlie Moncks Corner First, Screven 2023 
Willard, Joe Black Creek, Welsh Neck  2023 
Winn, Ben Harmony, Chester   2024 

 
 

CHRISTIAN LIFE & PUBLIC AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 
(Elected by Convention Messengers; Three-Year Term) 

Mark Krieger 
Chair 

Daniel McGaha 
Vice-Chair 

 
*Connelly, Chad Newberry First, Reedy River 2023 
Elliott, Rod Cheraw First, Chesterfield  2025 
Hill, Eddie Fellowship of Aynor, Waccamaw 2024 
Krieger, Mark Mt. Bethel, Saluda   2025 
McGaha, Daniel Rice Memorial, Lakelands  2025 
Sands, Alex Kingdom Life, Greenville  2025 
*Seckinger, Terrye East Cooper, Charleston 2023 
Shelley, Tommy Crossway, Waccamaw  2024 
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ENROLLMENT AND CREDENTIALS COMMITTEE 
(Elected by Convention Messengers; One-Year Term) 

Brian Sherwood 
Chair 

Sara Helmadollar 
Vice-Chair 

 
ALL TERMS EXPIRE IN DECEMBER 2023 
Banks, Dennis Shandon, Columbia Metro  2023  
*Dickinson, Stacey Shandon, Columbia Metro 2023 
Harmon, Mike Shandon, Columbia Metro  2023 
*Helmadollar, Sara Shandon, Columbia Metro 2023 
*Osepchuk, Conor Shandon, Columbia Metro 2023 
Sherwood, Brian Darlington First, Welsh Neck 2023 
*Turner, Dawn Shandon, Columbia Metro  2023 

 
 

HISTORY COMMITTEE 
(Elected by Convention Messengers; Three-Year Term) 

Paul Noe 
Chair 

Greg Nix 
Vice-Chair 

 
Barkley, H. E. Columbia First, Columbia Metro 2023 
*Bryan, Carol Little Stevens Creek, Edgefield 2023 
Johnson, Walter Berea First, Three Rivers  2025 
Nix, Greg Calvary, Lakelands   2025 
Noe, Paul Sweetwater, Aiken   2024 

 
 

NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE 
(Elected by Convention Messengers; Three-Year Term) 

Lisa Willard 
Chair 

Clay Smith 
Vice-Chair 

 
Barton, David Creekside, Screven   2023 
Corder, Terry Mt. Pisgah, Kershaw   2025 
*Cox, Rob Mullings First, Marion   2025 
*Daley, Wilbur Great Swamp, Savannah River 2023 
Estes, Doug Buffalo, Union    2023 
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*Laity 
 

*Flemming, Erik Concord, Saluda   2023 
#How, Michael Ninety Six, Lakelands  2023 
Jackson, Randy Northwood, Charleston  2024 
*Keagy, Tim Rocky Creek, Greenville  2025 
Kelley, Bart Barnwell First, Barnwell-Bamberg 2025 
*Kendall, Rett Shandon, Columbia Metro  2024 
Lewis, Ken Crosspoint, Pickens-Twelve Mile 2025 
McCormick, Mike Berlin, Edisto   2024 
*Sherer, Carol Boiling Springs, Spartanburg County 2023 
Smith, Clay Alice Drive, Santee   2023 
Steed, Ryan Riverside, Palmetto   2025 
Sullivan, John Good Hope, Waccamaw  2023 
Vickery, Ken Victor, Three Rivers   2023 
West, Dwayne Kittiwake, Lexington  2025 
*Willard, Lisa Kelleytown, Welsh Neck  2023 

 
 

RESOLUTIONS COMMITTEE 
(Elected by Convention Messengers; Three-Year Term) 

Doug Mize 
Chair 

Donny Mathis 
Vice-Chair 

 
 
Bennett, David Lake Murray, Lexington  2025 
Mathis, Donny Christ Fellowship, Three Rivers 2024 
Mize, Doug Greer First, Three Rivers  2024 
Ofenloch, Ryan Murrells Inlet First, Waccamaw 2025 
Turner, Philip Columbia First, Columbia Metro 2023 
Watts, Bert Mountain Creek, Three Rivers  2023 
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*Laity 
 

BOARDS OF TRUSTEES 
Unless Otherwise Noted, Trustee is from South Carolina 

 
 

ANDERSON UNIVERSITY 
Evans Whitaker, President 

 
*Back, Rodney Inman 2025 
Bearden, Michael Gray Court  2027 
*Brown Jr., Leonard Greenville  2024 
*Bunton, Mary Anne Williamston 2024 
*Campbell, Nan Piedmont  2026 
Carney, Edward Irmo  2024 
*Caskey, Gerald Greer  2024 
*Davis, Joel Westminster  2026 
*Davis, Nakia Honea Path  2023 
Elliott, Rod Cheraw  2023 
Gray, Rudy Easley   2027 
*Harper, Don Central  2027 
Henderson, Alex Laurens  2023 

*Hyman, Mickey Myrtle Beach  2026 
*McGee, Shawn Iva  2023 
*McKay, Brian Simpsonville  2027 
#*Miller, Kip Inman  2024 
*Shaw, Jack Greenville  2025 
Smoak, Benjamin Piedmont  2027 
Stewart, Ed Columbia  2025 
*Walker, Danny Anderson  2023 
*Walker, David Anderson  2026 
*Wilson, Michael Piedmont  2025 
*Wooten, Margaret Anderson  2026 
*Wyatt, George Piedmont  2025

 
BAPTIST COURIER 

Jeff Robinson, Editor & President 
 

Church, Wes Columbia  2025 
Clark, Tim Lyman   2023 
*Crowe, Steve Easley  2025 
Davis, Ben Greenwood  2026 
Easler, Dwight Gaffney  2027 
*Fulmer, Eddie Prosperity  2023 
Gray, Jerry Iva   2027 
*Grooms, Debbie Piedmont  2027 

*Hiott, Davey Pickens  2025 
Kelly, Tommy Varnville  2026 
*McCraw, Dee Easley  2024 
McMinn, Delano Anderson  2024 
*Miller, Hannah Inman  2026 
*Shipe, Emerson Seneca  2023 
*Toole, Celeste Lugoff  2024 

 
BAPTIST FOUNDATION OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

Nathan McCarthy, President & CEO 
 

Bell, Don Gilbert   2025 
*Bishop, Jeremy Spartanburg 2027 
*Bohanan, Shannon N Augusta 2023 
*Bozard, John Orlando FL  2026 

Capps, Thomas Greenville  2023 
*Collier, Traci Chapin  2026 
*Gable, Tim Barnwell  2025 
*Griswold, Patrick Greenwood 2027 
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*Herbert, Steve Columbia  2024 
*Jones, Ray Columbia  2025 
*Kilby, Susan Seneca  2027 
Perry, Ryan Seneca   2024 

Spires, Chris Murrells Inlet  2024 
*Taylor, Glenn Anderson  2023 
Williams, Steve Sumter  2026 

 
 

CHARLESTON SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY 
B. Keith Faulkner, President 

 
*Austin, Terri Moncks Corner 2027 
Baxley, Robbie Mullins  2026 
*Branch, Missy Wake Forest NC 2024 
*Brantley, Ron Summerville  2026 
*Bullard, Frank Mt. Pleasant 2023 
*Byrd, Philip St. George  2024 
*Carpenter, Bill Goose Creek 2026 
#*Davis, James Salisbury NC 2023 
*Eller, Randy Roanoke VA  2025 
*Fick, Linda Bluffton   2023 
*Hetz, Judy N Charleston  2023 
*Hood, Mark Columbia  2024 

Horton, D. J. Moore   2024 
*Martin, Julia Summerville  2027 
Merritt, James Gainesville GA 2024 
*Murphy, Dean Charleston  2026 
Pack, Ryan Irmo   2027 
*Renfrow, William Spartanburg 2025 
*Robertson, Adam Harrogate TN 2025 
*Russell, Joseph Charleston  2027 
Sands, Alex Greenville  2025 
*Thiem, Gloria Summerville  2023 
*Wildes, Jeff Georgetown  2026 
*Williams, Jerry Richburg  2025 

 

CONNIE MAXWELL CHILDREN S MINISTRIES 
Danny Nicholson, President 

 
*Berry, Ladson Spartanburg  2026 
*Boulineau, Frank N Myrtle Beach 2024 
*Cave, B.M. West Columbia  2027 
Cline, David Greenville  2026 
*Cofield, Janet Lexington  2026 
*Cooner, Stewart W Columbia 2027 
Davenport, Derrick Williamston  2024 
DeCosta, Mike Alcolu  2025 
Kauffmann, Doug Greenwood 2023 
*Lackey, Richard Orangeburg 2023 
*Lucy, Dena Fort Mill  2024 

Mackins, Ernest Anderson  2026 
Moody, Mike Honea Path  2025 
*Muller, Roma Lexington  2025 
*Peterson, Walter Greenwood 2023 
*Rine, Phillip Rock Hill  2027 
*Sanders, Pam N Charleston 2025 
*Troutman, Roger Clemson  2023 
*Walters, Dan Greenwood  2024 
*Whitaker, Brian Ninety Six  2027 
*Whitfield, Carol Saluda  2026 
*Wright, James Elgin  2025 
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NORTH GREENVILLE UNIVERSITY 
Gene Fant, President 

 
*Alexander, Jim Pickens  2027 
Broadus, Will Greenville  2026 
*Calcutt, Drew Walterboro  2026 
*Capell, Lee Prosperity  2023 
*Charpia, David Greer  2026 
*Edwards, Ron Greenville  2025 
*Giddens, Keith Simpsonville 2025 
Hamlet, Mike Spartanburg  2023 
*Hamrick, Mike Cowpens  2027 
*Hawkins, Beverly Easley  2023 
#*Hewitt, Ron Moore  2025 
*Holeman, Gary Travelers Rest 2023 
*Jackson, Beth Greer  2026 

*James, Angela Taylors  2027 
*Johnson, Ike Simpsonville  2025 
*Lee, Lucian Greer   2024 
*Messer, Laura Tigerville  2023 
Powell, Josh Taylors   2027 
*Powers, Kay Hendersonville NC 2027 
*Sands, Shana Greenville  2024 
Spearman, Brian Easley  2025 
Tyler, William Taylors  2024 
#*White, John Hampton GA 2024 
#*Williams, Pierce Greer  2026 
*Wilson, Don Moore  2024 

 
SCBMA 

SOUTH CAROLINA BAPTIST MINISTRIES FOR THE AGING 
Tom Turner, President & CEO 

 
*Anderson, Phillip Hartsville 2025 
*Beaman, Chuck Columbia  2025 
*Bedenbaugh, Ira Laurens  2024 
Campbell, Chad Easley  2024 
*Conner, Rick Hartsville  2026 
*Crute, Bill Rock Hill   2027 
*Fisher, Jon Greer   2023 
Grant, Robert Lexington  2024 

*Haynes, Garris Columbia  2027 
Massey, Kevin Sumter  2027 
Mills, Mike Florence  2026 
*Moore, Martin Greenwood 2023 
*Rabon, Caetie Sumter  2026 
Sherwood, Brian Darlington  2023 
#*Stokes, Gail Greer   2025 
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SOUTH CAROLINA MEMBERS SERVING ON 
SOUTHERN BAPTIST CONVENTION BOARDS AND COMMITTEES 

2023 
 
Executive Committee 

Easler, Dwight, Gaffney 2023  
Finn, Nathan, Travelers Rest 2024 
*Hendrick, Mark, Chapin 2027 
*Rogers, Sarah, Greenville 2026  
Sons, David, Lexington 2024  

 
Committee on Nominations 

Agnew, Travis, Pelzer 2024 
*Gilmore, Donna, Spartanburg 2024  

 
Committee on Order of Business 
 Sims, Bryant, Lexington 2026  
   
Ethics and Religious Liberty Commission 

Beam, Tony, Greer 2025  
 
GuideStone Financial Resources 

*Smith, Lenna, Greer 2023  
*Stooksbury, Gary L., Aiken 2026  

 
International Mission Board 

Blalock, Marshall, Charleston 2026  
*Crittendon, Trudy H., Anderson 2024  
*Steen, Carson (Glenn), Lancaster 2023  

 
LifeWay Christian Resources 

*Cook, Cynthia M., Camden 2026  
Duduit, Michael, Anderson--2025  

 
North American Mission Board 

*Harris, Wallace, Simpsonville 2025 
Youngblood, Joe T., Graniteville 2025   

 
Gateway Seminary 

*Morton, Charles H. (Chuck), Greer 2027 
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Midwestern Baptist Theological Seminary 
Melton, Frankie J., Jr., Heath Springs 2023 
Williams, Casey, Columbia 2028  
  

New Orleans Baptist Theological Seminary 
*Rebekah Harrison, Greer 2025  

 
Southeastern Baptist Theological Seminary 
 Little, Zack, Abbeville 2023 
 
The Southern Baptist Theological Seminary 

Powell, Joshua W., Taylors 2026  
Stark, Richard, Wellford 2024  

 
Southwestern Baptist Theological Seminary 

Williams, Timothy, Spartanburg 2024  
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South Carolina Baptist Convention

Executive Office
Tony Wolfe, Executive Director-Treasurer

Kim Yates
Janet Clonts**

African American Engagement	
Michael Pigg
		
Accounting
Bryan Holley, Chief Financial Officer		
Kristy Adams
Zane Allison
Rachael Zimmer
Susan Loflin*
Amanda Trotter*
		
Human Resources		
Lee Douglas
Karen Bray
	
Denominational Relations/Operations	
Bryant Sims, Chief Operations Officer
Janet Clonts**
Allison Bardin**
Anna Wilson-Stillwell*
		
Building & Mail Services	
Jeff Dial
John Cathcart
Joe Tindal
Jan Berrian
Sherry Brown
Sonny Young*
		
Technology Services		
Kevin Martin
Lisa Coley
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Ministry Priorities 	 	
Lee Clamp, Associate Executive Director-Treasurer
Leisa Butler
		
Associational Services		
Scott Shields
Allison Bardin**
		
Creative Services	 	
Alex Lyons
Ronnie Richardson
Anna Gardner*

Send Team		
Ken Owens, Team Leader
Charlie Swain
Samantha Kilgore
Katie Bennett*
		
Missions Partnerships		
Tim Rice
		
Camp McCall	 	
Matt Allen
Phillip Jewell
George Reed
Ginger Allen
Amanda Cox
	
Serve Team		
Jon Jamison, Team Leader
Angela McNeal
Sandy Bezjak
		
Disaster Relief	 	
Susan Peugh
Sue Harmon
Debbie Royson
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Share Team		
Chad Stillwell, Team Leader
Aimee Allison
		
Relational Evangelism		
Melanie Ratcliffe
Ricky Wilson
Kacie Woods

Collegiate Ministries		
Bronson Baker
Jack Blankenship
Kendal Danford
Peter Hyatt
David Neace
Scott Smith
Adam Venters
Morgan Allen
Rachel Green

Shepherd Team		
Brian Saxon, Team Leader

Church Leadership & Administration	
Donald King
Lauren Smith
		
Church Strategies		
James Nugent

Start Team		
Cliff Marshall, Team Leader
Tom Gore
Bryan Kent
Katrina Stikeleather
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Strong Team	 	
Steve Rohrlack, Team Leader
Avery Burchfield**

Adult Ministries	 	
Bobby Howard
		
Preschool & Children’s Ministries	
Kathy Miles
Olivia Caddell
		
Youth Ministries		
Bryant Laird
Avery Burchfield**
		
Worship & Music	 	
Matt Freeman
Janet Altman
		
		

*Part-time
**Shared Position
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LET’S GO! 
2023 SOUTH CAROLINA BAPTIST CONVENTION 

203R D ANNUAL MEETING 
NOVEMBER 13–14, 2023 

SHANDON BAPTIST CHURCH 
COLUMBIA,  SC 

 
 

ALBERT ALLEN, PRESIDENT 
 WES CHURCH, PRESIDENT-ELECT 

RYAN GOODROE, VICE PRESIDENT 
BRIAN SHERWOOD, REGISTRATION SECRETARY 

 
 

LET’S GO! DARKNESS 
SESSION ONE 

MONDAY, NOVEMBER 13, 2023 
6:00 PM 

Messenger enrollment as of 6:16 PM was 294. 
 

The First Baptist Newberry Praise Team led pre-service worship. 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Albert Allen, President of the Convention, called the meeting to order.  
 
ORGANIZATION OF THE CONVENTION 
The Chair recognized Brian Sherwood, Registration Secretary, who brought a motion on 
behalf of the Enrollment and Credentials Committee that the 294 messengers and all 
subsequent messengers constitute the messengers of the 203rd annual session of the 
South Carolina Baptist Convention.  
 
Hearing no discussion, the vote was called, and the motion carried. 
 
ORDER OF BUSINESS  
President Allen recognized Ryan Goodroe, Convention Vice President. Goodroe made a 
motion to adopt the order of business as printed at the beginning of the Book of Reports 
for the 203rd meeting of the South Carolina Baptist Convention. He additionally stated that 
each messenger would be limited to three minutes to discuss any matters coming before 
the assembly. 
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Hearing no discussion, the vote was called, and the motion carried. 
 
Sprouse then recommended the 2024 South Carolina Baptist Convention Annual Meeting 
to be held November 11–12 at First Baptist Church in Columbia. Allen called for 
discussion on the motion. 
 
Hearing no discussion, the vote was called, and the motion carried. 
 
The Chair thanked Shandon Baptist for hosting this annual meeting and welcomed Pastor 
Dr. Daniel Dickard to the podium.  
 
WELCOME FROM SHANDON BAPTIST CHURCH 
Dr. Dickard welcomed the messengers, saying his church was honored to have them 
meet at its facility. “We are praying for the 2,000 plus churches assembling that we might 
do more together,” he said. 
 
VIDEO PRESENTATION  
Words of greeting were brought from International Mission Board personnel serving in 
Japan.  
 
COMMITTEE ON COMMITTEES REPORT 
President Allen recognized Cory Horton, Committee on Committees Chair, for their report.  
 
Horton made a motion to elect the slate of nominees for Convention Committees on pages 
42–44 in the Book of Reports.  
 
Allen asked for discussion on the motion. Hearing no discussion, messengers voted to 
approve the motion. 
 
SOUTH CAROLINA BAPTIST MINISTRIES OF AGING (SCBMA) 
A video presentation featuring a report from SCBMA President and CEO Tom Turner was 
shown. The SCBMA report is found on page 54 of the Book of Reports. He expressed 
appreciation for the partnership of churches throughout the Convention and their 
“devotion of ministry to individuals in the later stages of life,” Turner said.  
 
Sue Brownlee, a resident since 2020, shared about the stress and fear of caring for her 
spouse, who was diagnosed with Alzheimer’s disease before the couple moved into 
Martha Franks. She expressed appreciation for the care the couple received through each 
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of the subsequent stages Mr. Brownlee experienced until the end of his life. “Martha 
Franks met and exceeded our every need,” she said. 
 
Turner reported adjusting to the new realities of managing two retirement communities 
post-COVID. He spoke to the extreme difficulties experienced in the previous year, 
including staffing shortages and financial increases. SCBMA is “trusting the Lord during 
this time and continuing to advance the mission,” he said.  
 
NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE REPORT 
President Allen recognized Lisa Willard, committee chair, for presenting the committee's 
work. He reminded messengers that the committee is comprised of two members from 
each of South Carolina's 12 geographic regions. Willard turned messengers’ attention to 
page 47 of the Book of Reports to review three nominees to fill vacancies on the 2024 
Executive Board.  
 
Allen asked if there was any discussion on the motion. Hearing none, he called for the 
vote, and the messengers approved the motion.  
 
Willard presented a second motion to approve the Institutional trustee nominees listed on 
page 49 in the Book of Reports and on the Ministry Partner Trustees Ballot. The 
committee was notified of a change the week before the 2023 Annual Meeting, that David 
Wilcox removed his name from the slate of candidates for North Greenville University. 
The alternate candidate was vetted and approved during the nomination process, so 
Richard McLawhorn of First Baptist Columbia appeared on the ballot. 
 
The Chair recognized Brian Sherwood, registration secretary, who instructed messengers 
on the ballot voting process. Sherwood repeated instructions and reminded messengers 
of the alternate candidate listed on the Ministry Partner Trustee ballot.   
 
Sherwood called for the tellers to receive the ballots.   
 
EXECUTIVE BOARD REPORT, INTRODUCTION 
The Chair recognized Associate Executive Director-Treasurer Lee Clamp, who 
introduced a story about Christian, a troubled addict that members of a missions team 
encountered in a Hollywood, California, subway. 
 
Clamp shared stories and links to videos presented during the annual meeting sessions, 
which were found in the Ministry Plan messengers received. He introduced several 
Palmetto Collective graduates, eight college students, a church planter, and members of 
SCBaptist Collegiate Ministries.  
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“We believe that each church can advance the Gospel. Rock Hill Baptist rallied 38 
churches to gather for a ONE Night event to share the Gospel with teenagers. So far, 
9,040 teenagers have heard about Jesus in ONE Night events, and over 500 decisions 
have been made to follow Jesus through the event,” Clamp said.  
 
In conclusion, Clamp returned to Christian’s story by highlighting that “every life counts.” 
He reminded messengers that some of these life stories are captured in this year’s 
Ministry Plan and thanked messengers for their contribution to changing lives across 
South Carolina.  
 
WOMAN’S MISSIONARY UNION REPORT 
The Chair recognized WMU Executive Director-Treasurer Jess Archer for her report, 
which is found on page 49 of the Book of Reports. Messengers saw a video presentation 
that included Camp La Vida counselor testimonies about serving campers, learning from 
missionaries, and participating in life-changing experiences.  
 
Archer said it is a joy and honor to serve “where God is working, and we want to join him 
there.” She reported that more than 315 churches from six states sent 1,400 students to 
Camp La Vida in 2023. WMU saw 70 students decide to follow Christ, and 30 responded 
to the call to missions.  
 
“It’s wonderful to see how God allows us to join him where he is at work. Every believer 
has an assignment and a task to tell people about Jesus,” Archer said. She highlighted 
her team’s four missional focuses: learning to do missions, praying for missions, 
supporting missions, and doing missions while telling people about Jesus.  
 
Archer thanked SCBaptist churches for giving more than $1,990,000 to the Janie 
Chapman Offering for State Missions in 2022 and said she is praying that churches 
respond to the 2023 mission offering goal of $2,100,000.  
 
Archer shared staff goals to have specific conversations with SCBaptist leaders to partner 
in missions, to connect with and encourage churches already on board with missions 
discipleship, expand social media presence, and to convey the value and vision of WMU.  
 
“May we always be reminded to share the Gospel with all people! Let’s Go!” Archer said.  
 
LET’S GO SESSION ONE THEME INTRODUCTION – DARKNESS 
Following an introductory video, President Allen introduced the first session of the 
meeting with the theme “Let’s Go!” He said the low light was intentionally used in the 
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auditorium that evening to prepare messengers for the theme. He invited messengers to 
“lose sleep” over the reality of the darkness in a lost world. He asked messengers to pray 
that they would be willing to move by asking them, “What if God pulled you out of where 
you are and moved you to a new, far-off place?”   
 
Allen led a panel discussion with Jeff Waligora, who served with IMB in the Asia-Pacific 
Rim for 26 years; Steven Crittendon, who served with IMB in South and East Asia; Travis 
Kerns, who served in Salt Lake City, Utah; and Preston Kunz, who currently serves in 
Southeast Asia. Messengers were asked to refrain from taking photos or recording during 
the discussion for the safety of the panel guests. 
 
Allen asked the panel for their perspectives on how lostness or darkness is unique in the 
areas of the world they served, how they witnessed the hopelessness that darkness 
manifests in the lives of the lost, and examples of spiritual bondage they’ve seen. 
 
One missionary shared their experience of “ground zero” in a remote area that only 
recently received a Bible translated into their language. Another spoke of the cost of 
following Jesus and the pressures new believers face from their families and 
communities. One spoke of a Tibetan convert who was physically beaten after becoming 
a Christian. They told how lost people recognize the hope believers carry in the world. 
 
One panel guest said a Mormon church leader asked them “to pray for my family because 
you are the closest to a true follower of Christ I’ve ever met.’ He has no idea how much 
deception he’s in because if he were to convert, he’d lose everything.”  
 
Allen concluded the discussion by inviting Crittendon to pray for the “brokenness of the 
saved over the lostness of the lost.”  
 
VIDEO PRESENTATION  
Words of greeting were brought from IMB personnel serving in Korea.  
 
WORSHIP 
The First Baptist Newberry Praise Team led worship.  
 
MESSAGE  
President Allen introduced Paul Chitwood, president of the International Mission Board, 
which has more than 6,000 IMB missionaries serving around the globe. A numerical 
counter started to run on the screen behind Chitwood as he began to speak.  
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Chitwood described spending time in a cave without light and the fish that lived in the 
water there. “These trout are blind but kept alive by those who feed them each day,” he 
said. “Apart from Christ, every human being is swimming in a sea of total darkness without 
hope of escape. It is a sober reminder of the reality of lostness.” 
 
Chitwood described the ultimate choice all humans have: to turn from darkness (Satan) 
to light (Christ). He said the calling to press others to make that turn was the “ultimate 
calling, given by Christ himself. It is the eternal struggle to rescue the perishing and care 
for the dying.”  
 
Before reading from Revelation 20, Chitwood thanked South Carolina Baptists for 
supporting international missions as “one of our most generous conventions in the SBC,” 
thus ensuring IMB missionaries have remained in service for more than 170 years. He 
said the world's most pressing problem today is spiritual lostness because “it is the only 
problem with eternal consequence, the only problem that lasts.”  
 
After his message, the numerical counter on the screen read 3,322, representing the 
statistical estimate of how many lost individuals had died worldwide in the same amount 
of time.  
 
“The Word of God is true, and death and judgment are realities for every human being,” 
Chitwood said. “But thank God there is a solution. May God use us to slow this growing 
number.” 
 
Albert Allen closed the opening session with an invitation to remain for a prayer service 
led by Executive Director-Treasurer Tony Wolfe.  
 
 
 

LET’S GO! CALLING 
SESSION TWO 

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 14, 2023 
9:00 AM 

  
President Allen greeted messengers with a word about Monday night’s time of worship 
and prayer and a preview of Tuesday’s missions-focused session themes. He opened the 
session with prayer. 
 
WORSHIP 
The North Greenville University Student Worship Band led a time of worship. 
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Allen announced that, as of 9:00 AM, 608 registered messengers and guests were 
present. He asked messengers nominating individuals to serve as the Registration 
Secretary to make their way to the Committee Green Room. 
 
THE BAPTIST COURIER REPORT 
Jeff Robinson, who began his work as The Baptist Courier president and editor in 
February 2023, greeted messengers through a video report. Noting the historical role of 
Baptist newspapers in the lives of Southern Baptists, Robinson said he is thrilled by his 
editorial role. Robinson, who is also a former pastor, said his goal is to serve South 
Carolina pastors and Baptists through The Baptist Courier's ongoing work. 
 
WELCOME FROM THE SBC EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
President Allen introduced Brandon Porter, editor of Baptist Press. Porter greeted 
messengers on behalf of the SBC Executive Committee and through his role as Associate 
Vice President of Convention News. Porter thanked SCBaptists for their support, saying 
a large portion of the almost $192 million given to the Cooperative Program was from the 
state. He said South Carolina is well represented by SCBaptists serving in various SBC 
committees and roles. Porter cited ongoing work the Executive Committee is doing to 
promote cooperation among churches, properly utilize Cooperative Program dollars, and 
further strides in the proactive work to address sexual abuse concerns from the national 
level.   
 
MISSIONARY VIDEO 
Words of greeting were brought from IMB personnel serving in the Philippines. 
 
ELECTION: 2024 REGISTRATION SECRETARY 
President Allen opened nominations for the office of Registration Secretary and reminded 
messengers approaching the microphone of the three-minute speaking time limit.  
 
Pastor Brian Sherwood, First Baptist Church, Darlington, nominated Pastor Mike 
McCormick, Berlin Baptist Church. Sherwood said McCormick serves on the Nominations 
Committee and is a “well-established leader with a great heart for the Lord, the Church, 
missions, and discipleship.” 
 
The Chair noted there were no other nominations. McCormick was elected by unanimous 
consent.  
 
HISTORY COMMITTEE REPORT 
President Allen recognized History Committee Chair Paul Noe, who referred messengers 
to the committee report on page 45 of the Book of Reports. Messengers to the 2022 
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Annual Meeting voted to relocate the SCBaptist Archives from the Convention building in 
Columbia to North Greenville University. Noe gave an update on his committee’s work on 
this process. He assured the messengers that the archives would be preserved and 
maintained with dignity, honor, and professionalism. He said Anna Stillwell, historian and 
archivist for the Convention, continues to be an invaluable resource to the History 
Committee and the state. 
 
SCBAPTIST SERVE TEAM REPORT 
Following an introductory video showing individuals and missionaries serving across the 
state, Serve Team Leader Jon Jamison greeted messengers with personal stories of life 
change, mission, ministry, and church partnerships that have occurred during the 
previous year. He said this glimpse of stories about how God is leading churches to serve 
their communities is significant. He emphasized that each community is different and that 
the Serve Team will walk beside your church as you minister to your neighbors. 
 
“From hunger ministries to ESL classes, from caring well for refugees to partnering with 
Connie Maxwell to foster or support families who foster, from school partnerships through 
Heart4Schools or responding to communities in crisis through Disaster Relief, South 
Carolina Baptists believe that each church can advance and that every life counts.”  
 
INTRODUCTION OF NEW BUSINESS 
President Allen opened the floor for new business, requiring a vote from the assembly not 
listed in the Order of Business. He asked messengers to clearly state their name, church, 
and location of the church and provide a printed version of the motion. Allen said any new 
business heard by the assembly would be scheduled for consideration later in the 
meeting. He reminded everyone that a motion requires a second and that any spoken 
motion receiving a second must be submitted in written form to the podium. 
 
Rhett Burns, First Baptist Travelers Rest, made a motion to bring the resolution on 
financial transparency and accountability in the SBC out of committee and for a vote. 
Allen conferred with Parliamentarian David Little on stage before asking for a second to 
the motion. The motion received a second. President Allen said there is no mechanism 
for a resolution submitted to the Resolutions Committee to advance in this manner. Allen 
advised Burns to bring the motion before the Resolutions Committee again when it is 
presented during the afternoon session. 
 
Pastor David Gallamore, Rock Springs Baptist in Easley, moved that SCBaptist amend 
its bylaws to allow churches to qualify for additional messengers through means other 
than traditional Cooperative Program giving. The motion received a second. 
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Pastor Clint Smith, Town Creek Baptist in Aiken, moved that the 2023 SCBaptist 
unqualified audit be made available electronically to the messengers at the 203rd Annual 
Meeting. The motion received a second.  
 
President Allen asked for additional matters of new business and, seeing none, concluded 
the new business. 
 
Allen asked those nominating individuals for the Vice President's office to move to the 
Green Room, adjacent to the Sanctuary.  
 
CONNIE MAXWELL CHILDREN’S MINISTRIES VIDEO REPORT 
Danny Nicholson, president of Connie Maxwell Children’s Ministries, updated 
messengers regarding the ongoing ministry to children and families in South Carolina, 
citing the report on page 53 of the Book of Reports. Nicholson said five children have 
made professions of faith through Connie Maxwell in the past year. 
 
“It feels as if all of our dreams are being cradled in the beautiful history of our place,” 
Nicholson said of the fourth year in its 10-year vision for growth and ministry. Nicholson 
expressed thanks for a significant donor gift that will facilitate Connie Maxwell’s expansion 
to the Charleston area.  
 
ELECTION: 2024 VICE PRESIDENT 
President Allen opened nominations for the office of Vice President. 
 
Pastor Ryan Perry of Seneca Baptist Church approached the podium and nominated 
Pastor Chris Spires of First Baptist Church of Murrells Inlet as Vice President. Perry said 
Spires’ leadership has grown his congregation from about 50 members to more than 700 
and listed several ways Spires has served the state convention. 
 
The Chair noted there were no other nominations, and Spires was elected with 
unanimous consent.  
 
SCBaptist Strong Team Report  
The Chair recognized Strong Team Leader Steve Rohrlack for presenting his team’s 
official report to messengers on page 22 in the Book of Reports.  
 
Rohrlack introduced Carson Dyer, a 2023 SummerSalt counselor who has attended the 
summer camp since sixth grade. This past summer, Dyer taught campers how to use a 
simple evangelism tool called Three Circles. About a month into the summer, one camper 
accepted Christ while practicing the method during Dyer’s training session. Dyer said he 
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learned powerful lessons from that experience. He saw a camper go from death to life, 
discovered what God can do when believers obey God, and celebrated a Christ follower’s 
excitement in sharing her faith.  
 
Rohrlack challenged the messengers by asking, “How many in your student or collegiate 
ministries need a story like Carson’s?”  
 
SEXUAL ABUSE TASK FORCE REPORT 
The Chair recognized Task Force Co-Chairs DJ Horton and Kathy Robinson. They gave 
an update about the committee’s work since the 2022 Annual Meeting. 
 
While the committee finished its assignment, Horton said, “The work has only begun.” 
Citing the 2022 Task Force’s Response to the national SBC report, Horton said he is 
grateful for the reception given to the committee’s work and to have heard stories of how 
churches have made steps to become safer.  
 
“Dr. Wolfe has our trust, and we have his ear,” Horton said on behalf of the task force. 
We are excited that he will add state convention personnel in the coming months.” The 
new position will “give South Carolina Baptists a person to contact and to be an advocate 
and ally for survivors,” he said.   
 
Robinson led messengers in prayer to conclude the report. 
 
MISSIONARY GREETING VIDEO  
Words of greeting were brought from personnel serving in Thailand and New Zealand.  
 
WORSHIP 
The North Greenville University Worship Studies Praise Band led worship. 
  
CHRISTIAN LIFE AND PUBLIC AFFAIRS REPORT  
President Allen recognized CLPAC Committee Chair Mark Krieger, who referenced his 
committee’s report on page 41 in the Book of Reports. Krieger said they worked closely 
with Policy Advisor Tony Beam, who he introduced to announce the first committee 
award.  
 
Beam presented the 2023 E. A. McDowell Award to Dr. Gene Fant, President of North 
Greenville University. Beam described McDowell as a Palmetto State pastor “concerned 
about social issues” often addressed from the pulpit, and lived out the call to be “as salt 
and light to a world that desperately needs the purity of salt and the transformational 
power of light.” Beam said, “ Dr. Fant equips transformational leaders for the church and 
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society through his strong commitment to being Christ-centered, biblically faithful, 
academically excellent, and mission-focused.” L 
 
Krieger introduced Daniel McGaha, who presented the 2023 Impact Your World Award 
to The Church at Cane Bay in Summerville. Citing the church’s consistent community 
service and “tangible demonstrations of God’s love,” McGaha thanked the church for 
living out the good news of the Gospel in the community. 
 
Krieger invited Dr. Tony Wolfe to present the 2023 Public Service Award to four branches 
of South Carolina law enforcement divisions in recognition of their service to protect 
Convention staff and guests at the building on July 18, 2023. Although the award is 
historically given to an elected official, the committee agreed it was appropriate to award 
it to those public servants who performed “lifesaving, heroic acts of selflessness, and 
courage” on July 18 and every day.  
 
Dr. Wolfe described details of the events of July 18, when a shooting took place in the 
Convention’s parking lot that is shared with a neighboring hotel. Dr. Wolfe said the law 
enforcement response neutralized the threat and that they served as “God’s servants for 
good that day.” The 2023 Public Service Award was given to representatives of the 
following divisions present that day: Richland County Sheriff’s Department, South 
Carolina Law Enforcement Division, Columbia City Police, and the South Carolina 
Highway Patrol.   
 
SCBAPTIST START TEAM REPORT 
President Allen recognized Start Team Leader Cliff Marshall who shared a report on page 
21 in the Book of Reports. Adam Spurlock, pastor and church planter of Restoration 
Community Church in Hanahan, joined Marshall at the podium. Spurlock shared about 
his church’s ministry in an area with a population increase of about 1 million in the past 
18 years. Spurlock’s church sent out a planting team to start a new church several miles 
away to reach these new residents with the hope of the Gospel.  
 
Spurlock told messengers to “trust God’s faithfulness” before asking, “What would it look 
like for us to collaborate at a greater level to plant more churches in the coming years?” 
 
LET’S GO! A CLOSER LOOK 
Following a themed video introduction, President Allen welcomed the following guests to 
the podium for a panel discussion on the convention theme: James Hanson, former 
missionary to Central Asia; Will Broadus, former missionary to East Asia and now a South 
Carolina Baptist church planter; and, Bill Cox, a former missionary to Asia. 
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Each shared perspectives on the call to missions and experiences serving in their 
respective areas of the world. One shared about the desire to preach the Gospel in an 
area where people had never heard the name of Jesus; another said they were sure of 
God’s guiding Spirit through the call to missions.  
 
President Allen said the missionaries had served in closed countries but now serve state-
side and inquired about continued involvement in those previous locations. As the former 
missionaries shared thoughts on how SCBaptists can become involved in international 
missions, one questioned, “Why should we stay [and not serve]?” 
 
PRESIDENT’S ADDRESS 
Executive Director-Treasurer Dr. Tony Wolfe greeted messengers by saying he “thanked 
God every day” for entrusting him with the role of leading SCBaptists. Citing reports heard 
and others yet to be reported during the annual meeting, he said, “Only the ledgers of 
heaven will record our successes in full, and that’s as it should be so that Christ receives 
the glory.”  
 
Dr. Wolfe thanked the Sexual Abuse Task Force for helping South Carolina remain a 
leader in the Southern Baptist Convention on this issue. He turned messengers’ focus on 
the “urgency of the mission and the New Testament doctrine of cooperation that demand 
more from us.” Dr. Wolfe offered a basis and plan of cooperation to help advance a shared 
mission while so many are stalled by division. He stated that SCBaptists are one family 
on one mission with one cooperative effort. 
 
Wolfe explained the One Family concept, “The South Carolina Baptist Convention is a 
convening. South Carolina Baptists are a people. We all voluntarily work together. Healthy 
families stick together, work through difficulties, and reproduce to hand off their values to 
the next generation.”  
 
The definition of One Mission is grounded in the SCBaptist vision statement that we see 
a day when every life is saturated and transformed by the hope of the Gospel. He said, 
“The mission is to evangelize, disciples, train, and mobilize.” Dr. Wolfe introduced Michael 
Pigg to the messengers. Pigg is the new Director of African American Engagement, 
created in response to what Wolfe said was the Convention’s historical regret and current-
day concern for relationship-building and Gospel engagement in the African American 
community. 
 
Dr. Wolfe reported on his priority to engage the next generation, which included visiting 
the three state Baptist university campuses and statewide Baptist Collegiate Ministries. 
He encouraged messengers to join him in helping to grow future church leaders. 
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Dr. Wolfe presented the current Cooperative Program giving deficits. The SCBaptist focus 
on one cooperative effort is positioned to address the need to educate churches on the 
value and role of the Cooperative Program.  
 
“God will not be mocked. We will reap according to the measure that we sow. We cannot 
simply talk about our shared mission. If we are to rise to the task, we must each 
sacrificially invest in the shared mission,” he said. “We, as SCBaptists, remain 
uncompromisingly focused and invested in the mission. We are one family, on one 
mission, with one cooperative effort . . . together.”  
 
ELECTION OF PRESIDENT-ELECT 
President Allen opened nominations for the office of President-Elect. The Chair asked 
those coming to the stage to make nominations, clearly state their name and church, and 
limit their comments to three minutes. 
 
Zack Little of Renewal Church of Anderson nominated Chuck Sprouse, Pastor of First 
Baptist Church Ninety Six, as President-Elect. Little said he has known Sprouse for 20 
years and has been personally impacted by his faithfulness and Gospel ministry, which 
includes service in local churches, his association, and the state convention.  
 
Acknowledging no other nominations, President Allen said Sprouse is elected as 
President-Elect by unanimous consent. 
 
MISSIONS GREETING VIDEO 
Words of greeting were brought from personnel serving in Japan. 
 
MUSICAL WORSHIP  
The North Greenville University Praise Band led worship. 
  
PRESIDENT’S ADDRESS 
In his address to messengers, President Allen said there is a misunderstanding of the 
notion of the term calling, saying, “If we could understand it better, more of us would go.”  
Launching his message from Acts 16:9 and Paul and Silas’ invitation to “come . . . and 
help us,” Allen referred to biblical accounts of cross-cultural evangelism, discipleship, and 
church planting.  
 
Whether God sends a call to missions or vision, Allen maintains the believer’s only 
response is “yes.” The lost people around the world need South Carolina Baptists to go. 
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Allen shared with messengers the story of his calling to an East Asian missions 
appointment. While a pastor at a church in North Carolina, Allen received God’s call to 
full-time missions at the request of a new believer while on a short-term international 
missions trip. He and his wife moved their four young children to that same country to live 
and share the Gospel for four years.  
 
Allen concluded his message with the invitation and challenge, “Pastors, Let’s Go!”  
 
CLOSING 
President Allen prayed, concluded the morning session, and announced the afternoon 
session would reconvene at 2:00 PM. 
 
 

LET’S GO! IMPACT 
SESSION THREE 

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 14, 2023 
2:00 PM 

 
Messenger enrollment as of 2:14 PM was 774. 

 
The Anderson University Praise Team led pre-service worship. 

 
 
 
SCBAPTIST SHARE TEAM REPORT 
Share Team Leader Chad Stillwell reported evangelism stories from across the state as 
people have responded to the Gospel this year. His report included stories of life change 
through Baptist Collegiate Ministries, decisions made at ONE Night praise and 
evangelism events, and examples of students sharing the Gospel with other students. 
“There’s not been a single week this fall that a student didn’t pray to receive Christ on one 
of our college campuses,” Stillwell said. 
 
According to Stillwell, the question isn’t “Is evangelism working?” The question is, “Are 
we working on evangelism?” He reminded messengers that there are 4.3 million 
neighbors in our state who don’t know the Gospel. “It’s time for us to go and tell every 
one of them because we know when we do, they respond!” 
 
MISSIONARY GREETING VIDEO 
Words of greeting were brought from missions personnel serving in South Korea. 
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BYLAWS COMMITTEE REPORT 
The Chair recognized Ryan Goodroe, chairman of the Bylaws Committee, who directed 
messengers to the printed report on pages 29–40 of the Book of Reports. Goodroe 
reminded messengers that the first reading of proposed bylaw amendments (printed on 
pages 31–46 of the 2022 Book of Reports) occurred during the 2022 Annual Meeting.  
 
Goodroe explained the two amendments to the bylaws, reading each aloud to 
messengers. The first occurs twice within the bylaws, found in Article XIII (13) of the 
Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws, Part I, Article XII (12), Part B, and in Bylaws Part I, 
Article VII (7), Part C (Sections 1 and 2). The change says that “Any amendment proposed 
to an amendment that has already had a first reading at a previous Annual Meeting must 
be presented to the Bylaws Committee at least sixty (60) days before the Annual Meeting 
so that it can be considered by the Bylaws Committee and presented in advance to the 
Convention.” 
 
Goodroe explained the second notable change to the bylaws occurs in Bylaws Part I, 
Article VII (7), Part C (Sections 1 and 2) regarding changes about Ministry Partners. It 
reads: “A majority two-thirds (2/3) of those voting is needed to dissolve or substantially 
alter the relationship between the Convention and that Institution.” 
 
The Chair said a motion to adopt the amendments did not require a second. There was 
no discussion from the floor. Messengers voted to approve the motion. 
 
EXECUTIVE BOARD REPORT 
President Allen introduced Executive Board Chair Steve Hogg, who invited messengers 
to read written summaries of the Executive Board ministries found on pages 6–29 in the 
Book of Reports.  
 
“You can join us in celebrating and giving God the glory for all that we are doing together,” 
said Hogg, who went on to express appreciation for the smooth leadership transition 
following the retirement of former Executive Director-Treasurer Dr. Gary Hollingsworth 
and the start of Dr. Wolfe on April 1.  
 
Hogg affirmed the decision to operate under a smaller Executive Board and highlighted 
the board's opportunity to award more scholarship money to applicants. He informed 
messengers that the state convention will intentionally use “cooperating” language 
moving forward, calling it the “language of our history and our documents.” 
 
Hogg introduced Budget, Finance, and Audit Chair Talmadge Tobias, who presented the 
2024 convention Budget. Reading from pages 4–6 in the Book of Reports, Tobias offered 
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the recommendations on behalf of the committee and asked messengers to vote on the 
recommendations as a whole.  
 
Tobias then asked the Chair for permission to speak to the motion. The Chair granted 
permission. 
 
Tobias said the budget of 26.5 million dollars is based on anticipated giving from 
churches. The Ministry Plan sends 41% to the Southern Baptist Convention to be 
distributed to out-of-state partners. The International Mission Board gets an additional 
4.5%, leaving 54.5% for use within the state for gospel advancement. Tobias asked 
messengers to review the Ministry Plan booklet, encourage their churches to give to the 
Cooperative Program and vote in affirmation of the proposed budget.  
 
The Chair said the motion requires no second and invited discussion. Hearing none, a 
vote was taken. messengers voted to approve the budget. 
 
PREVIOUSLY SCHEDULED BUSINESS 
The Chair recognized David Gallamore of Rock Springs Baptist in Easley. Gallamore’s 
motion appeared on screen and read, “The SCBC amend the bylaws to allow churches 
to qualify for messengers through other means than the traditional Cooperative Program 
giving.”  
 
The Chair moved to refer this motion to the Bylaws Committee. 
 
The Chair recognized Messenger Clint Smith of Town Creek Baptist in Aiken. Smith’s  
motion appeared on the monitor and read, “The 2023 SCBC unqualified audit be made 
available electronically to the messengers of the 203rd annual session of the SCBaptist 
Convention.”  
 
After speaking with parliamentarians, Smith said he would like to withdraw the motion. 
The Chair invited Dr. Wolfe to the podium to speak to the intent. Wolfe affirmed the 
transparency and trust of the SCBaptist board and committees and that messengers 
maintain high standards and enjoy full disclosure of financial reports. Wolfe directed 
messengers to pages 244–247 of the Book of Reports, which includes all financial reports 
except audits, which came back clean. Wolfe said SCBaptist financials may be found at 
www.scbaptist.org/annualmeeting/conventionannuals.  
 
Rhett Burns, Travelers Rest First Baptist, made a third motion on a declined resolution 
titled “Financial transparency and accountability in the Southern Baptist Convention.” The 
motion sought to bring the unreported resolution out of committee for a vote. After 
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consulting with the parliamentarians and reviewing the Bylaws corresponding to the 
Resolutions Committee, the Chair ruled the motion out of order. 
 
MISSIONARY GREETING VIDEO 
Words of greeting were brought from personnel serving in South Asia.  
 
WORSHIP 
The Anderson University Praise Team led worship. 
 
BAPTIST FOUNDATION OF SOUTH CAROLINA REPORT 
The Chair announced that the Resolutions Committee would report following the Baptist 
Foundation of South Carolina's video report. Messengers presenting amendments to any 
resolution were asked to bring a written copy to a table near the podium immediately 
following the video. 
 
President Allen referred messengers to the Foundation’s report on Page 51 of the Book 
of Reports.  
 
President and CEO Nathan McCarthy told messengers that the Foundation can assist 
churches in investing money in a way that concurrently blesses ministries. The 
Foundation staff is available to help churches educate through generosity and more about 
the “seed investment” lending ministry, which offers lending opportunities to churches that 
create a cycle of Kingdom growth. “Our team thanks you from the bottom of our hearts to 
serve you and walk with you as you serve the King,” McCarthy said. 
 
RESOLUTIONS COMMITTEE REPORT 
The Chair reminded messengers with amendments to any of the resolutions to bring 
written copies to a table near the podium.  
 
Messenger Rhett Burns spoke to appeal the Chair’s decision to disallow the resolution on 
transparency. Concerning the ruling, Burns cited bylaws that were “silent” regarding 
bringing a resolution out of committee. He said Roberts Rules of Order indicate the 
Convention should be given the power to override a committee decision and argued, “To 
deny this would mean messengers wouldn’t be allowed to express an opinion not given 
to them by a committee.” He said he is in favor of transparency and accountability.  
 
The Chair interpreted the bylaws provision to allow the committee to decide not to 
advance a resolution. The Chair further understands that a body’s bylaws could be more 
restrictive than the Roberts Rules of Order. The Chair referred to Parliamentarian David 
Little, who said the bylaws were set to govern an organization and include rules to conduct 
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business. Roberts Rules of Order never trumps bylaws, and bylaws always trump. 
“SCBaptist Convention bylaws state that the body that brings resolutions to the floor is 
our Resolutions Committee,” Little said. 
 
Messenger Burns countered, saying he understands the resolution issue. His question is 
whether the body has the authority to bring the resolution out of committee.  
 
The Chair said he appreciated the spirit with which Burns brought his appeal. He said the 
ruling stands and acknowledged the opportunity to overturn the Chair’s decision.  
 
Messenger Doug Truax, pastor of Beechwood Church in Greenville, approached a 
microphone and said the bylaws aren’t clear on the “authority of this body.” He maintained 
that if the body wishes to speak in any given year, it is “one of the main reasons to gather 
in an annual meeting.” Truax clarified he was speaking to the appeal of the ruling and in 
favor of Burns having brought the motion.  
 
The Chair asked for further comments. None were made.  
 
The Chair restated the question of whether the decision should be sustained and called 
for a vote from messengers. The Chair's decision was sustained.  
 
The Chair recognized Resolutions Committee Chairman Doug Mize, who turned 
messengers’ attention to the morning edition of the annual meeting daily bulletin, which 
contained a listing of the 2023 Resolutions. Mize said the Resolutions Committee 
conducts its work within a 30-day window before the annual meeting and appreciates the 
faithful service of committee members in bringing these resolutions before messengers. 
 
Doug Mize made a motion to adopt the resolution on APPRECIATION: 
 
APPRECIATION  
WHEREAS the messengers of the 2023 Annual Meeting of the South Carolina Baptist 
Convention have once again enjoyed the generosity of the staff and members of 
Shandon Baptist Church; and 
 
WHEREAS Hebrews 12:28 says, “Therefore let us be grateful for receiving a kingdom that 
cannot be shaken, and thus let us offer to God acceptable worship, with reverence and 
awe”; and 
 
WHEREAS South Carolina Baptists assemble to worship, fellowship, and conduct 
business as a unified convention of messengers; and 
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WHEREAS the 2023 Annual Meeting theme is Let’s Go! and every South Carolina Baptist 
is encouraged to advance Christ’s kingdom by building relationships beyond the church 
walls and the confines of our communities; therefore, be it 
 
RESOLVED that we, the messengers to the South Carolina Baptist Convention Annual 
Meeting held at Shandon Baptist Church in Columbia on November 13–14, 2023, 
express appreciation to all who worked diligently to create a worshipful and relevant 
experience for all God’s people; and be it finally 
 
RESOLVED that we express our profound gratitude to the Lord for His continued guidance 
and blessings throughout our lives and our service. 
 
The Chair asked for discussion on the motion. Hearing no discussion, the vote was called, 
and the motion carried. 
 
Ryan Ofenloch made a motion to adopt the resolution on ENCOURAGING LAWS TO 
PREVENT MINORS TO ACCESSING PORNOGRAPHY: 
 
ENCOURAGING LAWS TO PREVENT MINORS FROM ACCESSING PORNOGRAPHY  
WHEREAS God desires believers to be dead to sin and alive in Christ Jesus by living 
under grace, pursuing holiness, and becoming instruments for righteousness in the 
kingdom of God (Romans 6:11–14); and 
  
WHEREAS we are called by God to train our minds and hearts to focus on what is true, 
honorable, just, pure, lovely, commendable, excellent, and worthy of praise (Philippians 
4:8); and 
 
WHEREAS sexual perversion is perpetuated due to the confusion surrounding the 
academic and cultural definition of the elements of pornography (McKee, A., Byron, P., 
Litsou, K. et al. An Interdisciplinary Definition of Pornography: Results from a Global 
Delphi Panel. Arch Sex Behav 49, 1085–1091 (2020). https://doi.org/10.1007/s10508-
019-01554-4); and 
 
WHEREAS numerous peer-reviewed scholarly studies (such as Myung, R. (2022, June 
3). To Call Pornography a Public Health Issue Is Not Enough When it is a Public Health 
Crisis: A Multi-Survivor Analysis. The Public Health Advocate. 
https://pha.berkeley.edu/2022/06/03/to-call-pornography-a-public-health-issue-is-not-
enough-when-it-is-a-public-health-crisis-a-multi-survivor-analysis) demonstrate that the 
consumption of, use, and exposure to pornography has created a public health crisis 
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(Psalm 119:37; 1 Corinthians 6:18; 1 Peter 2:11), corrupting the perception of God’s 
design for sex and sexuality within marriage (1 Thessalonians 4:3–4); leading many to 
low self-esteem; body image disorders; increasing problematic sexual activity for 
adolescents and adults (2 Timothy 2:22); serving as sex education for children and 
youth (Luke 17:2); normalizing people as objects and commodities; contributing to 
violence and abuse; depicting rape as harmless; increasing prostitution, child sexual 
abuse, and child pornography; and contributing to the increase of human trafficking 
(Human Trafficking Hotline, 2022, 1-888-373-7888); and 
 
WHEREAS recent research indicates that pornography is addictive, causing the user to 
require more perverse content; and  
 
WHEREAS pornography has a detrimental effect on the family unit by lessening the 
desire in young people to marry, increasing dissatisfaction in marriage, normalizing 
infidelity, and exposing young children to aberrant sexual behavior through the universal 
availability of pornography; and 
 
WHEREAS overcoming pornography’s harms is difficult to achieve alone, and afflicted 
individuals often need continued support and accountability; therefore, be it 
 
RESOLVED  that we, the messengers to the South Carolina Baptist Convention annual 
meeting held at Shandon Baptist Church in Columbia on November 13–14, 2023, 
recognize that pornography is a public health hazard that leads to a broad spectrum of 
individual and public health impacts and societal harms; and be it further 
 
RESOLVED  that efforts to protect minors from the distribution of harmful material on the 
internet, such as Arkansas Senate Bill 66 (Act 612) or similar protective legislation that 
requires reasonable age verification to identify and prohibit those under 18 from 
entering pornographic websites, be supported and encouraged; and be it further 
 
RESOLVED  that we encourage churches and families to be proactive in seeking ways to 
protect and educate their children about God’s design for sex within biblical marriage, 
living holy and righteous lives, and filling their minds with what God says is good; and 
be it finally 
 
RESOLVED that the South Carolina Baptist Convention calls for education, prevention, 
research, strict enforcement of obscenity laws, and policy considerations where needed 
in the church, our communities, and societal and legislative levels to address the 
pornography epidemic that is harming the people of our state and nation. 
 

 

21 
 

The Chair asked for discussion on the motion. Hearing none, the vote was called, and the 
motion carried.  
 
Philip Turner made a motion to adopt the resolution on PRAYERFUL SUPPORT OF 
ISRAEL: 
 
PRAYERFUL SUPPORT OF ISRAEL  
WHEREAS God committed His Word to Abram saying, “I will make you into a great nation 
. . . I will bless those who bless you . . . I will curse anyone who treats you with 
contempt, and all the peoples of the earth will be blessed through you” (Genesis 12:2–
3); and 
 
WHEREAS the state of Israel represents the descendants of Jacob as an ethnic, cultural, 
and national entity (Genesis 32:28); and 
 
WHEREAS we are commanded to “Pray for the peace of Jerusalem. May those who love 
you be secure; may there be peace within your walls, security within your fortresses”  
(Psalm 122:6–7); and 
 
WHEREAS we thankfully remember that we are indebted to the Jewish people, through 
whom we have our Lord Jesus Christ, the Messiah, and the holy scriptures; and 
 
WHEREAS Since the inception of the modern state of Israel in 1948, Israel has faced 
numerous attacks, incursions, and violations of its national sovereignty; and 
 
WHEREAS we are horrified by the recent murders and violence perpetuated by the 
Hamas terror organization upon the people of Israel and victims of other nationalities; 
therefore, be it 
 
RESOLVED that we, the messengers to the South Carolina Baptist Convention annual 
meeting held at Shandon Baptist Church in Columbia on November 13–14, 2023, 
commit to bless Israel; and be it further 
 
RESOLVED that we support the right of Israel to exist as a sovereign state and we reject 
any activities attacking that right by promoting economic, cultural, and academic 
boycotts against Israel; and be it further 
 
RESOLVED that we support the right of Israel to protect itself from hatred and violence, 
and the right to bring those to justice who have killed or threatened to kill her people; 
and be it further 
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The Chair asked for discussion on the motion. Hearing none, the vote was called, and the 
motion carried.  
 
Philip Turner made a motion to adopt the resolution on PRAYERFUL SUPPORT OF 
ISRAEL: 
 
PRAYERFUL SUPPORT OF ISRAEL  
WHEREAS God committed His Word to Abram saying, “I will make you into a great nation 
. . . I will bless those who bless you . . . I will curse anyone who treats you with 
contempt, and all the peoples of the earth will be blessed through you” (Genesis 12:2–
3); and 
 
WHEREAS the state of Israel represents the descendants of Jacob as an ethnic, cultural, 
and national entity (Genesis 32:28); and 
 
WHEREAS we are commanded to “Pray for the peace of Jerusalem. May those who love 
you be secure; may there be peace within your walls, security within your fortresses”  
(Psalm 122:6–7); and 
 
WHEREAS we thankfully remember that we are indebted to the Jewish people, through 
whom we have our Lord Jesus Christ, the Messiah, and the holy scriptures; and 
 
WHEREAS Since the inception of the modern state of Israel in 1948, Israel has faced 
numerous attacks, incursions, and violations of its national sovereignty; and 
 
WHEREAS we are horrified by the recent murders and violence perpetuated by the 
Hamas terror organization upon the people of Israel and victims of other nationalities; 
therefore, be it 
 
RESOLVED that we, the messengers to the South Carolina Baptist Convention annual 
meeting held at Shandon Baptist Church in Columbia on November 13–14, 2023, 
commit to bless Israel; and be it further 
 
RESOLVED that we support the right of Israel to exist as a sovereign state and we reject 
any activities attacking that right by promoting economic, cultural, and academic 
boycotts against Israel; and be it further 
 
RESOLVED that we support the right of Israel to protect itself from hatred and violence, 
and the right to bring those to justice who have killed or threatened to kill her people; 
and be it further 



44

Proceedings

2023 Annual

 

22 
 

 
RESOLVED that amid this conflict, we prayerfully ask for the preservation of innocent lives 
among both Israelis and Palestinians, with a hope of more peaceful days ahead; and be 
it finally 
 
RESOLVED that at this important time when dangerous forces are mounting up against 
the nation of Israel, we recommit ourselves to pray for God’s peace to rule in Jerusalem 
and for the salvation of Israel, for the “gospel . . . is the power of God for salvation to 
everyone who believes” (Romans 1:16). 
 
The Chair asked for discussion on the motion. Hearing none, the vote was called, and the 
motion carried. 
 
Donny Mathis made a motion to adopt the resolution on HUMAN DIGNITY:  
 
HUMAN DIGNITY 
WHEREAS all human beings are created, from conception, in the image of God and for 
the purpose of bringing glory to the triune God through fulfilling the creation mandate as 
his vice-regents (Genesis 1:27; Genesis 5:2; Genesis 9:6–7; Romans 11:36; 1 
Corinthians 11:7; Colossians 1:16; James 5:9); and   
   
WHEREAS the fall of Adam and Eve into sin marred the image of God in people, brought 
death for them, and destroyed their perfect communion with God; the fall did not destroy 
the image of God completely, did not bring immediate physical death, and did not 
destroy the possibility of having relationship with God (Genesis 3:1–19; Romans 5:12–
21); and 
  
WHEREAS all human beings as God’s image-bearers possess equal, substantive, 
objective dignity and worth before God that does not vary based on ethnicity, age, 
gender, means of conception, mental capacity, or physical development (Genesis 1:27; 
Matthew 18:6; Luke 5:12–26; Romans 1:19–20, 9:6); and   
  
WHEREAS the noetic effects of the fall have hindered the ability of every human to think 
rationally in varying ways, and the physical effects of the fall wreak havoc on our bodies 
and play a role in making the work humans are mandated to perform difficult (Genesis 
3:17–19; Proverbs 6:6–11); and  
  
WHEREAS God’s Word declares that all human life is a sacred gift and mandates that all 
human life should be protected from conception until natural death, therefore, making 
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abortion and euthanasia attacks on human dignity (Psalm 127:3–5, 139:13–16; Romans 
2:15–16); and   
  
WHEREAS the dignity of people who bear the image of God is also attacked through 
violence, oppression, and language that degrades the worth of individuals or groups, as 
well as any other act that undermines the value that an image-bearer possesses; and   
  
WHEREAS our confessional statement, the “Baptist Faith and Message 2000,” as stated 
in Article XV, affirms that children “from the moment of conception, are a blessing and 
heritage from the Lord;” and further affirms that Southern Baptists are mandated by 
Scripture to “speak on behalf of the unborn and contend for the sanctity of all human life 
from conception to natural death;” and  
  
WHEREAS we commend the 2023 South Carolina Legislature for passing a six-week 
abortion ban, and we desire to see a day when society at large honors the undeniable 
personhood of every unborn child by preserving the life of every person who, in God’s 
providence, is conceived; and  
  
WHEREAS the Scriptures present a vision of human flourishing grounded in the saving 
work of Jesus Christ, pursued through kingdom-focused living, and completed with the 
redemption of the entire created order (Colossians 1:15–20); and 
  
WHEREAS all Christians have been called by God to participate in his mission through 
obeying the original creation mandate and fulfilling the Great Commandment and the 
Great Commission (Genesis 1:26–28; Matthew 22:35–40, 28:18–20); therefore, be it 
  
RESOLVED that we, the messengers to the South Carolina Baptist Convention annual 
meeting held at Shandon Baptist Church in Columbia on November 13–14, 2023, exhort 
our fellow South Carolina Baptists to pursue the Great Commission of making disciples 
so that those image-bearers who are in Adam and are being crushed by the oppressive 
power of sin and death can be raised to new life in Christ Jesus and be reconciled to a 
right relationship with the triune God; and be it further 
  
RESOLVED that we will pursue the Great Commandment of loving God and loving our 
neighbors by honoring the undeniable personhood of every life, including unborn 
children, by seeking to preserve the life of every person who, in God’s providence, is 
conceived, and by promoting the God-given right to life, liberty, and the pursuit of 
happiness, which is expressed in the Declaration of Independence but comes from 
Scripture; and be it further  
  



46

Proceedings

2023 Annual

 

24 
 

RESOLVED that we will, in word and deed, demonstrate that those who are designated to 
be neurodivergent, have Down syndrome, or have any other condition that affects their 
mental capacity possess the image of God fully, and all those from among these groups 
who have professed faith in Jesus Christ should be viewed as full participants in South 
Carolina Baptist Churches; and be it further 
  
RESOLVED that we will encourage and exhort one another to carry out the creation 
mandate, recognizing the inherent value of work; and be it further 
  
RESOLVED that we will call on the South Carolina Legislature to continue to protect 
unborn life and the system of free markets while providing social services promoting the 
dignity and flourishing of those in need and promoting economic policies that promote 
human flourishing; and be it finally 
  
RESOLVED that we exhort our fellow South Carolina Baptists to continue to strive 
together until every life is saturated and transformed by the hope of the Gospel. 
*The Resolutions Committee would like to thank North Greenville University for 
generously allowing the use of language from “A Statement on Human Flourishing.” 
 
The Chair asked for discussion on the motion. Hearing none, the vote was called, and the 
motion carried. 
 
Bert Watts made a motion to adopt the resolution on South Carolina JUDICIAL 
APPOINTMENT REFORM: 
 
SOUTH CAROLINA JUDICIAL APPOINTMENT REFORM  
WHEREAS the Bible declares that God is the God of justice (Job 37:23; Psalm 33:5, 
89:14; Isaiah 30:18; Zephaniah 3:5); and 
 
WHEREAS the Bible commands God’s people to uphold biblical justice and to treat 
everyone equally by law and as an act of conscience (Exodus 23:6–9; Deuteronomy 
6:18–20; Proverbs 20:10; Micah 6:8; James 2:1–9); and 
 
WHEREAS biblical justice requires that every person be treated according to the same 
standards and with the same respect, regardless of class, race, ethnicity, age, 
nationality, gender, or developmental challenges; and 
 
WHEREAS the current method of selecting judges opens the possibility that they may be 
appointed based on the political circumstances present in the Legislature rather than 
the philosophy and qualifications of the judge; and 
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WHEREAS the people of South Carolina have expressed frustration with the process by 
which judges are appointed and are, therefore, calling for the South Carolina Legislature 
to reform the current process; and 
 
WHEREAS the South Carolina Attorney General, the Governor, numerous grassroots 
organizations, and many members of the Legislature have issued public statements 
calling for reform of the current system of selecting judges in the state of South 
Carolina; and  
 
WHEREAS the “Baptist Faith and Message 2000” (Section XV, The Christian and the 
Social Order) states: “Every Christian should seek to bring industry, government, and 
society as a whole under the sway of the principles of righteousness, truth, and 
brotherly love”; therefore, be it 
 
RESOLVED that we, the messengers to the South Carolina Baptist Convention Annual 
Meeting held at Shandon Baptist Church in Columbia, South Carolina, on November 
13–14, 2023, encourage the members of the South Carolina Legislature to work toward 
reforming the current system of selecting judges so that it reflects a biblical 
understanding of justice; and be it further 
 
RESOLVED that reform will improve and streamline the process of selecting judges while 
providing maximum transparency and greater opportunities for input by the people 
through their elected officials; and be it finally 
 
RESOLVED that South Carolina Baptists support only efforts of reform that conform to the 
principles of biblical justice and support the goal of more accountability, accessibility, 
and transparency in the selection of judges.   
 
The Chair asked for discussion on the motion. Hearing none, the vote was called, and the 
motion carried. 
 
David Bennett made a motion to adopt the resolution on ENCOURAGING CHRISTIAN 
CIVIL DISCOURSE:  
 
ENCOURAGING CHRISTIAN CIVIL DISCOURSE 
WHEREAS Jesus said, “Blessed are the peacemakers, for they shall be called sons of 
God,” reminding us that we are “the salt of the earth” and “the light of the world” 
(Matthew 5:1–16), and, therefore, we have a responsibility to speak biblical truth to the 
culture; and 
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WHEREAS Jesus called us to, “Love your enemies, do good to those who hate you, bless 
those who curse you, pray for those who abuse you.  To one who strikes you on the 
cheek, offer the other also, and from one who takes away your cloak, do not withhold 
your tunic either” (Luke 6:27–29); and  
 
WHEREAS Paul exhorts us to “let no corrupting talk come out of your mouths, but only 
such as is good for building up, as fits the occasion, that it may give grace to those who 
hear” (Ephesians 4:29–30); and  
 
WHEREAS Paul reminds us that “ . . . our battle is not against flesh and blood, but against 
powers of this darkness, against the spiritual forces of evil in the heavens” (Ephesians 
6:12); and 
 
WHEREAS Scripture instructs believers to speak graciously seasoned with salt, to speak 
evil of no one, to avoid quarreling, to be gentle, and to show perfect courtesy toward all 
people, demonstrating to believers how we are to speak to everyone made in the image 
of God (Colossians 4:5–6, Titus 3:1–2); and   
 
WHEREAS cultural and political debates over contentious issues such as sexuality, 
gender, abortion, doctor-assisted suicide, the treatment of immigrants, both legal and 
illegal, the role of government in our daily lives, and many other issues that are 
discussed in various public forums have escalated from meaningful debates to angry 
exchanges, leading to many areas of division in our country and a growing sense of 
anger and resentment as we treat one another like enemies deserving of our disdain 
instead of as unique image bearers of God; and 
 
WHEREAS we are currently engaged in a contentious election cycle where the rancor of 
political discourse is escalating exponentially and could lead to physical violence as we 
approach the next nationwide election; and 
 
WHEREAS many media outlets promote heated rhetoric to drive up the temperature of 
our cultural engagement and threaten our ability to dialogue free from derisive language 
and personal accusations; and 
 
WHEREAS angry rhetoric and personal accusations left unchecked can lead to acts of 
violence breaking the bonds of peace and civility that bind us together as a culture, a 
people, and a nation; and 
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WHEREAS many of our political, cultural, entertainment, religious leaders, and social 
media influencers seem reluctant to call for restraint and respect in our personal 
engagement with people with whom we disagree; and 
  
WHEREAS Christians have a clear biblical call to be ambassadors of peace in a 
tumultuous and fractured world where so many people are caught up in heated cultural 
and political discourse undermining our ability to live in peace with each other; 
therefore, be it 
 
RESOLVED that we, the messengers of the South Carolina Baptist Convention Annual 
Meeting held at Shandon Baptist Church in Columbia, South Carolina, on November 
13–14, 2023, exhort all South Carolina Baptists to be peacemakers in every area of life, 
including civil discourse; and be it finally 
 
RESOLVED that we call on our political, cultural, entertainment, religious leaders, and 
social media influencers, to exercise restraint in discourse, remembering to treat each 
other with respect and courtesy, thereby turning down the temperature of our current 
cultural climate. 
 
The Chair asked for discussion on the motion. Hearing none, the vote was called, and the 
motion carried. 
 
Doug Mize made a motion to adopt the resolution on HONORING THE LEGACY OF 
SCBAPTIST WOMEN AND CULTIVATING AN ENVIRONMENT FOR THEIR 
CONTINUED ENGAGEMENT: 
 
HONORING THE LEGACY OF SOUTH CAROLINA BAPTIST WOMEN AND 
CULTIVATING AN ENVIRONMENT FOR THEIR CONTINUED ENGAGEMENT 
WHEREAS the Bible declares that God created both man and woman by his own hand 
and in his own image and likeness, crowning them with dignity, value, and worth 
(Genesis 1:26–27, 2:7, 21–22; 1 Peter 3:7); and 
 
WHEREAS the Bible calls upon all believers to advance the Great Commission and 
demonstrates that women are co-laborers in the mission of God as evidenced by their 
pivotal service throughout history and in the early church (Matthew 28:18–20; Acts 1:8; 
2:17–18, 8, and 17; Romans 16:3; Philippians 4:3); and 
 
WHEREAS the Lord has specifically used South Carolina Baptist women such as the 
founder of the Widow’s Mite Society, Hephzibah Jenkins Townsend; the first National 
Woman’s Missionary Union (WMU) President Martha McIntosh; the first State WMU 
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President Janie Chapman; the first International Mission Board appointed missionary to 
Taiwan, Bertha Smith; the 37 noble, consecrated “State Lady Missionaries” appointed 
from 1886 until 1919 to help plant new churches, support, and strengthen existing 
churches as our state transitioned from an agricultural economy to an industrial-based 
economy; and 
 
WHEREAS South Carolina Baptist women continue to serve our Lord today faithfully, 
sacrificially, and courageously in our churches, on the mission field, through state and 
national convention work, holding elected offices, serving on committees and boards, 
missions education, and in positions in higher education; and 
 
WHEREAS the “Baptist Faith and Message 2000” states that “It is the duty and privilege 
of every follower of Christ and of every church of the Lord Jesus Christ to endeavor to 
make disciples of all nations [and] to seek constantly to win the lost to Christ by verbal 
witness” (Article XI); and 
 
WHEREAS the Southern Baptist Convention affirmed the gifts, ministries, and value of 
women in the kingdom of God in our 2018 resolution “On The Dignity And Worth Of 
Women” and affirmed the legacy of Southern Baptist women with a resolution thanking 
God for calling women to fulfill the Great Commission and urging churches to continue 
equipping them to make disciples in 2023; and 
 
WHEREAS our mission as South Carolina Baptists, to strengthen each church and 
saturate every life with the Gospel, requires the gifts, talents, and passion of South 
Carolina Baptist women engaging the church and culture in service to Christ through 
His church in both vocational and voluntary ministry positions; therefore, be it 
 
RESOLVED, that the messengers to the South Carolina Baptist Convention annual 
meeting at the Shandon Baptist Church in Columbia on November 13–14, 2023, 
acknowledge and honor the vital and immeasurable contributions of South Carolina 
Baptist women to our cooperative mission; and be it further 
 
RESOLVED, that we affirm the gifts of women in their distinctive God-ordained, 
complementary ministry roles as they fulfill their callings to serve Christ and advance his 
Gospel in diverse capacities such as local churches, the mission field, communities, 
their own homes, the marketplace, and within our convention of churches (Ephesians 
2:10, 5:22–33; Colossians 3:18–19; 1 Timothy 2:9–14; Titus 2:3–5; 1 Peter 3:1–7); and 
be it finally 
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RESOLVED, that we commit ourselves to encouraging, cultivating, and celebrating the 
callings, gifts, and contributions of South Carolina Baptist women while fostering an 
environment within our state churches where women are respected, honored, valued, 
and mobilized as co-laborers and equal partners in Great Commission work. 
 
The Chair asked for discussion on the motion. Hearing none, the vote was called, and the 
motion carried. 
 
MISSIONARY GREETING VIDEO 
Words of greeting were brought from personnel serving in Japan.  
 
PRESENTATION OF THE 2024 OFFICERS 
The Chair presented the 2024 elected Officers: 
 
President Wes Church, Columbia First Baptist 
President-Elect Chuck Sprouse, Ninety Six First Baptist 
Vice President Chris Spires, Murrell’s Inlet First Baptist 
Secretary Mike McCormick, Berlin Baptist 
 
The Chair asked Ryan Goodroe to lead messengers in prayer for the new officers. 
 
INTRODUCTION OF 2024 ANNUAL MEETING THEME 
The Chair introduced 2024 President Wes Church, First Baptist Columbia, who thanked 
Allen for his leadership during the meeting. As he considered 2023 of “Let’s Go,” Church 
wondered how long believers would be faced with the question of having to go. “How 
much are we going to have to give? How sacrificial will we have to love?” he asked.  
 
Church announced the 2024 Annual Meeting theme will be “Till All Have Heard,” saying, 
“We will respond to these questions with this…until all have heard, we must strengthen 
our cooperation, share Jesus, and send the Gospel. The theme verse is based on 
Romans 10:14–15.   
 
SCBAPTIST SEND TEAM 
The Chair introduced Send Team Leader Ken Owens, who shared his report from page 
19 in the Book of Reports. Ministry updates included work from Palmetto Collective, a 
cohort of college graduates called to missions, and Project 3000, an IMB initiative to send 
college graduates for two-year commissions to reach the remaining 3,000 unreached, 
unengaged people groups worldwide.  
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messengers saw a video report entitled “My Moment, Their Moment” from the first P3000 
missionary explorer, a Palmetto Collective alumni. Owens said this missionary has 
already led one person to Christ, who then led another to faith. The 2023 Palmetto 
Collective members joined Owens on the platform, along with Director Charlie Swain. The 
three-year-old project currently hosts 53 students. Through this program, we have seen 
a 40 percent increase in Journeyman applications in one year.  
 
Swain led messengers in prayer for Palmetto Collective students. 
 
IMPACT THEME VIDEO – LET’S GO DRILLING DOWN 
Following a themed video, President Allen introduced a third panel for discussion: Taylor 
Wolfe served in Sub-Saharan Africa, Stephen Wright served in Thailand, and Doug 
Derbyshire served in Thailand. Allen reminded messengers about the SCBaptist 
partnership with the Asia-Pacific Rim area. 
 
Allen asked missionaries to recall someone who would not have heard the Gospel if they 
hadn’t gone to the mission field. One shared about one new believer who said, “I didn’t 
know God, and no one I knew had ever heard of who God is.”  
 
One missionary shared the realization of their role as a Barnabus in the field to encourage 
native believers, and another confessed to leading his bodyguard to Christ through their 
personal relationship. 
 
Allen asked about a new Believer’s faith's impact on their family. A missionary told of a 
former witch doctor whose faith transformation was so dramatic that others who knew her 
were led to faith, and today, three generations of believers exist. Another missionary 
inspired messengers by sharing a new believer who was so excited about her faith that 
she invited friends to hear the missionary’s Gospel presentations, and seven people 
prayed to receive Christ in one weekend. 
 
Allen led the panel and messengers in prayer.  
 
MISSIONARY GREETING VIDEO 
Words of greeting were brought from personnel serving in Thailand.  
 
WORSHIP 
Worship led by the Anderson University Praise Team. 
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MESSAGE 
President Allen introduced Greg Mann, Asia-Pacific Rim People Groups Affinity Global 
Strategist with the International Mission Board. Allen referenced the five-year partnership 
in 2019 with the Asia-Pacific Rim, which was extended to 2025 because of the pandemic. 
Mann and his family have been church planters since 2003 and live in the Philippines.  
 
Mann said it was “refreshing to join hearts with believers” in the annual meeting context, 
having overheard conversations about engaging the lost and living on mission since 
arriving. “I praise God for South Carolina Baptists keeping the lost on your lips. Let this 
calling prepare you for the future as you engage the lost here and overseas,” he said.  
 
Mann referenced Acts 26:12–18 and turned messengers’ attention to how God is calling 
them to become more involved in lostness here and overseas and to be aware of what 
Jesus warns will happen.  He shared about his family’s experience serving internationally 
and the realization of the depth of lostness that existed in that country. 
 
“Let light shine out of darkness, and eyes will be opened,” Mann said while sharing one 
convert’s story of Gospel understanding. “The lost don’t know what God is like. It’s not 
because they haven’t been to church. It’s because there is no church [there].”   
 
Mann concluded by leading messengers in a prayer. 
 
RECOGNITION 2023 OFFICERS 
Dr. Wolfe recognized 2023 Officers for serving SCBaptists through their elected roles in 
the last year. He thanked:  
 
Albert Allen, President, Newberry First Baptist Church 
Ryan Goodroe, Vice President, Utica Baptist Church 
Brian Sherwood, Registration Secretary, Darlington First Baptist Church 
 
CLOSING 
Albert Allen recognized Parliamentarians David Brien and David Little for their service 
during the annual meeting.  
 
He invited messengers to return for the evening service at 6 PM.  
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      WAKE UP! RESPONSE 
WORSHIP 

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 14, 2023 
6:00 PM 

 
 
MUSICAL WORSHIP  
The Shandon Orchestra and a combined choir from Shandon Baptist Church, Anderson 
University, and North Greenville University led worship. 
 
Welcome  
President Allen welcomed messengers and guests and announced the final attendance 
count was 788. 
 
ANDERSON UNIVERSITY VIDEO REPORT  
President Evans Whitaker announced that Anderson University welcomed 4,200 students 
this fall and 120 international students enrolled in STEM graduate programs. He said the 
new Anderson football team is scrimmaging this year and will hold its inaugural football 
season in Fall 2024. Anderson’s Clamp Divinity School is the largest in the South, with 
almost 200 students studying in master's and PhD programs. Anderson is listed among 
the best 800 universities and ranked 25th in the nation for student engagement. Whitaker 
says he is grateful for the prayers and Cooperative Program support of SCBaptists. 
 
Anderson student Jonah Sims led messengers in prayer. 
 
CHARLESTON SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY VIDEO REPORT  
President Keith Faulkner greeted the messengers and thanked them for supporting the 
university. In the past year, 22 students made professions of faith, 1,100 students 
attended the weekly chapel, 300 attended a weekly worship service, 21 participated in 
GenSEND, and 71 were sent to missions. “Thank you for pouring into our students as 
we work together to advance the Kingdom, Faulkner said. 
 
Charleston Southern student Traikon Johnson led in prayer. 
 
NORTH GREENVILLE UNIVERSITY VIDEO REPORT 
President Gene Fant began by saying his school would celebrate 75 years as a 
cooperating ministry with the state convention. North Greenville shares excitement for 
what God is doing throughout South Carolina Baptist churches, and the school continues 
to equip transformational leaders and expose all students to the Gospel. The university 
recently held an oral reading of the Bible, maintained 24 hours a day for four days. A 
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global impact missions conference followed the reading. North Greenville recently 
received US News’ highest ranking in the school’s history.   
 
North Greenville student Nicole Dan led in prayer.  
 
RESPONSE THEME VIDEO – LET’S GO! DIALING IN 
Following a theme video, President Allen introduced panel guests whose identities are 
protected because some currently serve as international missionaries. The goal of this 
final panel was to make the call to missions personal for those in attendance. 
 
Allen inquired about the different types of “costs” they considered before answering the 
call to missions and how they process fear. The missionaries shared hindrances to their 
work and how someone could obey the call to missions early. The missionaries 
recommended praying or contacting the IMB.  
 
Each one had an encouraging message of a life well-lived in obedience to Christ’s call. 
 
“I thank God that each of you discerned God’s call in your lives and that you said ‘yes’ to 
Him,” Allen told the panel.  
 
MISSION GREETING VIDEO 
Words of greeting were brought from personnel serving in Korea. 
 
WORSHIP 
The Shandon Orchestra and a combined choir from Shandon Baptist Church, Anderson 
University, and North Greenville University led worship. 
 
INTRODUCTION OF TOM ELLIFF 
President Allen introduced keynote speaker Tom Elliff, a former field missionary to 
Zimbabwe and local church pastor for more than 40 years who served terms as IMB 
President and President of the Southern Baptist Convention.  
 
Elliff challenged everyone by asking, “Does God care if you care? That question has been 
weighing heavily on me. And it’s the emotional part of the Great Commission, rather than 
the obedience aspect,” Elliff confessed. “Because both are involved. How easy is it to 
sustain the works of the Great Commission if our hearts are not in it?”  
 
Elliff shared missional challenges from each chapter of the Book of Jonah. He used 
Scripture from each to show that in chapter one, “God cares whether I care,” in chapter 
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two, “God waited for Jonah’s prayer for repentance, so God cares when I care,” in chapter 
three, “God cares where I care,” and, finally, in chapter four, “God cares why you care.” 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Following a time of called corporate-led prayer around the platform, President Allen 
adjourned the 203rd Annual Meeting of the South Carolina Baptist Convention and invited 
2024 Convention President Wes Church to close the session in prayer formally. 
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1821 Columbia ...........  Richard Furman .......  .................................  Abner Blocker..........   ..............................  ..................................  ...........................  ..............................  ................................
1822 Fellowship .........  Richard Furman .......  .................................  Joseph B. Cook ........   ..............................  Richard Furman ....... Psalm 122:9 .......  ..............................  ................................
1823 Edgefield ...........  Richard Furman ....... Wm. B. Johnson ......  Basil Manly..............   ..............................  Wm. B. Johnson ....... Mark 10:15 ........ Basil Manly...........  ................................
1824 Coosawhatchie ..  Richard Furman ....... Wm. B. Johnson ......  Basil Manly..............   ..............................  Wm. B. Johnson .......  ...........................  ..............................  ................................
1825 Camden .............  Wm. B. Johnson ....... Benj. S. Scriven .......  Basil Manly..............   ..............................  C. D. Mallory ........... Eccl. 9:10........... Rev. Mr. Graham .. Zech. 6:2, 3 .............
1826 Greenville ..........  Wm. B. Johnson ....... Joseph B. Cook ........  Basil Manly..............   ..............................  Joseph B. Cook ........ John 13:19 ......... C.D. Mallory .........  ................................
1827 Edgefield ...........  Wm. B. Johnson ....... Joseph B. Cook ........  Basil Manly..............   ..............................  B. Manly .................. Acts 28:15 ......... W. B. Johnson .......  ................................
1828 Minervaville ......  Wm. B. Johnson ....... Joseph B. Cook ........  Basil Manly..............   ..............................  William Dossey ........ Acts 2:42 ........... W. B. Johnson ....... Matt: 6:10 ...............
1829 Charleston .........  Wm. B. Johnson ....... Joseph B. Cook ........  Basil Manly..............   ..............................  J. Hartwell ................ Acts 7:59 ........... N. W. Hodges ........  ................................
1830 Robertville .........  Wm. B. Johnson ....... Joseph B. Cook ........  Basil Manly..............   ..............................  J. B. Cook ................ Eccl. 9:10...........  ..............................  ................................
1831 Mount Moriah ...  Wm. B. Johnson ....... Joseph B. Cook ........  Basil Manly..............   ..............................  J. Hartwell ................ Eph. 1:7 ............. B. Manly ............... Mark 6:9 .................
1832 Society Hill .......  Wm. B. Johnson ....... Joseph B. Cook ........  Basil Manly..............   ..............................  B. Manly .................. 1 Cor. 15:58 ....... S. Furman.............. Matt. 10:8 ...............
1833 Newberry ...........  Wm. B. Johnson ....... William Dossey .......  Basil Manly..............   ..............................  W. B. Johnson .......... Eph. 1:10 ........... B. Manly ............... John 4:35 ................
1834 Barnwell ............  Wm. B. Johnson ....... William Dossey .......  Basil Manly..............   ..............................  J. L. Brooks .............. Heb. 10:24 ......... R. Fuller ................ Luke 13:7................
1835 Charleston .........  Wm. B. Johnson ....... J. Davis ....................  Basil Manly..............   ..............................  N. W. Hodges ........... II Cor. 5:7 ..........  ..............................  ................................
1836 Greenville ..........  Wm. B. Johnson ....... J. Davis ....................  Basil Manly..............   ..............................  H. D. Duncan ........... Mark 16:29 ........ J. M. Chiles ........... Matt. 24:14 .............
1837 Edgefield ...........  Wm. B. Johnson ....... J. Davis ....................  W. H. Brisbane.........   ..............................  J. C. Furman ............. Heb. 12:1, 2 ....... R. Fuller ................ John 13:31 ..............
1838 Bethel ................  Wm. B. Johnson ....... J. Davis ....................  J. M. Chiles ..............   ..............................  Wm. B. Johnson ....... Gal. 6:9, 10 ........ N. W. Hodges ........ Isaiah 60:1 ..............
1839 Black Swamp ....  Wm. B. Johnson ....... J. Davis ....................  J. L. Reynolds ..........   ..............................  N. W. Hodges ........... Eph. 4:30 ........... W. Harper .............. Acts 9:6 ..................
1840 Sumterville ........  Wm. B. Johnson ....... J. Davis ....................  J. DuPre ...................   ..............................  Wm. B. Johnson ....... James 1:17 ......... A. Rice .................. Isaiah 9:7 ................
1841 Society Hill .......  Wm. B. Johnson ....... J. Davis ....................  J.C. Furman..............   ..............................  J. L. Reynolds .......... John 19:5 ...........  ..............................  ................................
1842 Anderson ...........  Wm. B. Johnson ....... J. Davis ....................  J.C. Furman..............   ..............................  J. M. Chiles .............. II Cor. 5:14 ........ J. A. Lawton .......... Luke 15:7................
1843 Flat Rock ...........  Wm. B. Johnson ....... J. Davis ....................  J.C. Furman..............   ..............................  J. O. B. Dargan ........ II Cor. 5:14, 15 ..  ..............................  ................................
1844 Darlington .........  Wm. B. Johnson ....... J. Davis ....................  J.C. Furman..............   ..............................  Wm. B. Johnson ....... Col. 2:6, 7 .......... W. B. Johnson .......  ................................
1845 Gillisonville.......  Wm. B. Johnson ....... J. Davis ....................  J.C. Furman..............   ..............................  Wm. B. Johnson ....... Matt. 8:20 .......... J. C. Furman ......... Zech. 4:10 ...............
1846 Barnwell ............  Wm. B. Johnson ....... J. Davis ....................  T. W. Haynes ............   ..............................  J. S. Mims ................ Luke 10:21 ........ J. B. Taylor............ 1 Tim. 1:4 ............... 
1847 Beulah ...............  Wm. B. Johnson .......  .................................  J. C. Furman ............   ..............................  J. H. Cuthbert ...........  ........................... J.. L. Brooks.......... Prov. 11:24 ..............
1848 Greenville ..........  Wm. B. Johnson ....... H. D. Duncan ...........  J. C. Furman ............   ..............................  R. Furman ................ II Tim. 4:2 .........  ..............................  ................................ 
1849 Edgefield ...........  Wm. B. Johnson ....... H. D. Duncan ...........  J. C. Furman ............   ..............................  Prof. Edwards ........... Col. 2:10 ............ J. R. Kendrick ....... Matt. 6:10 ............... 
1850 Pendleton ...........  Wm. B. Johnson ....... H. D. Duncan ...........  J. C. Furman ............   ..............................  J. S. Mims ................ Phil .................... W. B. Johnson ....... Mark 16:15 ............. 
1851 Society Hill .......  Wm. B. Johnson ....... J. R. Kendrick ..........  J. C. Furman ............   ..............................  J. R. Kendrick .......... Acts 9:6 ............. B. W. Whilden ......  ................................
1852 Bush River* ......  Wm. B. Johnson .......  .................................  J. C. Furman ............   ..............................  J. P. Boyce ................ Acts 20:24 .........  ..............................  ................................
1853 Greenville ..........  J. C. Furman ............. J. G. Landrum ..........  J. J. Brantley ............   ..............................  J. J. Brantley ............ Psalm 133:1 ....... E. T. Winkler ......... Matt. 11:3 ...............
1854 Greenville ..........  J. C. Furman ............. J. G. Landrum ..........  J. J. Brantley ............   ..............................  W. B. Johnson .......... 1 Peter 5:8,9 ...... J. R. Kendrick ....... Matt. 16:30 .............
1855 Newberry ...........  J. C. Furman ............. J. G. Landrum ..........  J. J. Brantley ............   ..............................  R. Furman ................ II Cor. 11:3 ........ J. C. Furman .........  ................................
1856 Greenville ..........  Basil Manly .............. J. G. Landrum ..........  J. J. Brantley ............   ..............................  J. H. Luther ..............  ........................... J. C. Furman .........  ................................
1857 Greenwood ........  J. L. Reynolds .......... Basil Manly .............  J. J. Brantley ............   ..............................  Basil Manly ..............  ........................... J. J. Brantley .........  ................................
1858 Greenville ..........  J.  B. O’Neal ............ J. G. Landrum ..........  J. J. Brantley ............   ..............................  J. C. Phelps .............. John 3:8 ............. J.M.C. Breaker ...... Luke 10:23, 4 .........

Year PLACE PRESIDENT VICE
PRESIDENT SECRETARY ASSISTANT

SECRETARY
PREACHERS

 Introductory Text Missionary Text

*Adjourned meeting from 1851.

1859 Sumter ...............  J.  B. O’Neal ............ J. G. Landrum ..........  J. J. Brantley ............   ..............................  J. C. Furman ............. Acts 9:31 ........... R. Fuller ................  ................................
1860 Greenville ..........  J.  B. O’Neal ............ J. G. Landrum ..........  J. J. Brantley ............   ..............................  J. J. Brantley ............ Mark 14:8 .......... E. T. Winkler ......... 1 Peter 2:7 ..............
1861 Spartanburg .......  J.  B. O’Neal ............ J. G. Landrum ..........  J. M. C. Breaker.......   ..............................  J. M. C. Breaker ....... Matt. 5:14 .......... J. Huckins .............  ................................
1862 Greenville ..........  J.  B. O’Neal ............ J. C. Furman ............  J. M. C. Breaker.......   ..............................  J. C. Phelps .............. Job 7:17, 8 ......... L. R. Gwaltney .....  ................................
1863 Darlington .........  J. C. Furman ............. T. P. Lide..................  J. M. C. Breaker.......   ..............................  W. D. Rice ................ Psalm 116:12 ..... J.A. Chambliss ...... Rom. 1:14 ...............
1864 Greenville ..........  J. C. Furman ............. J. O. B. Dargan ........  J. M. C. Breaker.......   ..............................  J. A. Chambliss ........ Matt. 26:41 ........ J. O. B. Dargan ..... Psalm 67:1, 3 ..........
1865 Cross Roads ......  J. C. Furman ............. Z. Watkins................  B. Manly, Jr..............   ..............................  J. A. Broadus ............ James 1:5 ...........  ..............................  ................................
1866 Greenville ..........  E. T. Winkler ............ J. O. B. Dargan ........  B. Manly, Jr..............   ..............................  B. Manly, Jr. ............. 1 Cor. 15:25 ....... W. M. Wingate ......  ................................
1867 Anderson ...........  E. T. Winkler ............ J. O. B. Dargan ........  B. Manly, Jr..............   ..............................  Wm. Williams .......... Heb. 12:1, 2 ....... J. L. Reynolds .......  ................................
1868 Newberry ...........  J. L. Reynolds .......... J. O. B. Dargan ........  J. F. Morrall .............   ..............................  J. Culpepper ............. II Cor. 9:13 ........ T. R. Gaines .......... Rm. 1:18 .................
1869 Yorkville ............  J. L. Reynolds .......... J. O. B. Dargan ........  S. W. Bookhart .........   ..............................  J. K. Mendenhall ...... Prov. 11:30 ........ E. T. Winkler ......... Acts 11:4 .................
1870 Greenville ..........  J. L. Reynolds .......... J. O. B. Dargan ........  O. F. Gregory ...........   ..............................  J. L. Reynolds ..........  ........................... L. H. Shuck ........... 1 Sam. 4:13 .............
1871 Camden .............  J. P. Boyce ................ J. O. B. Dargan ........  O. F. Gregory ...........  A. W. Lamar .........  J. L. Reynolds ..........  ........................... J. G. Williams ....... Neh. 4:6 ..................
1872 Darlington .........  J. C. Furman ............. J. O. B. Dargan ........  O. F. Gregory ...........  A. W. Lamar .........  John Stout ................ Phil. 3:13, 14 ..... J. C. Furman ......... III John 7 ................
1873 Columbia ...........  J. L. Reynolds .......... J. K. Mendenhall .....  O. F. Gregory ...........  J. B. Patrick ..........  W. C. Lindsay .......... John 19:5 ........... J. A. Broadus......... Matt. 16:24 .............
1874 Chester ..............  J. L. Reynolds .......... J. O. B. Dargan ........  J. B. Patrick..............  S. W. Bookhart .....  T. W. Smith .............. Heb. 6:1 ............. J. B. Jeter ..............  ................................
1875 Spartanburg .......  J. L. Reynolds .......... J. G. Landrum ..........  J. B. Patrick..............  O. F. Gregory........  Luther Broaddus ...... Eph. 6:6 ............. R. H. Griffith ........ Acts 13:2 ................
1876 Society Hill .......  John  A. Broadus ...... R. Furman ................  O. F. Gregory ...........  Z. Davis ................  W. H. Strickland ....... Phil. 4:4 ............. R. Furman .............  ................................
1877 Greenville ..........  Richard Furman ....... B. W. Edwards .........  Luther Broaddus ......  E. B. Murray.........  C. C. Brown ............. Rom. 7:14, 5 ...... R. Furman .............  ................................
1878 Sumter ...............  Richard Furman ....... B. W. Edwards .........  Luther Broaddus ......  E. B. Murray.........  W. J. Alexander ........ 1 John 3:2, 3 ...... J. C. Hiden ............  ................................
1879 Aiken .................  B. W. Edwards ......... T. P. Smith ...............  Luther Broaddus ......  A. B. Woodruff .....  R. W. Sanders ........... Gal. 6:9 .............. J. A. Chambliss .....  ................................
1880 Camden .............  B. W. Edwards ......... T. P. Smith ...............  Luther Broaddus ......  A. B. Woodruff .....  J. L. Vass .................. II Tim. 2:1 ......... L. H. Shuck ........... Matt. 6:10 ...............
1881 Anderson ...........  B. W. Edwards ......... T. P. Smith ...............  Luther Broaddus ......  A. B. Woodruff .....  B. G. Covington ....... Matt. 13:31-33 ... F. A. Douglas ........ John 4:35 ................
1882 Darlington .........  B. W. Edwards ......... T. P. Smith ...............  Luther Broaddus ......  A. B. Woodruff .....  G. H. Carter .............. Matt. 9:37, 8 ...... Lucius Cuthbert .... Acts 16:9 ................
 Convention Sermon Text
1883 Charleston .........  B. W. Edwards ......... T. P. Smith ...............  Luther Broaddus ......  A. B. Woodruff .....  Charles Manly .........................................  John 4:36...................................................
1884 Marion ...............  B. W. Edwards ......... T. P. Smith ...............  Luther Broaddus ......  A. B. Woodruff .....  Chas. A. Stakely ......................................  1 Cor. 1:23, 24 ..........................................
1885 Greenville ..........  James A. Hoyt .......... John Stout ................  A. J. S. Thomas .......  A. B. Woodruff .....  G. B. Moore ............................................  Eph. 3:8 .....................................................
1886 Columbia ...........  James A. Hoyt .......... J. C. Furman ............  A. J. S. Thomas ........  A. B. Woodruff .....  J. A. Mundy .............................................  II Tim. 2:2 .................................................
1887 Sumter ...............  James A. Hoyt .......... J. C. Furman ............  A. J. S. Thomas ........  A. B. Woodruff .....  J. C. Browne ...........................................  John 17:3...................................................
1888 Orangeburg........  James A. Hoyt .......... E. C. Dargan ............  A. J. S. Thomas ........  A. B. Woodruff .....  E. J. Forrester ..........................................  John 16:8...................................................
 R. W. Sanders ..........
1889 Florence .............  James A. Hoyt .......... E. C. Dargan ............  A. J. S. Thomas ........  A. B. Woodruff .....  C. P. Ervin ...............................................  Eph. 5:15, 16.............................................
 R. W. Sanders ..........
1890 Union.................  James A. Hoyt .......... E. C. Dargan ............  A. J. S. Thomas ........  A. B. Woodruff .....  A. C. Wilkins ..........................................  Isa. 55:3, Matt. 26:38................................
 R. W. Sanders ..........
1891 Spartanburg .......  James A. Hoyt .......... R. H. Griffith ...........  A. J. S. Thomas ........  A. B. Woodruff .....  J. W. Perry ...............................................  John 14:21-23 ...........................................
 W. D. Rice ...............
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1892 Aiken ...................  James A. Hoyt .............. R. H. Griffith ............... A. J. S. Thomas ...... A. B. Woodruff ....... C. T. Scaife ......................  Mark 14:3, 4 ........................   ..............
 W. D. Rice
1893 Anderson .............  James A. Hoyt .............. W. D. Rice ................... A. J. S. Thomas ...... A. B. Woodruff ....... J. M. Mercer ....................  Titus 2:11, 12, 13 .................   ..............
 J.A.W. Thomas
1894 Chester ................  R. W. Sanders .............. C. C. Brown ................ G. T. Gresham ........ A. B. Woodruff ....... W. T. Derieux ..................  John 15:1-4 ..........................   ..............
 W. D. Rice
1895 Greenville ............  R. W. Sanders .............. W. D. Rice ................... G. T. Gresham ........ A. B. Woodruff ....... J. H. Boldridge ................  Luke 17:21 ...........................   ..............
 J. H. Hudson
1896 Charleston ...........  J. H. Hudson ................ Chas. Manly ................ G. T. Gresham ........ C. P. Ervin ............... C. S. Gardner ...................  1 John 1:1-3 .........................   ..............
 Jas. McIntosh
1897 Rock Hill .............  J. H. Hudson ................ E. J. Forrester .............. C. P. Ervin .............. A. T. Jamison .......... D. M. Ramsay .................  Acts 11:23 ............................   ..............
 C. T.  Scaife
1898 Darlington ...........  W. D. Rice ................... E. J. Forrester .............. C. P. Ervin .............. A. T. Jamison .......... E. E. Bomar .....................  II Peter 1:2-5 ........................   ..............
 C. T.  Scaife
1899 Gaffney................  W. D. Rice ................... J. E. Brunson ............... C. P. Ervin .............. A. T. Jamison .......... H. C. Buchholz ................  Phil. 2:5-8 ............................   ..............
 A. H. Patterson
1900 Greenwood ..........  W. D. Rice ................... Jas. McIntosh............... C. P. Ervin .............. V. I. Masters ............ W. C. Lindsay ..................  Matt. 16:19 ...........................   ..............
 L. R. Gwaltney
1901 Florence ...............  D. W. Key .................... Rufus Ford ................... C. P. Ervin .............. V. I. Masters ............ C. C. Brown .....................  John 14:1-3 ..........................   ..............
 J. E. Brunson
1902 Greenville ............  D. W. Key .................... E. T. Atkinson, Sr. ....... C. P. Ervin .............. V. I. Masters ............ W. S. Dorset ....................  II Cor. 4:18 ...........................   ..............
 C. A. Smith
1903 Sumter .................  Chas. A. Smith ............. L. C. Ezell ................... C. P. Ervin .............. V. I. Masters ............ W. J. Langston .................  II Tim. 2:2 ............................   ..............
 C. A. Stiles
1904 Chester ................  Chas. A. Smith ............. A. C. Osborn ............... C. P. Ervin .............. V. I. Masters ............ L. M. Roper .....................  Romas 6:12-13 .....................   ..............
 L. C. Hinton
1905 Columbia .............  Chas. A. Smith ............. W. H. Lyles .................. C. P. Ervin .............. V. I. Masters ............ E. M. Poteat .....................  Zech. 2:1-5; Isa. 9:7 .............   ........ 282
 J. T. Hiers
1906 Spartanburg .........  Chas. A. Smith ............. L. C. Ezell ................... C. P. Ervin .............. V. I. Masters ............ W. B. Oliver ....................  Matt. 13:38a .........................   ........ 243
 C. T. Scaife
1907 Orangeburg..........  Chas. A. Smith ............. T. M. Bailey ................ C. P. Ervin .............. G. P. White .............. Z. T. Cody ........................  Jno. 15:8 ...............................   ........ 244
 E. M. Lightfoot
1908 Union ...................  A. J. S. Thomas ........... R. W. Lide ................... C. P. Ervin .............. G. P. White .............. J. A. Brunson ...................  Matt. 28:18 ...........................   ........ 252
 Mike McGee
1909 Anderson .............  A. J. S. Thomas ........... J. J. Gentry .................. Chas. A. Jones ........ A. B. Kennedy ........ E. M. Lightfoot ................  Gal. 1:24 ..............................   ........ 350
 W. T. Tate
1910 Laurens ................  W. H. Hunt ................... J. D. Pitts ..................... Chas. A. Jones ........ A. B. Kennedy ........ J. F. Vines ........................  I Cor. 4:9 ..............................   ........ 282
 J. J. Gentry
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1911 Greenwood ..........  W. H. Hunt ................... O. Sheppard ................. Chas. A. Jones ........ A. B. Kennedy ........ W. E. Thayer ....................  Eph. 6:10 ..............................   ........ 319
 F. P. Covington
1912 Abbeville .............  W. H. Hunt ................... R. Ford......................... Chas. A. Jones ........ A. B. Kennedy ........ P. J. McLean ....................  Matt. 28:20 ...........................   ........ 276
 W. E. Thayer
1913 Bennettsville .......  Z. T. Cody .................... F. N. K. Bailey ............ Chas. A. Jones ........ E. S. Reaves ............ E. S. Reaves .....................  I Cor. 3:9 ..............................   ........ 290
 T. T. Hyde
1914 Charleston ...........  Z. T. Cody .................... F. N. K. Bailey ............ Chas. A. Jones ........ E. S. Reaves ............ C. E. Burts .......................  Matt. 22:8; Amos 6:6 ...........   ........ 279
 T. T. Hyde
1915 Greenville ............  Z. T. Cody .................... F. N. K. Bailey ............ Chas. A. Jones ........ E. S. Reaves ............ R. W. Lide .......................  Matt. 5:36; Mark 11:22 ........   ........ 310
 T. T. Hyde
1916 Newberry .............  T. T. Hyde .................... C. B. Bobo ................... Edward S. Reaves .. W. C. Allen ............. J. H. Mitchell ...................  Jno. 21:17 .............................   ........ 291
 F. N. K. Bailey
1917 Rock Hill .............  T. T. Hyde .................... C. B. Bobo ................... W. C. Allen ............ A. B. Kennedy ........ E. V. Baldy ......................  I Cor. 1:9 ..............................   ........ 264
 E. N. K. Bailey
1918 *Columbia ...........  T. T. Hyde .................... J. J. Lawton ................. W. C. Allen ............ A. B. Kennedy ........ E. Pendleton Jones ..........  Isa. 6:1 ..................................   ........ 217
 C. B. Bobo
1919 Columbia .............  C. B. Bobo ................... J. J. Lawton ................. W. C. Allen ............ A. B. Kennedy ........ John E. White ..................  Rom. 12:1 ............................   ........ 453
 A. T. Jamison
1920 Columbia .............  C. B. Bobo ................... A. T. Jamison ............... W. C. Allen ............ A. B. Kennedy ........ F. H. Martin .....................  Judges 7:7 ............................   ........ 411
 J. R. Jester
1921 Greenville ............  J. J. Lawton .................. A. T. Jamison ............... W. C. Allen ............ A. B. Kennedy ........ J. Dean Crain ...................  I Cor. 12:31 ..........................   ........ 426
 J. R. Jester
1922 Rock Hill .............  J. J. Lawton .................. A. T. Jamison ............... W. C. Allen ............ A. B. Kennedy ........ B. K. Truluck ...................  Gal. 6:14 ..............................   ........ 379
 J. R. Jester
1923 Columbia .............  J. J. Lawton .................. I. H. Hunt .................... W. C. Allen ............ A. B. Kennedy ........ G. W. Quick .....................  Acts 11:26 ............................   ........ 418
 E. P. Vandiver
1924 Spartanburg .........  A. T. Jamison ............... E. B. Jackson ............... W. C. Allen ............ A. B. Kennedy ........ B. D. Hahn .......................  Acts 17:32 ............................   ........ 392
 G. W. Quick
1925 Columbia .............  A. T. Jamison ............... E. B. Jackson ............... W. C. Allen ............ A. B. Kennedy ........ F. W. Putney ....................  John 20:21 ............................   ........ 578
 G. W. Quick
1926 Greenville ............  A. T. Jamison ............... F. H. Martin ................. W. C. Allen ............ G. P. White .............. E. C. Dargan ....................  Psalm 90:1 ...........................   ........ 382
 J. D. Crain
1927 Columbia .............  J. D. Crain .................... E. B. Jackson ............... W. C. Allen ............ G. P. White .............. C. A. Kirby ......................  Heb. 1:1-2 ............................   ........ 414
 E. P. Vandiver
1928 Columbia .............  J. D. Crain .................... E. B. Jackson ............... W. C. Allen ............ G. P. White .............. W. G. Moore ....................  Job 14:1 ................................   ........ 374
 E. P. Vandiver
1929 Spartanburg .........  J. D. Crain .................... W. S. Dorset ................ W. C. Allen ............ J. H. Simpson .......... W. M. Seay ......................  John 11:35; Luke 19:41 .......   ........ 376
 E. P. Vandiver
1930 Orangeburg..........  W. L. Ball .................... J. S. Corpening ............ W. C. Allen ............ J. H. Simpson .......... B. F. Allen........................  I Cor. 1:18 ............................   ........ 362
 B. K. Truluck
1931 Columbia .............  W. L. Ball .................... C. O. Milford ............... W. C. Allen ............ J. H. Simpson .......... R. A. MacFarland ............  Rom. 1:20 ............................   ........ 535
 E. W. Sikes 1

*The 1918 session was postponed from December 1918, on account of epidemic of influenza and was held in Columbia on Jan. 13th-15th, 1919.
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1932 Columbia .............  W. L. Ball .................... C. O. Milford ............... W. C. Allen ............ J. H. Simpson .......... J. H. Webb .......................  John 13:1, 4, 5 .....................   ........ 459
 E. W. Sikes
1933 Charleston ...........  E. W. Sikes ................... B. K. Truluck ............... W. C. Allen ............ J. H. Simpson .......... W. M. Jones .....................  1 Kings 8:17 .........................   ........ 385
 J. M. Burnett
1934 Columbia .............  E. W. Sikes ................... B. K. Truluck ............... W. C. Allen ............ J. H. Simpson .......... J. B. Caston .....................  Mark 11:22 ...........................   ........ 453
 J. M. Burnnett
1935 Greenville ............  B. K. Truluck ............... M. L. Bannister ........... W. C. Allen ............ J. H. Simpson .......... J. E. Bailey ......................  1 Chron. 29:5 .......................   ........ 496
 R.A. MacFarland
1936 Spartanburg .........  B. K. Truluck ............... M. L. Bannister ........... J. H. Simpson ......... C. M. Griffin ........... J. L. Vipperman ...............  Luke 24:26, 46, 48
 R.A. MacFarland ......... 1 Peter 3:18; Acts 2:24 ........   ........ 482
1937 Columbia .............  Chas. E. Burts .............. R. A. MacFarland ........ J. H. Simpson ......... C. M. Griffin ........... J. R. Jester .......................  Matt. 5:47 .............................   ........ 578
 J. E. Bailey
1938 Columbia .............  Chas. E. Burts .............. R. A. MacFarland ........ J. H. Simpson ......... C. M. Griffin ........... Paul A. Bolen ..................  II Cor. 5:11-19......................   ........ 553
 J. E. Bailey
1939 Greenville ............  R. A. MacFarland ........ C. O. Milford ............... J. H. Simpson ......... H. Floyd Surles ....... J. Elwood Welsh ..............  Matt. 9:9 ...............................   ........ 547
 W. G. Moore
1940 Columbia .............  R. A. MacFarland ........ C. O. Milford ............... J. H. Simpson ......... H. Floyd Surles ....... A. F. Guyton ....................  II Tim. 1:14; 2:2 ...................   ........ 493
 W. G. Moore
1941 Anderson .............  R. A. MacFarland ........ C. O. Milford ............... J. H. Simpson ......... H. Floyd Surles ....... W. R. Pettigrew ...............  Numbers 16:9 .......................   ........ 516
 W. G. Moore
1942 Columbia .............  C. O. Milford ............... W. G. Moore ................ J. H. Simpson ......... H. Floyd Surles ....... C. F. Pittman ....................  Heb. 10:35; I Tim. 4:10 .......   ........ 618
 J. E. Welsh
1943 Columbia .............  E. Gibson Davis ........... W. G. Moore ................ J. H. Simpson ......... H. Floyd Surles ....... Paul Wheeler ...................  I Cor. 15:10 ..........................   ........ 633
 J. E. Welsh
1944 Columbia .............  W. G. Moore ................ J. B. Aiken ................... J. H. Simpson ......... H. Floyd Surles ....... J. T. Gillespie ...................  John 18:37 ............................   ........ 589
 J. B. Caston
1945 Columbia .............  Paul Wheeler................ J. E. Rawlinson............ J. H. Simpson ......... H. Floyd Surles ....... F. C. McConnell ..............  Math. 21:43 ..........................   ........ 660
 O. K. Webb
1946 Columbia .............  R. C. Campbell ............ W. M. Seay .................. J. H. Simpson ......... H. Floyd Surles ....... E. F. Haight......................  John 3:16 ..............................   ........ 750
 W. R. Pettigrew
1947 Greenville ............  D. M. Rivers ................ J. L. Plyler ................... J. H. Simpson ......... H. Floyd Surles ....... A. Howard Wilson ...........  II John 1:8 ............................   ........ 804
 J. H. Kyzar
1948 Columbia .............  John L. Plyler .............. Joseph G. Wood .......... J. H. Simpson ......... H. Floyd Surles ....... Mark R. Osborne .............  Heb. 2:1 ................................   ........ 856
 P. L. McCall
1949 Columbia .............  J. E. Rawlinson ............ Duncan M. Dew .......... J. H. Simpson ......... H. Floyd Surles ....... Robt. E. Naylor ...............  1 Tim. 3:16 ...........................   ........ 869
 M. C. Donnan
1950 Charleston ...........  A. E. Tibbs ................... L. K. Simpson ............. J. H. Simpson ......... H. Floyd Surles ....... C. A. Kirby ......................  Acts 5:29-32 .........................   ........ 786
 A. L. Gross
1951 Greenville ............  John A. Hamrick .......... A. D. Denmark ............ J. H. Simpson ......... H. Floyd Surles ....... E. L. Larsen .....................  Heb. 2:3 ................................   ..... 1,044
 C. Frank Pittman
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1952 Columbia .............  L. M. Latimer .............. Lester Bates ................. J. H. Simpson ......... H. Floyd Surles ....... J. H. Simpson ..................  Matt. 7:13, 14 .......................   ........ 867
 R. P. Lamb
1953 Charleston ...........  L. K. Simpson .............. F. Clyde Helms ............ J. H. Simpson ......... H. Floyd Surles ....... E. L. Byrd ........................  II Kings 22:8 ........................   ........ 818
 J. Roy Robinson
1954 Greenville ............  Wallace R. Rogers ....... P. O. Batson ................. J. H. Simpson ......... H. Floyd Surles ....... C. Earl Cooper .................  Job 9:24; 23:3 ......................   ..... 1,078
 Jno. E. Huss
1955 Columbia .............  S. H. Jones ................... Edward L. Byrd ........... J. H. Simpson ......... H. Floyd Surles ....... John L. Slaughter ............  Isa. 54:2 ................................   ..... 1,245
 Mark R. Osborne
1956 Columbia .............  J. H. Simpson ............... E. F. Haight ................. H. Floyd Surles ...... Ollin J. Owens ........ R. Archie Ellis .................  Isa. 6:1 ..................................   ..... 1,230
 A. Howard Wilson
1957 Charleston ...........  *E. F. Haight ................ Thomas L. Neely ......... H. Floyd Surles ...... Ollin J. Owens ........ J. J. Boone .......................  Philippians 4:19 ...................   ..... 1,096
 W. W. Harris
1958 Greenville ............  Sam M. Smith .............. P. L. McCall ................ H. Floyd Surles ...... Ollin J. Owens ........ D. M. Nelson Jr. ..............  Romans 8:9 ..........................   ..... 1,772
 R. W. Major
1959 Columbia .............  John L. Slaughter ......... Chester F. Russell ........ H. Floyd Surles ...... Ollin J. Owens ........ David G. Anderson. .........  Mark 5:19, 20 ......................   ..... 1,289
 W. Austin Roberts
1960 Charleston ...........  **M. C. Donnan .......... John Murdoch.............. H. Floyd Surles ...... Ollin J. Owens ........ C. A. Arrington. ...............  Psalm 139: 7-12 ...................   ..... 1,452
 J. E. Rouse
1961 Greenville ............  John C. Murdoch ......... C. E. Compton ............. H. Floyd Surles ...... Ollin J. Owens ........ James P. Carroll. ..............  Romans 1:16 ........................   ..... 2,423
 D. D. McCraw
1962 Columbia .............  ***Charles F. Sims ...... David G. Anderson ...... H. Floyd Surles ...... Ollin J. Owens ........ Claude H. Hamby ............  1 Cor. 1:17-18 ......................   ..... 1,986
 Davis M. Sanders
1963 Charleston ...........  David G. Anderson ...... James P. Carroll ........... H. Floyd Surles ...... Ollin J. Owens ........ L. D. Johnson ..................  Ephesians 2:8-22 ..................   ..... 1,930
 James F. Burriss
1964 Columbia .............  James A. Howard ......... A. L. Gross .................. Ollin J. Owens ....... Wm. M. Page Jr. ..... Davis M. Sanders ............  Romans 1:16 ........................   ..... 2,282
 W. E. Funderburk ........ Matt. 16:18 ...........................
1965 Greenville ............  Robert W. Major .......... R. C. Blackwell ........... Ollin J. Owens ....... Wm. M. Page Jr. ..... Julian A. Cave Jr. .............  Matt. 5:13-16 .......................   ..... 3,148
 Clyde M. Johnson
1966 Greenville ............  J. Edward Rouse .......... Max M. Rice ............... Ollin J. Owens ....... Wm. M. Page Jr. ..... Robert O. Barker .............  Genesis 35:1-7; 11-15 ..........
 Joel C. Murphy ............ John 8: 31-32 .......................   ..... 2,362
1967 Columbia .............  S. G. Lovell Jr. ............. William L. Palmer ....... William M. Page Jr. Daniel W. Cloer ...... J. H. Barr .........................  Hebrews 10:10-14 ................   ..... 2,781
 B. F. Hawkins
1968 Myrtle Beach .......  Thos. L. Neely ............. J. C. Rice Jr. ................ William M. Page Jr. Daniel W. Cloer ...... Loyd Self .........................  Acts 13:36 ............................   ..... 1,739
 Mrs. D. C. Bomar
1969 Charleston ...........  P. H. Callison ............... M. B. Webb ................. William M. Page Jr. Daniel W. Cloer ...... Stewart B. Simms Sr. ......  Acts 1:12-14; 2:1-4;
 J.W. Crocker ................       42-47 ................................   ..... 1,699
1970 Greenville ............  J. C. Rice Jr. ................. Paul O. Batson Jr. ........ William M. Page Jr. Daniel W. Cloer ...... David J. Wells..................  Ephesians 4:13 .....................
 Ralph E. Lattimore ...... Galatians 4:19 ......................   ..... 2,038
1971 Columbia .............  W. Daniel Greer ........... Stewart B. Simms Sr. .. William M. Page Jr. Daniel W. Cloer ...... John C. Murdoch .............  Joshua 3:1-7 .........................   ..... 2,520
 Jim J. Smithwick
1972 Myrtle Beach .......  Stewart B. Simms Sr. ... R. Von King ................. William M. Page Jr. John T. Morrow ...... James R. Bruce ................  Isaiah 53, Gal. 6:14 ..............   ..... 2,199
 P. L. Baughman
 * Moved from the state. The two vice presidents assumed co-equal responsibilities of the presidency.
 ** Due to the illness of President Donnan, First Vice President Murdoch presided.
 *** Deceased, December 11, 1961.
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1973 Charleston ...........  P.L. Baughman. ............ James R. Bruce ............ William M. Page Jr. John T. Morrow ...... James P. Craine ................  Matt. 28:18 ...........................
 John A. Farmer ............ Ephesians 5:18 .....................   ..... 1,804
1974 Columbia .............  James R. Bruce. ........... Hovie D. Revis Jr. ....... William M. Page Jr. John T. Morrow ...... Ernest L. Carswell Jr. ......  Text: Isaiah 51:20 ................   ..... 1,849
 Henry T. Finch Jr.
1975 Greenville ............  Hovie D. Revis Jr. ....... Henry T. Finch Jr. ........ William M. Page Jr. John T. Morrow ...... R. Hayne Rivers. .............  Joshua 14:6-14 .....................   ..... 1,925
 Marion H. Hendrix
1976 Spartanburg .........  Carl E. Compton. ......... Posey Belcher .............. William M. Page Jr. John T. Morrow ...... H. Edwin Young ..............  Joshua 17:12-18 ...................  
 Ruth Provence ............. Song of  Solomon 1:6 ..........   ..... 2,087
1977 Columbia .............  Lloyd E. Batson. .......... Glenn E. Felmet .......... William M. Page Jr. John T. Morrow ...... T. Earl Vaughn. ................  I Cor. 2:1-5 ...........................
 John K. Durst .............. II Tim. 4:1-8 .........................   ..... 2,030
1978 Myrtle Beach .......  J. K. Lawton Sr. ........... J. R. Weber .................. William M. Page Jr. John T. Morrow ...... Ray L. Lundy. ..................  John 13:12-17 ......................   ..... 1,835
 James B. Mitchell
1979 Greenville ............  Alastair C. Walker ....... Loulie L. Owens .......... William M. Page Jr. John T. Morrow ...... Ted A. Mears ...................  Ephesians 4:1-6 ....................   ..... 2,036
 Donald C. Purvis
1980 Columbia .............  John E. Roberts ............ Dan T. Wallen .............. William M. Page Jr. John T. Morrow ...... Paul O. Batson Jr. ............  1 Peter 2:9-10 .......................   ..... 1,894
 Lonnie H. Shull Jr.
1981 Charleston ...........  Lonnie H. Shull Jr ....... Horace B. Sims Jr. ....... William M. Page Jr. John T. Morrow ...... W. Eugene Spears Jr. .......  Philippians 2:5-11 ................   ..... 2,095
 Alvin B. O’Shields
1982 Spartanburg .........  Horace B. Sims Jr ........ Donald C. Purvis ......... William M. Page Jr. John T. Morrow ...... Robert E. Cuttino ............  Mark 10:35-44 .....................   ..... 2,302
 W. Lloyd Hellams
1983 Columbia .............  B. F. Hawkins .............. M. B. Morrow Jr.......... William M. Page Jr. John T. Morrow ...... James W. Herron .............  Numbers 27:15-17 ...............   ..... 2,058
 George R. Dye
1984 Myrtle Beach .......  M. B. Morrow Jr. ......... R. E. Culbertson Jr. ..... William M. Page Jr. John T. Morrow ...... Earl D. Crumpler .............  Phillippians 2:5-11 ...............   ..... 2,313
 Arnold W. Eaves
1985 Columbia .............  Earl D. Crumpler .........  ..... 1,242
                                        
1985 Greenville ............  Earl D. Crumpler. ........ George R. Dye ............. William M. Page Jr. Bobby R. Wallace ... Alastair C. Walker ...........  1 Kings 21:3 .........................   ..... 2,462
 Jimmie E. Harley
1986 Columbia .............  George R. Dye ............. Flynn T. Harrell ........... William M. Page Jr. Bobby R. Wallace ... J. Kirk Lawton .................  Hebrews 11, 12:1 .................   ..... 2,296
 D. B. Webber
1987 Charleston ...........  Flynn T. Harrell ........... Jimmie E. Harley......... William M. Page Jr. Bobby R. Wallace ... Douglas N. Baker ............  John 8:12-19, 30-32 .............   ..... 2,246
 Mary Rome Foster
1988 Spartanburg .........  Jimmie E. Harley ......... Mary Rome Foster ...... William M. Page Jr. Bobby R. Wallace ... William L. Coates Jr. .......  Matthew 5:14-16 ..................   ..... 3,116
 Troy M. Gregg
1989 Columbia .............  Douglas N. Baker ........ Troy M. Gregg ............ William M. Page Jr. Bobby R. Wallace ... Norman E. Gillespie ........  II Corinthians 7:1-2 .............  
 Robert E. Cuttino ........ Romans 16:1-2 .....................   ..... 3,108
1990 Columbia .............  Robert E. Cuttino ......... Jack S. W. Ellenburg ... William M. Page Jr. Bobby R. Wallace ... Jesse Powers ....................  John 5:1-9 ............................   ..... 5,086
 W. Gregory Horton
1991 Greenville ............  W. Gregory Horton ...... William M. Page Jr. ..... Bobby R. Wallace L. Eddie Greene .......... Jack S. W. Ellenburg .......  Matthew 9:35-38 ..................   ..... 4,628
 Jerry D. Lethco ............ John 17:12-18 ......................
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 May 9 Called Convention to deal with Baptist College at Charleston matter
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1992 Columbia .............  L. Eddie Greene    .......       ..... 4,876

1992 Columbia .............  L. Eddie Greene ........... Stephen M. Cloud ....... William M. Page Jr. Marion H. Hare ....... W. L. Collins ...................  John 4:27-39 ........................   ..... 2,648
 Monty DuPuy ..............
1993 Columbia .............  Stephen M. Cloud ........ James W. Owens Jr ..... Helen B. Davis ....... J. Robert Cline Jr. ... Paul M. Sullivan ..............  Proverbs 29:18 .....................   ..... 2,946
 Steve Hogg ..................
1994 Columbia .............  Steve Hogg .................. Jerry D. Lethco ............ Joe Mack ................ Gerald A. McCants . C. David Gallamore ........  Romans 10:1-21 ...................   ..... 2,128
 Danny Hedgepeth
1995 Charleston ...........  Jerry D. Lethco ............ Ron Jackson ................ Ross Robinson ....... Brancie Stephens .... Pat Perry ..........................  Matthew 15:21-28 ................   ..... 1,796
 Joe Mack .....................
1996 Florence ...............  James W. Owens .......... Joe Mack ..................... Kenneth Spain ........ Ross Robinson ........ Glenn Ailshie ...................  Acts 16:9-10 .........................   ..... 2,129
 Wayne Dickard
1997 Columbia .............  Michael S. Hamlet ....... Keith Kelly .................. Adrianne Smith ...... Sonny Foraker ......... Ned Duncan .....................  Ephesians I ...........................   ..... 1,716
 Ross Robinson .............
1998 Columbia .............  David Gallamore ......... Bobbie Horton ............. Frances Miller ........ Greg Hasselbring .... Wilson Nelson .................  Matthew 14:22-36 ................   ..... 1,454
 Brancie Stephens
1999 Spartanburg .........  Dick Lincoln ................ Wayne Dickard ............ Adrianne Smith ...... Danny Burnley ........ Ernest Carswell ...............  Isaiah 51:1-2 ........................   ..... 1,310
 Howard Allen ..............
2000 Columbia .............  Don Purvis ................... Hal Lane ...................... Froline Thomas ...... Ed Rhodes ............... Don Wilton ......................  Ephesians 4:11; John 2:12 ...   ..... 1,379
 Sonny Foraker .............
2001 Columbia .............  Wendell Estep .............. Randall Jones .............. Joyce Sudduth ........ Jerry White .............. Henry Stanford ................  Mark 2 ..................................   ..... 1,298
 Tony Beam ..................
2002 Columbia .............  *Randal Jones .............. *Eddie Leopard ........... *Wanda Bridwell ... *Richard Porter ....... B. Carlisle Driggers .........  Matthew 6:24-33 ..................   ..... 1,450
 *Danny  Burnley .........
2003 Columbia .............  *Hal Lane .................... *Jerry White ................ *Louie Powell ........ *Rodney Hord ......... Eddie Leopard .................  Matthew 16 ..........................   ..... 1,220
 *Fred Stone .................
2004 Columbia .............  Wayne Dickard ............ Danny Burnley ............ Stella McGee ......... Wayne Revisky ....... Ken Hemphill ..................  Matthew 24:14 .....................   ..... 1,119
 James Merritt ...............
2005 Columbia .............  Jerry White .................. Jim Merritt ................... Brenda Barnes ........ Bradd Whitt ............ James Goodroe ................  Hebrews 12:26-28 ................   ..... 1,275
 Richard Porter .............
2006 Taylors .................  Don Wilton .................. Richard Porter ............. Frankie Lott ........... Jeff Whaley ............. Marshall Blalock .............  Matthew 28:19-20 ................   ..... 1,448
 Rodney Hord ...............
2007 Columbia .............  Mike Moody ................      ................................  .........................................     ........ 420

2007 Florence ...............  Mike Moody ................ Fred Stone ................... Linda Hite .............. Bill Lutz .................. James W. Austin ..............  2 Corinthians 5 .....................   ..... 1,155
 Adrian Allen ................
2008 Columbia  ............  Eddie Leopard ............. David Little  ................ Adrianne Smith ...... Terry Corder ............ Tom Tucker .....................  Joshua 24 .............................   ........ 999
 Brian Harris  ................
2009 Columbia  ............  Rudy Gray ................... Terry Corder  ............... Lynda Hopkins ....... Dusty Bradshaw ...... Dr. Luther Price ...............  John 6: 27-28 .......................   ..... 1,080
 Terry Pleasant  .............
2010 Columbia  ............  Fred Stone .................... Dusty Bradshaw .......... Linda Hite .............. Quinn Hooks ........... Ed Stetzer ........................  1 Peter 4:10-11 .....................   ...... 1255
 Brad Atkins..................
2011 Columbia  ............  Sonny Holmes ............. Brad Atkins  ................ Faye Carroll ........... Frankie Melton........ Richard Blackaby ............  John 12 .................................   ..... 1,673
 Brad Kelley  ................
2012 Greenville  ...........  Brad Atkins .................. Brad Kelley  ................ Jackie Ridings ........ Wayne Ellis ............. Michael Catt ....................  1Thes 2-3 .............................   ..... 1,104
 Frankie Melton ............  
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 May 15 Called Convention to deal with Furman University matter

April 26 Called Convention - Executive Director-Treasurer Election

*Officers names corrected from misprint in earlier edition.
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2013 Columbia  ............  Ralph Carter ................. Keith Shorter  .............. Shane Donald ......... Luella Sargent ......... Robert Smith ...................  Gen. 2:7; Gen. 50:20;  ...........   ........ 888
 Micah Lane  ................  Psalm 23:4; Psalm 30:5;  .......
   Psalm 34:19; Luke 22:42; .....
   John 16:33; Deut. 34:8;  ........
2014 Columbia .............  D.J. Horton .................. Tommy Kelly .............. Bart Kelly .............. Verla Bennie............ Thom Rainer ....................  Zechariah 4:1-7 ....................   ........ 951
 Shane Donald ..............
2015 Spartanburg .........  Tommy Kelly ............... Tom Tucker ................. Clark Carter ........... Brenda Barnes ......... Ed Stetzer ........................  2 Timothy 4:5 .......................   ........ 965
 Bart Kelly ....................
2016 Columbia .............  Tom Tucker .................. Bart Kelley .................. Naveen Balakrishnan Kathy Hall ............... Launch Out ......................  Luke 5:4 ...............................   ........ 757
 Bryant Sims .................
2017 Columbia .............  Keith Shorter ............... Bryant Sims ................. Larry Zaky ............. Adrianne Smith ....... Dr. Kevin Ezell, President, Mark 4:1-20, Living on .......   ........ 600
     Lisa Willard .................     North American ...............  Mission.................................
           Mission Board .................  
2018 North Charleston .  Marshall Blalock ......... Mike Runion................ David Dinkins ........ Frances Miller ......... None ............................... , None .....................................   ........ 747
     Josh McClendon
2019 Moore ..................  Bryant Sims ................. Alex Sands .................. Larry Zaky ............. Adrianne Smith ....... None ................................  None .....................................   ........ 760
     Larry Baldwin
2020 Columbia  ............  Josh Powell .................. Brad Vassey  ................ David Dinkins ......... Kathy Hall ............... None ................................  None ................................................. 487
 Seth Buckley  .............. 

{

{
{
{
{

{
{
{

2021	 Columbia..............	 Alex Sands......................	  Ron Henderson.............	 Keith Lancaster........	 Kelli Funderburke.....	 Alex Sands.......................	 None......................................	 ........672
			   John Goudelock.............
2022	 Columbia..............	 Wayne Bray....................	 Chuck Sprouse..............	 Rod Elliott...............		  John Avant.......................				       ........703
						      Wayne Bray.....................	
						      Robbie Gallaty.................
						      Willie McLaurin...............

2023	 Columbia	 Albert Allen...................	 Ryan Goodroe...............	 Brian Sherwood.......		  Tom Elliff.........................	 Jonah....................................      ........788

{
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Ministers ordained during the 2022-2023 church year
(Last name, First name, Church name, Association)

-C-
Childers, Roger
Southside Baptist Church, Broad River Baptist Association

-F-
Ford, William
Chesnee First Baptist Church, Spartanburg County Baptist Network

-G-
Garcia, Edson
Utica Baptist Church, Beaverdam Baptist Association

-J-
Jacobs, Tyler
Catawba Baptist Church, York Baptist Association

-R-
Robertson, Chazz
Gaffney First Baptist Church, Broad River Baptist Association

Robertson, Mark
Southside Baptist Church, Broad River Baptist Association

Rogers, Casey
West Spartanburg Baptist Church, North Spartan Baptist Association

-W-
Walker, Adam
Foothills Baptist Church, Three Rivers Baptist Association

White, Max
Cross Roads Baptist Church, Chesterfield Baptist Association
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Ministers licensed during the 2022-2023 church year
(Last name, First name, Church name, Association)

-H-
Holloway, Karl
Rockvale Baptist Church, Greenville Baptist Association

-M-
Merritt, Rob
Mt Airy Baptist Church, Piedmont Baptist Association

-P-
Pearson, Andrew
First Baptist Church Wagener, Edisto Baptist Association

-R-
Rogers, Casey
West Spartanburg Baptist Church, North Spartan Baptist Association

-S-
Sontag, Kevin
Glendale Baptist Church, Spartanburg County Baptist Network
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-A-
Aiken, Jerrold, R
Atkerson, Samuel, D

-B-
Barnes, Robert, C
Benenhaley, Eleazer, V
Benton, Joseph "Buster", B
Bolin, John, M
Borgkvist, Joseph "Joe",
Branham, Lester, P
Breland, John, H

-C-
Carlson, Randolph "Randy", J
Causey, Richard "Jack", W
Cline, Wilburn "Will", Lee
Crain, Herschel, L
Cromer, David, H

-D-
Davis, Larry, J
Duncan, Ronald, J

-E-
Eklund, Ryan, B

-F-
Farrar, Ronald, E

-G-
Gambrell, Warren "Mickey", G
Gibson, William, R
Gray, Leon, B

-H-
Hasty, Ronald, E
Hay, Kenneth, W
Hayes, James, B
Hinson, Homer, T
Hyde, Edward, F

-J-
Jackson, Alvin, H
Jumper, Robert, L

-L-
Lawson, Kenneth, D

-M-
Mew, Billy, L
Mims, Frank, M
Mullinax, Jack, B

-N-
Norton, Howard, W

-O-
Owens, William, L

-P-
Peek, Joe, F
Plemmons, James Carroll

-R-
Rutledge, Steve, A

-S-
Satterwhite, Ron
Southerland, Lawrence "Larry"
Stones, John, S
Styles, Jerry, W

Deceased Ministers
(Last Name, First Name, Middle Initial [if applicable])
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New Churches and Missions

2023 Annual

-C-
Charleston Cornerstone Church
City of Refuge Church
Cross Hill Fellowship

-E-
Elgin Community Church

-G-
Good News Vietnamese Church at Columbia
Grace Chapel Baptist Church

-H-
Harbor City Church at Carolina Bay

-I-
Iglesia Cristiana La Roca

-K-
Kingdom Church

Kingdom Community Church of Anderson

-L-
Living Stone Spartanburg

-M-
Ministerio Reconciliacion Church

-P-
Primera Iglesia Bautista De Lykesland

-T-
Ten27 Church

-V-
View Church 290

New Churches and Missions
The following churches and missions are listed for the first time in this Convention Annual.

Usually, this listing indicates that they were organized during the associational year.
Some may have been organized before this year.
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Statistics Summary and Tables 
 
Notes: 
 These statistical and financial tables contain a report from each church and mission in friendly 
cooperation with the South Carolina Baptist Convention. The Convention’s constitution does not 
make a distinction between churches and missions. In the case of missions, whose information also 
may be reported by the sponsoring church, there is the possibility of duplicate reporting of some 
statistics. 
 
 Except for the financial columns marked with an asterisk (*), all data is taken from the Annual 
Church Profile (ACP) as processed by the Ministry Support Team. This information reflects the 
church year as reported by the churches. The financial columns, marked with an asterisk, are from 
the Convention’s audited records and reflect the calendar year. There is no duplication of information 
in these columns. 
 
 The pastor’s name for each church is what was listed in the South Carolina Baptist 
Convention database system as of March 31, 2024. This pastor may not have been the pastor during 
the reporting period. 
 
 Each church is listed in the association in which it was a member during the 2022-2023 church 
year. Churches that transferred from one association to another during 2022-2023 are typically listed 
with the association to which they belonged at the beginning of 2022, the change becoming effective 
on the first of 2023. Following the list of associations is a list of churches in cooperation with the 
South Carolina Baptist Convention but not with an association. Every effort has been made to 
footnote changes in association membership that occurred since the last edition of the Convention 
Annual. 
 
 Any cooperating church with the South Carolina Baptist Convention that did not submit an 
Annual Church Profile has no statistical information listed. 
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STATISTICS SUMMARY 
 
 

 2022 2023 

Gain/Loss 
Number of Churches and Missions 2013 1,995 (18) 
Number of Churches and Missions Reporting 1,344 1,311 (33) 
Total Baptisms Reported 7,891 10,435 2.544 
Total Church Members 452,363 438,387 (890,750) 
Sunday School Average Attendance 94,178 111,066 16,888 
WMU Enrollment 29,456 33,152 3,696 
Vacation Bible School Enrollment 81,777 89,350 7,573 
Undesignated Gifts $396,712,447 $409,047,239 $12,334,792 
Total Receipts $507,987,955 $516,119,972 $8,132,017 
    
**Contributions through Convention (Jan. 1 – Dec. 31)    
    
Cooperative Program, SCBC Coop Giving, SBC Coop 
Giving** 

$25,903,749.14 $25,269,476.64 ($634,272.50) 

General Designations** $823,197.19 $1,055,563.07 $232,365.88 
Weeks of Prayer Offering** 
  

$14,938,868.94 
 

$14,230,425.04 ($708,443.90) 

**Contributions through the Convention were compiled in the Convention Building. All other figures are from the Annual 
Church Profile (ACP). 

 
Number of: 
 Pastors ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 1,836 
 Pastors - Associate or Assistant-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 384 
 Directors of Missions --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 38 
 Ministers of Children ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 749  
 Ministers of Education ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 131  
 Ministers of Missions ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 122 
 Ministers of Music -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 1,424 
 Ministers of Preschool ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 271 
 Ministers of Senior Adults  ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 176 
 Ministers of Single Adults ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 35 
 Ministers of Students -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 243 
 Ministers of Youth  ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 619 
 Messengers present at the 2023 Annual Meeting ------------------------------------------------------------------ 789 
 Ministers Licensed During the 2023 Association Year -------------------------------------------------------------- 5 
 Ministers Ordained during the 2023 Association Year -------------------------------------------------------------- 9  
 Ministers Deceased During the 2023 Association Year-------------------------------------------------------------41 
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ANDERSON UNIVERSITY AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

May 31,
2023 2022

ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents 25,650,514$      27,857,403$      
Short-term investments 17,548,232        17,713,828        
Student accounts receivable–net 2,027,156          1,013,897          
Government funds receivable 3,516,676          3,516,676          
Other assets 9,154,001          14,027,331        
Restricted cash 24,003,635        40,143,179        
Financing leases right-of-use assets 2,588,471          -                         
Property and equipment–net 143,763,607      126,957,680      
Investments held for long-term purposes 35,749,008        34,507,920        
Perpetual trusts held by others 3,971,889          4,136,066          

Total Assets 267,973,189$    269,873,980$    

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS:
Liabilities:

Accounts payable 6,266,660$        4,476,997$        
Accrued expenses 3,673,720          3,492,466          
Deferred revenue 4,767,164          4,381,944          
Financing leases right-of-use liabilities 2,910,753          -                         
Capital lease obligations -                         3,203,429          
Other liabilities 1,802,387          2,613,096
Notes and bonds payable 85,245,779        87,709,305        

Total liabilities 104,666,463      105,877,237      

Net assets:
Net assets without donor restrictions 119,078,610      122,783,834      

Net assets with donor restrictions:
  Restricted by purpose or time 19,384,108        17,176,126        
  Restricted in perpetuity 24,844,008        24,036,783        

44,228,116        41,212,909        

Total net assets 163,306,726      163,996,743      

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 267,973,189$    269,873,980$    

See notes to consolidated financial statements

-3-
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ANDERSON UNIVERSITY AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statement of Activities

Year Ended May 31, 2023

Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total

REVENUES, GAINS, AND OTHER SUPPORT:
Net tuition and fees 54,452,448$           -$                            54,452,448$           
Private gifts and grants 1,838,444               6,533,478               8,371,922               
Federal grants 278,172                  812,604                  1,090,776               
Auxiliary enterprises 18,982,178             -                              18,982,178             
Investment income–operating portion 1,132,743               955,820                  2,088,563               
Other income 1,324,793               -                              1,324,793               
Satisfaction of purpose restrictions 2,211,715               (2,211,715)              -                              

Operating Revenues, Gains, and Other Support 80,220,493             6,090,187               86,310,680             

EXPENSES:
Instruction 30,261,372             -                              30,261,372             
Academic support 7,002,660               -                              7,002,660               
Student services 18,949,208             -                              18,949,208             
Auxiliary enterprises 14,454,202             -                              14,454,202             
Institutional support 14,837,122             -                              14,837,122             

Operating Expenses 85,504,564             -                              85,504,564             

Change in Net Assets from Operations (5,284,071)              

NON-OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Investment loss–non-operating portion -                              (1,331,956)              (1,331,956)              
Change in value of perpetual trusts held by others -                              (164,177)                 (164,177)                 
Released for expansion of plant 1,578,847               (1,578,847)              -                              

Non-operating Change in Net Assets 1,578,847               (3,074,980)              (1,496,133)              

Change in Net Assets (3,705,224)              3,015,207               (690,017)                 

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 122,783,834           41,212,909             163,996,743           

Net Assets, End of Year 119,078,610$         44,228,116$           163,306,726$         

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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ANDERSON UNIVERSITY AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statement of Activities

Year Ended May 31, 2022

Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total

REVENUES, GAINS, AND OTHER SUPPORT:
Net tuition and fees 52,817,185$           -$                            52,817,185$           
Private gifts and grants 2,313,382               4,176,555               6,489,937               
Federal grants -                              5,295,905               5,295,905               
Auxiliary enterprises 17,228,744             -                              17,228,744             
Investment income–operating portion (1,124,303)              1,049,134               (75,169)                   
Other income 2,074,086 -                              2,074,086               
Satisfaction of purpose restrictions 5,933,823               (5,933,823)              -                              

Operating Revenues, Gains, and Other Support 79,242,917             4,587,771               83,830,688             

EXPENSES:
Instruction 27,692,461             -                              27,692,461             
Academic support 6,881,837               -                              6,881,837               
Student services 19,568,383             -                              19,568,383             
Auxiliary enterprises 13,174,447             -                              13,174,447             
Institutional support 14,896,955             -                              14,896,955             

Operating Expenses 82,214,083             -                              82,214,083             

Change in Net Assets from Operations (2,971,166)              

NON-OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Investment loss–non-operating portion -                              (2,826,013)              (2,826,013)              
Change in value of perpetual trusts held by others -                              (321,756)                 (321,756)                 
Released for expansion of plant 246,517                  (246,517)                 -                              

Non-operating Change in Net Assets 246,517                  (3,394,286)              (3,147,769)              

Change in Net Assets (2,724,649)              1,193,485               (1,531,164)              

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 125,508,483           40,019,424             165,527,907           

Net Assets, End of Year 122,783,834$         41,212,909$           163,996,743$         

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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ANDERSON UNIVERSITY AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended May 31,
2023 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Change in net assets (690,017)$          (1,531,164)$       
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
  to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation 8,216,947          6,286,625          
Amortization of debt issuance costs 47,061               37,942               
Noncash impact of change in accounting standard 634,581             -                         
Change in value of perpetual trusts held by others 164,177             321,756             
Realized and unrealized losses on investments 1,036,088          4,596,453          
Contributions received for long-term purposes (758,992)            (625,925)            
Loss (gains) on disposal and sale of assets (52,375)              6,656                 

Change in:
Student accounts receivable (1,013,259)         136,577             
Government funds receivable -                         3,579,100          
Other assets 4,873,330          (7,419,657)         
Accounts payable (815,415)            261,562             
Accrued expenses 181,254             31,885               
Deferred revenue 385,220             77,576               
Other liabilities (810,709)            (563,380)            

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 11,397,891        5,196,006          

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of investments (3,475,922)         (3,414,014)         
Proceeds from the sale of investments 1,364,342          1,623,614          
Purchase of property and equipment (25,440,521)       (8,076,481)         
Proceeds from the sale of property and equipment 5,108                 67,640               

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities (27,546,993)       (9,799,241)         

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Payments on notes and bonds payable (2,510,587)         (2,417,207)         
Proceeds from notes payable -                         43,618,343        
Recognition of debt issuance costs -                         (145,900)            
Payments on financing leases right-of-use obligations (445,736)            -                         
Payments on capital lease obligations -                         (472,060)            
Contributions received for long-term purposes 758,992             625,925             

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Financing Activities (2,197,331)         41,209,101        

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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ANDERSON UNIVERSITY AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(continued)

Year Ended May 31,
2023 2022

Change in Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash (18,346,433)       36,605,866        

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash, Beginning of Year 68,000,582        31,394,716        

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash, End of Year 49,654,149$      68,000,582$      

Cash and cash equivalents 25,650,514$      27,857,403$      
Restricted cash 24,003,635        40,143,179        

Total cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash
  shown in the consolidated statement of cash flows 49,654,149$      68,000,582$      

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES:
Total cash paid for interest 2,685,780$        1,566,557$        

Property and equipment acquired with outstanding payables 3,166,386$        561,308$           

Property and equipment acquired through capital leases -$                       511,882$           

Property and equipment acquired through issuance of notes payable -$                       16,381,657$      

Property and equipment acquired through right-of-use obligations 153,060$           -$                       

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash reported within the
consolidated statements of cash flows:

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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BAPTIST FOUNDATION OF SOUTH CAROLINA AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

2023 2022

ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents 6,278,077$        499,340$           
Investments 10,390,643        10,015,578        
Accounts receivable–net 969,296             248,849             
Investments held in trust 7,272,154          6,897,147          
Investments held for others 148,704,936      144,714,022      
Investments held for long-term purpose 6,303,559          6,003,799          
Property and equipment–net 395,979             404,657             

Total Assets 180,314,644$    168,783,392$    

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS:
Liabilities:

Accounts payable 54,385$             22,449$             
Investment certificates 6,716,531          250,000             
Accrued expenses 34,428               21,101               
Annuity and trust obligation 7,140,127          6,826,344          
Other liabilities 207,979             262,041             
Funds held for others 148,704,936      144,714,022      

Total liabilities 162,858,386      152,095,957      

Net assets:
Without donor restrictions 10,199,807        9,782,019          
With donor restrictions:

Restricted by purpose or time 1,455,039          1,339,538          
Restricted in perpetuity 5,801,412          5,565,878          

Total net assets 17,456,258        16,687,435        

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 180,314,644$    168,783,392$    

December 31,

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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BAPTIST FOUNDATION OF SOUTH CAROLINA AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

2023 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Change in net assets 768,823$            1,494,983$           
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
  to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation 13,243                12,468                  
Net realized and unrealized (gains) losses on investments (902,304)             194,538                
Interest reinvested in investment certificates 4,037                  -                           
Change in value of annuities (4,676)                 (24,625)                
Change in value of trusts (51,275)               78,176                  

Agency transactions:
 Decrease (increase) in investments held for others (3,990,914)          2,662,076             

Increase (decrease) in funds held for others 3,990,914           (2,662,076)           
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable (720,447)             186,915                
Accounts payable 31,936                (765)                     
Accrued expenses 13,327                3,302                    
Other liabilities (54,062)               (79,052)                

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities (901,398)             1,865,940             

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property and equipment (4,565)                 (9,825)                  
Purchases of investments (1,141,762)          (2,483,041)           
Proceeds from sale of investments 1,876,871           2,044,191             

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities 730,544              (448,675)              

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Payments to fund redeemed investment certificates (200,000)             -                           
Proceeds from issuance of investment certificates 6,662,494           250,000                
Payments of annuity and trust obligations (512,903)             (1,319,995)           

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Financing Activities 5,949,591           (1,069,995)           

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 5,778,737           347,270                

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 499,340              152,070                

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 6,278,077$         499,340$              

Year Ended December 31,

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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2023 2022

ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents 5,966,724$        250,000$             
Investments 4,694,607          -                           
Interest receivable 3,402                 -                           
Loans receivable: 827,699             -                           

Allowance for credit losses (90,545)              -                           

Total Assets 11,401,887$      250,000$             

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS WITHOUT
DONOR RESTRICTIONS:
Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued interest 330,922$           199,818$             
Investment certificates 6,716,531          250,000               

Total liabilities 7,047,453          449,818               

Net deficit without donor restrictions:
Undesignated (deficit) 3,817,112          (219,818)              
Capital adequacy reserve 537,322             20,000                 

Total net assets (deficit) without donor restrictions 4,354,434          (199,818)              

Total Liabilities and Net Assets Without
Donor Restrictions 11,401,887$      250,000$             

SEED FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.
(a subsidiary of the Baptist Foundation of South Carolina)

Statements of Financial Position

December 31, 

See notes to financial statements
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2023 2022

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS:
Support and revenue:

Contributions 4,616,385$        -$                       
Interest on loans receivable 7,094                 -                         
Investment income 262,349             -                         
Other 58,450               -                         

Total support and revenue 4,944,278          -                         

Expenses:
Program services 288,725             58,713               
Supporting activities:
   Management and general 101,301             141,105             

Total expenses 390,026             199,818             

Change in Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions 4,554,252          (199,818)            

Net Assets (Deficit), Without Donor Restrictions, Beginning of Year (199,818)            -                         

Net Assets (Deficit), Without Donor Restrictions, End of Year 4,354,434$        (199,818)$          

Year Ended December 31,

SEED FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.
(a subsidiary of the Baptist Foundation of South Carolina)

Statements of Activities

See notes to financial statements
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2023 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Change in net assets 4,554,252$        (199,818)$          
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net 
  cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Realized/unrealized gain on investments (166,604)            -                         
Interest reinvested in investment certificates 4,037                 -                         
Changes in:

Interest receivable (3,402)                -                         
Accounts payable 131,104             199,818             

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 4,519,387          -                         

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Loan advances (1,062,000)         -                         
Loan principal received 324,846             -                         
Purchases of investments (4,497,255)         -                         
Reinvested interest on cash and investments (30,748)              -                         

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities (5,265,157)         -                         

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Redemption of certificates (200,000)            -                         
Proceeds from issuance of investment certificates 6,662,494          250,000             

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 6,462,494          250,000             

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 5,716,724          250,000             

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 250,000             -                         

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 5,966,724$        250,000$           

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW 
  INFORMATION:

Matured investment certificates reinvested 200,000$           -$                       

Cash paid for interest 130,959$           256$                  

SEED FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.
(a subsidiary of the Baptist Foundation of South Carolina)

Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 

See notes to financial statements
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CHARLESTON SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

May 31,
2023 2022

ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents 36,075,049$      51,982,956$      
Grants receivable 3,105,232          612,476             
Accounts receivable–net 4,703,480          2,840,084          
Other assets 3,067,269 873,978             
Student loans receivable 826,157             1,248,235          
Cash for student loan generation 229,096             244,043             
Contributions receivable–net 1,709,707          1,932,592
Investments 49,844,792 30,812,446
Trust funds held by others 391,930             526,610
Property and equipment–net 102,859,861      104,340,704      
Beneficial interest in perpetual trusts 1,994,462          1,965,701          

Total Assets 204,807,035$    197,379,825$    

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS:
Liabilities:

Accounts payable 2,148,620$        2,089,582$        
Accrued expenses 3,023,614          3,683,425          
Advance tuition and fees 3,724,390          2,371,449          
Other liabilities 1,960,525          1,180,367          
Notes payable–net 7,958,911 8,550,626          
Bonds payable–net 46,226,611 48,215,737        
U.S. government loan funds refundable 1,120,664          1,350,199          

Total liabilities 66,163,335        67,441,385        

Net assets:
Without donor restriction 107,156,137      99,766,396        
With donor restriction 31,487,563        30,172,044        

Total net assets 138,643,700      129,938,440      

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 204,807,035$    197,379,825$    

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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 Without Donor 
Restriction  

 With Donor 
Restriction  Total

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net tuition and fees 45,667,574$          -$                           45,667,574$          
Auxiliary enterprises 14,846,115            -                             14,846,115            
Private gifts and grants 2,118,774 2,685,655              4,804,429              
Governmental grants and contracts 9,633,444              -                             9,633,444              
Interest on student loans receivable 89,508                   -                             89,508                   
Investment income–operating portion 868,294                 382,568                 1,250,862              
Other income 4,096,175              -                             4,096,175              

Operating revenue and support 77,319,884            3,068,223              80,388,107            
Net assets released from restrictions 1,580,609              (1,580,609)             -                             

Operating revenue, support, and 
  reclassifications 78,900,493            1,487,614              80,388,107            

Operating expenses:
Instruction 30,253,952 -                             30,253,952            
Student services 17,934,945            -                             17,934,945            
Auxiliary enterprises 12,801,804            -                             12,801,804            
Academic support 2,382,213              -                             2,382,213              
Institutional support (including fundraising) 10,482,907            -                             10,482,907            

73,855,821            -                             73,855,821            
Change in net assets from 
  higher education operating activities 5,044,672              

INDEPENDENT OPERATIONS:
Charleston Interstate Development Corporation and 
  Charleston Lodging Company, LLC (CIDCOR/CLC) 
  net gain (loss) excluding unrealized gain (loss) 
  on interest rate swap (Note 13 and 17) 92,023                   -                             92,023                   

Change in net assets from operating activities 5,136,695              -                             92,023                   

NON-OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Investment return (11,957)                  (139,625)                (151,582)                
Unrealized gain on interest rate swap 1,932,480              -                             1,932,480              
Unrealized gain on interest rate swap CIDCOR/CLC 332,523                 -                             332,523                 
Change in value in beneficial interest 
  in perpetual trusts -                             (32,470)                  (32,470)                  

Change in net assets from non-operating activities 2,253,046              (172,095)                2,080,951              

Change in Net Assets 7,389,741              1,315,519              8,705,260              

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 99,766,396            30,172,044            129,938,440          

Net Assets, End of Year 107,156,137$        31,487,563$          138,643,700$        

Revenue and support:

CHARLESTON SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statement of Activities

Year Ended May 31, 2023

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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 Without Donor 
Restriction  

 With Donor 
Restriction  Total

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net tuition and fees 41,860,866$          -$                           41,860,866$          
Auxiliary enterprises 13,750,503            -                             13,750,503            
Private gifts and grants 4,384,970 5,612,059              9,997,029              
Governmental grants and contracts 10,258,431            -                             10,258,431            
Interest on student loans receivable 693,589                 -                             693,589                 
Investment income–operating portion (12,426)                  550,200                 537,774                 
Other income 3,810,829              -                             3,810,829              

Operating revenue and support 74,746,762            6,162,259              80,909,021            
Net assets released from restrictions 2,021,387              (2,021,387)             -                             

Operating revenue, support, and 
  reclassifications 76,768,149            4,140,872              80,909,021            

Operating expenses:
Instruction 31,392,977 -                             31,392,977            
Student services 21,615,057            -                             21,615,057            
Auxiliary enterprises 11,389,624            -                             11,389,624            
Academic support 2,326,302              -                             2,326,302              
Institutional support (including fundraising) 10,465,470            -                             10,465,470            

77,189,430            -                             77,189,430            
Change in net assets from 
  higher education operating activities (421,281)                

INDEPENDENT OPERATIONS:
Charleston Interstate Development Corporation and 
  Charleston Lodging Company, LLC (CIDCOR/CLC) 
  net gain (loss) excluding unrealized gain (loss) 
  on interest rate swap (Note 13 and 17) 293,451                 -                             293,451                 

Change in net assets from operating activities (127,830)                -                             293,451                 

NON-OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Investment return (54,492)                  (1,044,633)             (1,099,125)             
Unrealized gain on interest rate swap 4,503,055              -                             4,503,055              
Unrealized gain on interest rate swap CIDCOR/CLC 801,296                 -                             801,296                 
Change in value in beneficial interest 
  in perpetual trusts -                             22,157                   22,157                   

Change in net assets from non-operating activities 5,249,859              (1,022,476)             4,227,383              

Change in Net Assets 5,122,029              3,118,396              8,240,425              

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 94,644,367            27,053,648            121,698,015          

Net Assets, End of Year 99,766,396$          30,172,044$          129,938,440$        

CHARLESTON SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statement of Activities

Year Ended May 31, 2022

Revenue and support:

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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CHARLESTON SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended May 31, 
2023 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Change in net assets 8,705,260$        8,240,425$        
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
  to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 5,639,167          5,388,048          
Contributions restricted for long-term purposes (1,509,290)         (2,512,662)         
Contributions restricted for capital projects (360,489)            (628,343)            
Provision for bad debts 995,974             325,371             
Realized gains on investments (4,513,884)         (627,311)            
Unrealized losses on investments 4,588,377          1,550,271          
Unrealized gain on interest rate swap (2,265,003)         (5,304,351)         
Contribution of perpetual trusts (61,231)              (35,878)              
Change in value of beneficial interests in perpetual trusts 32,470               (22,157)              
Gain on loan forgiveness -                         (342,704)            
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 3,500                 -                         

Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Grants receivable (2,492,756)         2,110,789          
Accounts receivable (2,859,370)         105,106             
Prepaid expenses and other assets 175,082             (465,857)            
Trust funds held by others 134,680             101,288             
Contributions receivable 356,089             (1,140,716)         
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (1,068,636)         (443,726)            
Debt issuance costs 17,507               17,509               
Advance tuition and fees 1,352,941          (294,826)            
U.S government loans refundable (229,535)            (376,113)            
Other liabilities 676,788             247,532             

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 7,317,641          5,891,695          

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Cash paid for capital additions (3,693,961)         (3,642,938)         
Purchase of investments (48,907,916)       (1,568,381)         
Proceeds from the sale of investments 28,716,182        186,371             
Loans made to students -                         (4,788)                
Repayment of loans to students 422,078             1,117,765          

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities (23,463,617)       (3,911,971)         

        (continued)        
See notes to consolidated financial statements
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CHARLESTON SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(continued)

Year Ended May 31, 
2023 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from contributions restricted for:

Investment in endowment 2,594,185          794,669             
Investment in plant 227,285             628,343             

2,821,470          1,423,012          
Other financing activities:

Borrowings on notes payable -                         250,000             
Payments on long-term borrowing (2,598,348)         (2,559,949)         

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Financing Activities 223,122             (886,937)            

Change in Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash (15,922,854)       1,092,787          

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash, Beginning of Year 52,226,999        51,134,212        

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash, End of Year 36,304,145$      52,226,999$      

Cash and cash equivalents 36,075,049$      51,982,956$      
Cash for student loan generation 229,096             244,043             
Total cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash
  shown in the consolidated statements of cash flows 36,304,145$      52,226,999$      

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE:
Cash paid for interest 1,831,207$        1,913,524$        

NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITY:
Capital expenditures via accounts payable 763,885$           296,022$           

Forgiveness of federal loans -$                       342,704$           

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash reported within the
consolidated statement of cash flows:

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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2023 2022

ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents 3,299,800$        4,797,513$        
Restricted cash 4,030,012          -                         
Contributions receivable–net 1,605,095          -                         
Prepaid expenses and other assets 356,854             368,519             
Investments 96,698,987        89,155,121        
Assets held in trust 1,730,565          1,589,101          
Property held for sale -                         190,000             
Property and equipment–net 4,969,485          4,544,128          
Beneficial interest in trusts held by others 11,553,538        10,071,230        

Total Assets 124,244,336$    110,715,612$    

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS:
Liabilities:

Accounts payable 350,958$           197,253$           
Accrued expenses 191,291             205,860             
Annuities and trusts payable 1,620,284          1,539,356          
Post-retirement benefit obligation 484,115             1,121,045          

Total liabilities 2,646,648          3,063,514          

Net assets:
Net assets without donor restrictions:

Undesignated 12,069,678        10,461,106        
Board-designated quasi-endowment 86,085,954        81,651,207        

98,155,632        92,112,313        

Net assets with donor restrictions:
Restricted by purpose or time 8,644,353          2,480,637          
Restricted in perpetuity 14,797,703        13,059,148        

23,442,056        15,539,785        

Total net assets 121,597,688      107,652,098      

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 124,244,336$    110,715,612$    

September 30,

Statements of Financial Position

CONNIE MAXWELL CHILDREN’S MINISTRIES

See notes to financial statements
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Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total

OPERATING SUPPORT AND REVENUE:
Contributions 6,295,423$           7,072,125$           13,367,548$         
Revenue:

Investment income–operating 3,252,195             822,805                4,075,000             
Gain on sale of property held for sale 1,870,704             -                           1,870,704             
Other income 512,664 -                           512,664                

Total Support and Revenue 11,930,986           7,894,930             19,825,916           

RECLASSIFICATIONS:
Satisfaction of purpose restrictions 825,226                (825,226)              -                           

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Program services 9,878,967             -                           9,878,967             
Supporting activities:

General and administrative 1,011,020             -                           1,011,020             
Fund-raising 1,844,539             -                           1,844,539             

Total Expenses 12,734,526           -                           12,734,526           

Change in Operating Net Assets 21,686                  

NON-OPERATING ACTIVITY:
Other components of net periodic
  post-retirement costs (59,432)                -                           (59,432)                
Post-retirement related changes other than
  net periodic post-retirement costs 656,587                -                           656,587                
Investment gains–non-operating 5,418,418             400,872                5,819,290             
Change in value of trusts -                           54,477                  54,477                  
Change in value of annuities 6,060                    -                           6,060                    
Change in value of beneficial interest in 
  trusts held by others -                           377,218                377,218                

Total Non-Operating Revenue 6,021,633             832,567                6,854,200             

Change in Net Assets 6,043,319             7,902,271             13,945,590           

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 92,112,313           15,539,785           107,652,098         

Net Assets, End of Year 98,155,632$         23,442,056$         121,597,688$       

CONNIE MAXWELL CHILDREN’S MINISTRIES

Statement of Activities

Year Ended September 30, 2023

See notes to financial statements
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Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total

OPERATING SUPPORT AND REVENUE:
Contributions 8,478,031$           116,199$              8,594,230$           
Revenue:

Investment income–operating 2,488,211             886,789                3,375,000             
Other income 490,536 -                           490,536                

Total Support and Revenue 11,456,778           1,002,988             12,459,766           

RECLASSIFICATIONS:
Satisfaction of purpose restrictions 961,546                (961,546)              -                           

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Program services 9,218,907             -                           9,218,907             
Supporting activities:

General and administrative 971,274                -                           971,274                
Fund-raising 1,767,477             -                           1,767,477             

Total Expenses 11,957,658           -                           11,957,658           

Change in Operating Net Assets 460,666                

NON-OPERATING ACTIVITY:
Other components of net periodic
  post-retirement costs (41,077)                -                           (41,077)                
Post-retirement related changes other than
  net periodic post-retirement costs 395,640                -                           395,640                
Investment losses–non-operating (18,144,880)         (3,485,847)           (21,630,727)         
Change in value of trusts -                           (83,453)                (83,453)                
Change in value of annuities 4,330                    -                           4,330                    
Change in value of beneficial interest in 
  trusts held by others -                           (1,095,240)           (1,095,240)           

Total Non-Operating Revenue (17,785,987)         (4,664,540)           (22,450,527)         

Change in Net Assets (17,325,321)         (4,623,098)           (21,948,419)         

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 109,437,634         20,162,883           129,600,517         

Net Assets, End of Year 92,112,313$         15,539,785$         107,652,098$       

CONNIE MAXWELL CHILDREN’S MINISTRIES

Statement of Activities

Year Ended September 30, 2022

See notes to financial statements
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2023 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Change in net assets 13,945,590$      (21,948,419)$     
 Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
   net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation 679,334             705,642             
Gain on sale of property held for sale (1,870,704)         -                         
Realized and unrealized (gains) losses on long-term investments (8,465,737)         20,654,972        
Actuarial change of annuities (6,060)                (4,330)                
Change in value of trusts (54,477)              83,453               
Change in value of beneficial interest in trusts held by others (377,218)            1,095,240          
Contributions restricted for long-term purposes (1,361,337)         (94,847)              

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Contributions receivable–net (1,605,095)         -                         
Prepaid expenses and other assets 11,665               88,499               
Accounts payable 153,705             (94,962)              
Accrued expenses (14,569)              31,577               
Post-retirement benefit obligation (636,930)            (376,093)            

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 398,167             140,732             

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property and equipment (1,103,457)         (839,504)            
Purchases of investments (33,266,896)       (24,873,191)       
Proceeds from the sale of property held for sale 2,059,470          -                         
Proceeds from the sale of investments 34,275,393        26,847,586        

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 1,964,510          1,134,891          

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Payments on annuities and trusts (86,625)              (41,870)              
Contributions restricted for endowment 256,247             94,847               

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 169,622             52,977               

Net Change in Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash 2,532,299          1,328,600          

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash, Beginning of Year 4,797,513          3,468,913          

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash, End of Year 7,329,812$        4,797,513$        

CONNIE MAXWELL CHILDREN’S MINISTRIES

Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended September 30,

See notes to financial statements
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2023 2022

CONNIE MAXWELL CHILDREN’S MINISTRIES

Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended September 30,

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash, 
  cash equivalents, and restricted cash:

Cash and cash equivalents 3,299,800$        4,797,513$        
Restricted cash 4,030,012 - 

7,329,812$        4,797,513$        

See notes to financial statements
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NORTH GREENVILLE UNIVERSITY 

Statements of Financial Position

May 31, 
2023 2022

Cash and cash equivalents 5,759,672$        11,559,016$      
899,113             1,175,001          

Government funds receivable 8,730,711 -                         
Investments 1,599,179 4,358,638          
Other assets 1,321,149          644,724             

66,975,735        64,417,821        
Investments held for long-term purposes 33,520,777 34,787,736        
Beneficial interest in trusts held by others 2,021,169          2,068,332          

Total Assets 120,827,505$    119,011,268$    

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS:
Liabilities:

Accounts payable 1,903,535$        526,800$           
Accrued expenses 3,710,358          3,301,721          
Deferred revenue 4,046,326          4,120,163          
Other liabilities 434,831             509,761             
Notes payable 50,411               114,688             

Total liabilities 10,145,461        8,573,133          

Net assets:
Without donor restrictions 69,807,085        69,868,000        

With donor restrictions:
Restricted by purpose or time 14,436,864        14,721,694        
Restricted in perpetuity 26,438,095        25,848,441        

40,874,959        40,570,135        

Total net assets 110,682,044      110,438,135      

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 120,827,505$    119,011,268$    

ASSETS:

See notes to financial statements
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NORTH GREENVILLE UNIVERSITY 

Statement of Activities

Year Ended May 31, 2023

Total

REVENUES, GAINS, AND OTHER SUPPORT:
Net tuition and fees 22,659,824$       -$                        -$                        22,659,824$       
Contributions of financial assets 1,244,125           3,833,429           634,568              5,712,122           
Federal grants 8,993,490           -                          -                          8,993,490           
Auxiliary enterprises 16,064,602         -                          -                          16,064,602         

4,168                  -                          -                          4,168                  
Other income 415,030              -                          -                          415,030              
Satisfaction of purpose and time restrictions 3,932,901           (3,899,656)          (33,245)               -                          

Operating Revenues, Gains, and Other Support 53,314,140         (66,227)               601,323              53,849,236         

EXPENSES:
Program services:

Instruction 17,259,176         -                          -                          17,259,176         
Academic support 5,882,410           -                          -                          5,882,410           
Student services 11,283,899         -                          -                          11,283,899         
Auxiliary enterprises 11,147,030         -                          -                          11,147,030         

45,572,515         -                          -                          45,572,515         

Institutional support:
General & administrative 6,512,042           -                          -                          6,512,042           
Fundraising 1,198,296           -                          -                          1,198,296           

7,710,338           -                          -                          7,710,338           

Operating Expenses 53,282,853         -                          -                          53,282,853         

Change in Net Assets from Operations 31,287                

NONOPERATING ACTIVITIES:  
(92,202)               (218,603)             35,494                (275,311)             

Change in value of trusts -                          -                          (47,163)               (47,163)               
Change in Nonoperating Net Assets (92,202)               (218,603)             (11,669)               (322,474)             

Change in Net Assets (60,915)               (284,830)             589,654              243,909              

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 69,868,000         14,721,694         25,848,441         110,438,135       

Net Assets, End of Year 69,807,085$       14,436,864$       26,438,095$       110,682,044$     

 Without Donor 
Restriction 

With Donor Restriction
 Restricted by 

Purpose or Time 
 Restricted in 

Perpetuity 

See notes to financial statements
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NORTH GREENVILLE UNIVERSITY 

Statement of Activities

Year Ended May 31, 2022

Total

REVENUES, GAINS, AND OTHER SUPPORT:
Net tuition and fees 22,540,760$       -$                        -$                        22,540,760$       
Contributions of financial assets 1,601,636           3,754,650           193,311              5,549,597           
Federal grants -                          7,736,261           -                          7,736,261           
Auxiliary enterprises 15,217,211         -                          -                          15,217,211         

411,206              -                          -                          411,206              
Other income 362,617              -                          -                          362,617              
Satisfaction of purpose and time restrictions 11,558,531         (11,086,038)        (472,493)             -                          

Operating Revenues, Gains, and Other Support 51,691,961         404,873              (279,182)             51,817,652         

EXPENSES:
Program services:

Instruction 15,928,750         -                          -                          15,928,750         
Academic support 5,437,616           -                          -                          5,437,616           
Student services 12,834,826         -                          -                          12,834,826         
Auxiliary enterprises 10,492,106         -                          -                          10,492,106         

44,693,298         -                          -                          44,693,298         
Institutional support:

General & administrative 5,866,201           -                          -                          5,866,201           
Fundraising 872,993              -                          -                          872,993              

6,739,194           -                          -                          6,739,194           

Operating Expenses 51,432,492         -                          -                          51,432,492         

Change in Net Assets from Operations 259,469              

NONOPERATING ACTIVITIES:
(578,828)             (2,576,344)          -                          (3,155,172)          

Change in value of trusts -                          -                          8,119                  8,119                  

Change in Nonoperating Net Assets (578,828)             (2,576,344)          8,119                  (3,147,053)          

Change in Net Assets (319,359)             (2,171,471)          (271,063)             (2,761,893)          

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 70,187,359         16,893,165         26,119,504         113,200,028       

Net Assets, End of Year 69,868,000$       14,721,694$       25,848,441$       110,438,135$     

With Donor Restriction
 Without Donor 

Restriction 
 Restricted by 

Purpose or Time 
 Restricted in 

Perpetuity 

See notes to financial statements
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NORTH GREENVILLE UNIVERSITY 

Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended May 31, 
2023 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Change in net assets 243,909$         (2,761,893)$    
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
  provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation 3,362,536        3,108,587        
Contributions to be used for long-term purposes (2,127,309)      (1,705,486)      
Change in value of trusts 47,163             8,119               
Realized and unrealized losses on investments 810,797           3,604,756        
Gain on disposal of property and equipment 78,893             (4,116)             

Change in:
Student accounts receivable 275,888           (190,282)         
Government funds receivable (8,730,711)      -                      
Other assets (676,425)         206,928           
Accounts payable 1,376,735        (158,325)         
Accrued expenses 408,637           (573,554)         
Deferred revenue (73,837)           (236,638)         
Other liabilities (1,545,441)      (121,837)         

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities (6,549,165)      1,176,259        

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of investments (1,676,677)      (1,210,693)      
Proceeds from the sale of investments 4,892,298        1,941,776        
Purchase of property and equipment (4,827,224)      (5,205,864)      
Proceeds from the sale of property and equipment 298,392           997,047           

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities (1,313,211)      (3,477,734)      

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Payments on notes payable (64,277)           (66,360)           
Contributions to be used for long-term purposes 2,127,309        1,705,486        

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 2,063,032        1,639,126        

Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents (5,799,344)      (662,349)         

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 11,559,016      12,221,365      

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 5,759,672$      11,559,016$    

NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property and equipment via accounts payable 1,470,511$      -$                    

See notes to financial statements
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2023 2022

ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents 3,871,127$        4,268,765$       
Receivables and other assets (net of allowance of $0) 491,738 613,508
Contributions receivable 861,401             1,273,524
Investments 28,063,587 28,254,713
Property and equipment–net 8,460,505          8,597,897         
Beneficial interest in trusts held by others 16,137,596        15,423,818       

Total Assets 57,885,954$      58,432,225$      

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS:
Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 3,737,550$        4,839,336$       
Post-retirement benefit obligation 3,289,721          2,867,035         

Total liabilities 7,027,271          7,706,371         

Net assets:
Net assets without donor restrictions:

Undesignated 7,028,063          17,405,480       
Management-designated–Generosity Projects 169,125             591,825            
Management-designated–10x10 Plan 10,000,000        -                        
Board-designated–Contingent Reserves 5,140,203          4,795,882         
Equity in property and equipment 8,460,505          8,597,897         

30,797,896        31,391,084       

Net assets with donor restrictions:
Restricted by purpose or time 3,923,191          3,910,952         
Restricted in perpetuity 16,137,596        15,423,818       

20,060,787        19,334,770       

Total net assets 50,858,683        50,725,854       

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 57,885,954$      58,432,225$     

SOUTH CAROLINA BAPTIST CONVENTION

Statements of Financial Position

 December 31,

See notes to financial statements
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2023 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Change in net assets 132,829$           (2,677,308)$       
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
  net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation 452,746             421,148             
Realized losses on disposal of assets 27,820               89,320               
Unrealized (gains) losses on investments (1,140,603)         1,560,233          
Realized (gains) losses on investments (852,777)            211,827             
Contributions restricted for long-term purposes (129,755)            (676,354)            
Change in value of beneficial interest in trusts held by others (584,023)            661,195             

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Receivables and other assets 121,770             (388,580)            
Contributions receivable 412,123             373,582             
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (1,101,786)         170,484             
Post-retirement benefit obligation 422,686             (1,045,276)         

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities (2,238,970)         (1,299,729)         

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of investments (5,330,323)         (698,168)            
Proceeds from the sale of investments 7,514,829          2,217,810          
Proceeds from the sale of property held for sale -                         805,631             
Purchase of property and equipment (357,099)            (1,154,838)         
Proceeds from the sale of property and equipment 13,925               25,000               

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 1,841,332          1,195,435          

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents (397,638)            (104,294)            

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 4,268,765          4,373,059          

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 3,871,127$        4,268,765$        

SOUTH CAROLINA BAPTIST CONVENTION

Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31,

See notes to financial statements
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SCBMA

Statements of Financial Position

September 30, 
2023 2022

ASSETS:
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 2,395,400$        3,832,454$        
Investments available for unrestricted use 4,301,667 2,879,078          
Accounts receivable–net 3,017,143 4,449,146          
Contributions receivable–net 131,700 127,794             
Prepaid expenses and other assets 113,337 182,459             

9,959,247          11,470,931        
Contributions receivable 161,659             157,057             
Financing lease–right of use assets 153,809 -                         
Property and equipment–net 31,112,196 32,948,423        
Investments held for long-term purposes 2,173,689          2,136,866          
Beneficial interest in:

Charitable remainder trusts held by others 1,172,467          1,039,429          
Perpetual trusts 8,471,871          7,053,990          

Total Assets 53,204,938$      54,806,696$      

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS:
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 2,013,597$        692,434$           
Accrued expenses 917,820             858,054             
Current portion of capital lease obligation -                         7,340                 
Current portion of note payable–net 757,600             757,600             
Current portion of financing lease obligation -                         -                         

3,689,017          2,315,428          
Note payable–net 16,424,422        17,665,688        
Financing lease obligations 156,958 -                         
Residents’ deposits–refundable portion 1,107,343          789,075             
Deferred revenue 748,929             1,041,060          

Total liabilities 22,126,669        21,811,251        

Net assets:
Without donor restrictions 17,440,997        21,247,050        
With donor restrictions 13,637,272        11,748,395        

Total net assets 31,078,269        32,995,445        

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 53,204,938$      54,806,696$      

See notes to financial statements
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SCBMA

Statement of Operations

Year Ended September 30, 2023

Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total

SUPPORT AND REVENUE:
Net resident services 21,564,851$      -$                       21,564,851$      
Contributions 3,221,798          305,894             3,527,692          
Investment income 694,726             -                         694,726             
Other revenue 861,318             -                         861,318             

Total Operating Support and Revenue 26,342,693        305,894             26,648,587        

RECLASSIFICATIONS:
Satisfaction of purpose restrictions 78,140               (78,140)              -                         

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Program services:

Resident services 26,455,575        -                         26,455,575        
Supporting activities:

Management and general 3,645,456          -                         3,645,456          
Fundraising 125,855             -                         125,855             

Total Operating Expenses 30,226,886        -                         30,226,886        

Change in Net Assets from Operating Activities (3,806,053)         

NON-OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Investment income -                         110,204             110,204             
Contributions of interests in charitable trusts -                         91,588               91,588               
Contributions of perpetual trusts 1,085,810          1,085,810          
Change in value of beneficial interest in trusts -                         373,521             373,521             

Total Non-Operating Activities -                         1,661,123          1,661,123          

Change in Net Assets (3,806,053)         1,888,877          (1,917,176)         

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 21,247,050        11,748,395        32,995,445        

Net Assets, End of Year 17,440,997$      13,637,272$      31,078,269$      

See notes to financial statements
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SCBMA

Statement of Operations

Year Ended September 30, 2022

Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total

SUPPORT AND REVENUE:
Net resident services 23,010,618$      -$                       23,010,618$      
Contributions 2,816,221          222,150             3,038,371          
Government grants 542,115             -                         542,115             
Investment income 200,954             -                         200,954             
Other revenue 386,511             -                         386,511             

Total Operating Support and Revenue 26,956,419        222,150             27,178,569        

RECLASSIFICATIONS:
Satisfaction of purpose restrictions 293,841             (293,841)            -                         

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Program services:

Resident services 24,109,875        -                         24,109,875        
Supporting activities:

Management and general 3,558,362          -                         3,558,362          
Fundraising 151,957             -                         151,957             

Total Operating Expenses 27,820,194        -                         27,820,194        

Change in Net Assets from Operating Activities (569,934)            

NON-OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Investment losses -                         (11,945)              (11,945)              
Contributions of perpetual trusts -                         239,852             239,852             
Change in value of beneficial interest in trusts -                         (688,451)            (688,451)            

Total Non-Operating Activities -                         (460,544)            (460,544)            

Change in Net Assets (569,934)            (532,235)            (1,102,169)         

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 21,816,984        12,280,630        34,097,614        

Net Assets, End of Year 21,247,050$      11,748,395$      32,995,445$      

See notes to financial statements
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SCBMA

Statements of Cash Flows 

Year Ended September 30,
2023 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Change in net assets (1,917,176)$       (1,102,169)$       
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
  to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 2,966,572          2,904,004          
Amortization of financing lease-right of use assets 36,190               -                         
Amortization of advance fees (194,012)            (284,191)            
Provision for bad debts 861,611             353,144             
Change in allowance for uncollectible accounts 914,981             (197,144)            
Net realized and unrealized (gains) losses on investments (273,033)            141,802             
Loss on sale of property and equipment 27,835               21,453               
Contributions of interests in charitable trusts (91,588)              -                         
Contributions of beneficial interest in perpetual trusts (1,085,810)         (239,850)            
Change in value of beneficial interest in trusts (373,521)            688,449             

Changes in:
Accounts receivable (344,589)            (687,982)            
Contributions receivable (8,508)                (21,326)              
Prepaid expenses and other assets 69,122               113,770             
Accounts payable 1,321,163          (92,306)              
Accrued expenses 59,766               (402,240)            
Residents’ deposits 512,280             186,602             
Deferred revenue (292,131)            (83,791)              

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 2,189,152          1,298,225          

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of investments (1,873,965)         (852,850)            
Proceeds from sale of investments 687,586             409,793             
Purchases of property and equipment (1,133,647)         (1,925,683)         

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities (2,320,026)         (2,368,740)         

      (continued)       

See notes to financial statements
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SCBMA

Statements of Cash Flows 
(continued)

Year Ended September 30,
2023 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from notes payable, net of issuance costs -                         524,415             
Repayments on note payable (1,265,799)         (757,600)            
Principal payments on financing lease obligation (33,041)              -                         
Capital lease payments (7,340)                (25,086)              

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Financing Activities (1,306,180)         (258,271)            

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents (1,437,054)         (1,328,786)         

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 3,832,454          5,161,240          

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 2,395,400$        3,832,454$        

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid for interest 1,202,392$        542,915$           

Right-of-use asset obtained in exchange for financing lease obligation 189,999$           -$                       

See notes to financial statements
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Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total

OPERATING SUPPORT AND REVENUE:
Contributions of financial assets:

Support from South Carolina 
  Baptist Convention 162,850$            -$                       162,850$            
Other contributions 3,053                  120                     3,173                  

Revenue:
Subscriptions 230,019              -                         230,019              
Advertising 136,539              -                         136,539              
Book publishing 47,946                -                         47,946                
Other income 3,134 -                         3,134                  

Total Support and Revenue 583,541              120                     583,661              

NET ASSETS RELEASED:
Purpose restrictions 2,570                  (2,570)                -                         

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Program services:

Publishing 719,453              -                         719,453              
Supporting activities:

General and administrative 239,020              -                         239,020              
Total Expenses 958,473              -                         958,473              

Change in net assets from operations (372,362)            

NON-OPERATING REVENUE:
Investment income 620,740              -                         620,740              

Change in Net Assets 248,378              (2,450)                245,928              

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 4,523,310           6,160                  4,529,470           

Net Assets, End of Year 4,771,688$         3,710$                4,775,398$         

THE BAPTIST COURIER

Statement of Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2023

See notes to financial statements

-4-

THE BAPTIST COURIER

Statements of Financial Position

2023 2022

ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents 209,929$            204,915$            
Advertising accounts receivable (net of allowance of $0) 21,789                15,464                
Prepaid expenses 5,960                  6,021                  
Investments 4,480,246           4,244,632           
Property and equipment–net 195,817              182,815              

Total Assets 4,913,741$         4,653,847$         

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS:
Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 49,418$              31,597$              
Deferred subscription revenue 88,925                92,780                

Total liabilities 138,343              124,377              

Net assets:
Without donor restrictions 4,771,688           4,523,310           
With donor restrictions 3,710                  6,160                  

Total net assets 4,775,398           4,529,470           

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 4,913,741$         4,653,847$         

December 31,

See notes to financial statements
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Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total

OPERATING SUPPORT AND REVENUE:
Contributions of financial assets:

Support from South Carolina 
  Baptist Convention 162,850$            -$                       162,850$            
Other contributions 3,053                  120                     3,173                  

Revenue:
Subscriptions 230,019              -                         230,019              
Advertising 136,539              -                         136,539              
Book publishing 47,946                -                         47,946                
Other income 3,134 -                         3,134                  

Total Support and Revenue 583,541              120                     583,661              

NET ASSETS RELEASED:
Purpose restrictions 2,570                  (2,570)                -                         

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Program services:

Publishing 719,453              -                         719,453              
Supporting activities:

General and administrative 239,020              -                         239,020              
Total Expenses 958,473              -                         958,473              

Change in net assets from operations (372,362)            

NON-OPERATING REVENUE:
Investment income 620,740              -                         620,740              

Change in Net Assets 248,378              (2,450)                245,928              

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 4,523,310           6,160                  4,529,470           

Net Assets, End of Year 4,771,688$         3,710$                4,775,398$         

THE BAPTIST COURIER

Statement of Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2023

See notes to financial statements
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Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total

OPERATING SUPPORT AND REVENUE:
Contributions of financial assets:

Support from South Carolina 
  Baptist Convention 163,683$            -$                       163,683$            
Other contributions 210                     3,435                  3,645                  

Special events:
Revenue 11,770                -                         11,770                
Cost of direct donor benefits (6,297)                -                         (6,297)                

Revenue:
Subscriptions 243,396              -                         243,396              
Advertising 145,549              -                         145,549              
Book publishing 106,093              -                         106,093              
Other income 6,254 -                         6,254                  

Total Support and Revenue 670,658              3,435                  674,093              

NET ASSETS RELEASED:
Purpose restrictions -                         -                         -                         

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Program services:

Publishing 669,864              -                         669,864              
Supporting activities:

General and administrative 209,369              -                         209,369              
Total Expenses 879,233              -                         879,233              

Change in net assets from operations (208,575)            

NON-OPERATING REVENUE:
Investment income (970,553)            -                         (970,553)            

Change in Net Assets (1,179,128)         3,435                  (1,175,693)         

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 5,702,438           2,725                  5,705,163           

Net Assets, End of Year 4,523,310$         6,160$                4,529,470$         

THE BAPTIST COURIER

Statement of Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2022

See notes to financial statements
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THE BAPTIST COURIER

Statements of Cash Flows

2023 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Change in net assets 245,928$            (1,175,693)$       
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
  provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation 9,013                  8,533                  
Realized and unrealized (gains) losses on investments–net (569,278)            1,020,051           

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Advertising accounts receivable (6,325)                (1,958)                
Prepaid expenses 61                       (4,260)                
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 17,821                9,124                  
Deferred subscription revenue (3,855)                11,078                

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities (306,635)            (133,125)            

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of investments (1,886,736)         (1,904,036)         
Proceeds from sale of investments 2,220,400           2,013,308           
Purchases of property and equipment (22,015)              (24,944)              

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 311,649              84,328                

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 5,014                  (48,797)              

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 204,915              253,712              

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 209,929$            204,915$            

Year Ended December 31,

See notes to financial statements
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SOUTH CAROLINA WOMAN’S MISSIONARY UNION

Statements of Financial Position

December 31,
(As Restated)

2023 2022

Cash and cash equivalents 234,096$           137,698$           
Due from South Carolina Baptist Convention 281,157             358,241             
Prepaid expenses and other assets 59,734               51,072               
Property and equipment–net 1,248,163          1,283,503          
Investments 6,704,247          6,273,776          
Perpetual trust held by others 615,364             590,937             

Total Assets 9,142,761$        8,695,227$        

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS:
Liabilities:

Accounts payable 45,743$             27,362$             
Accrued expenses and other payables 73,202               123,759             
Distributions payable–Janie Chapman offering 1,259,120          1,259,504          
Accumulated post-retirement benefit obligation 858,280             904,855             

Total liabilities 2,236,345          2,315,480          

Net assets:
Net assets without donor restrictions
  Undesignated 4,921,393          4,426,302          
  Board-designated 1,342,226          1,333,893          

6,263,619          5,760,195          

Net assets with donor restrictions:
  Restricted by purpose 27,433               28,615               
  Restricted in perpetuity 615,364             590,937             

642,797             619,552             

Total net assets 6,906,416          6,379,747          

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 9,142,761$        8,695,227$        

ASSETS:

See notes to financial statements
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SOUTH CAROLINA WOMAN’S MISSIONARY UNION

Statement of Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2023

Without Donor With Donor 
Restrictions Restrictions Total

OPERATING SUPPORT AND REVENUE:
Contributions of financial assets:

Janie Chapman offering 1,998,603$        -$                       1,998,603$        
Related party support 453,141             -                         453,141             
Donations -                         384                    384                    

2,451,744          384                    2,452,128          
Contributions of non-financial assets:

Donated rent 43,600               -                         43,600               
Investment income 444,597             -                         444,597             
Registration fees–conferences and camps 286,251             -                         286,251             
Camp store and canteen revenues 49,657               -                         49,657               
Miscellaneous income 92,878               -                         92,878               

3,368,727          384                    3,369,111          

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS:
Satisfaction of purpose restrictions 1,518                 (1,518)                -                         

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Program services:

Camp La Vida 708,686             -                         708,686             
Other ministry expenses 1,555,100          -                         1,555,100          

2,263,786          -                         2,263,786          
Supporting services:

General and administrative 617,136             -                         617,136             
Fundraising 17,252               -                         17,252               

634,388             -                         634,388             

Total Expenses 2,898,174          -                         2,898,174          

Change in Net Assets from Operating Activities 472,071             (1,134)                470,937             

NONOPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Change in value of perpetual trust held by others -                         24,379               24,379               
Other components of net periodic post-retirement costs (47,586)              -                         (47,586)              
Post-retirement related changes other than 
  net periodic post-retirement costs 78,939               -                         78,939               

Total Non-Operating Activities 31,353               24,379               55,732               

Change in Net Assets 503,424             23,245               526,669             

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 5,760,195          619,552             6,379,747          

Net Assets, End of Year 6,263,619$        642,797$           6,906,416$        

See notes to financial statements
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SOUTH CAROLINA WOMAN’S MISSIONARY UNION

Statement of Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2022 (As Restated)

Without Donor With Donor 
Restrictions Restrictions Total

OPERATING SUPPORT AND REVENUE:
Contriubtions of financial assets:

Janie Chapman offering 1,990,562$        -$                       1,990,562$        
Related party support 463,641             -                         463,641             
Donations 6,463                 220                    6,683                 

2,460,666          220                    2,460,886          
Contriubtions of non-financial assets:

Donated rent 43,600               -                         43,600               
Investment loss (448,062)            -                         (448,062)            
Registration fees–conferences and camps 218,057             -                         218,057             
Camp store and canteen revenues 37,786               -                         37,786               
Miscellaneous income 35,365               -                         35,365               

2,347,412          220                    2,347,632          

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS:
Satisfaction of purpose restrictions 3,820                 (3,820)                -                         

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Program services:

Camp La Vida 639,466             -                         639,466             
Other program expenses 1,573,658          -                         1,573,658          

2,213,124          -                         2,213,124          
Supporting services:

General and administrative 648,726             -                         648,726             
Fundraising 9,969                 -                         9,969                 

Total Expenses 2,871,819          -                         2,871,819          

Change in Net Assets from Operating Activities (520,587)            (3,600)                (524,187)            

NONOPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Change in value of perpetual trust held by others -                         (24,316)              (24,316)              
Other components of net periodic post-retirement costs (32,857)              -                         (32,857)              
Post-retirement related changes other than 
  net periodic post-retirement costs 293,717             -                         293,717             

Total Non-Operating Activities 260,860             (24,316)              236,544             

Change in Net Assets (259,727)            (27,916)              (287,643)            

Net Assets, Beginning of Year:
As Previously Reported 6,233,324          647,468             6,880,792          
Prior Period Adjustment (Note 11) (213,402)            -                         (213,402)            
As Restated 6,019,922          647,468             6,667,390          

Net Assets, End of Year 5,760,195$        619,552$           6,379,747$        

See notes to financial statements
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Summary Financial Reports

2023 Annual

SOUTH CAROLINA WOMAN’S MISSIONARY UNION

Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31,
(As Restated)

2023 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
 $           526,669 (287,643)$          

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
  net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation 119,828             118,121             
Unrealized (gain) loss on investments (254,521)            440,817             
Realized gain (loss) on investments (27,009)              63,939               
Change in value of perpetual trust held by others (24,427)              24,316               

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Due from the South Carolina Baptist Convention 77,084               16,448               
Prepaid expenses and other assets (8,662)                (5,316)                
Accounts payable 18,381               4,303                 
Accrued expenses and other payables (50,557)              (20,720)              
Distributions payable–Janie Chapman Offering (384)                   239,554             
Accumulated post-retirement benefit obligation (46,575)              (254,844)            

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 329,827             338,975             

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of investments (2,289,960)         (2,091,257)         
Proceeds from sale of investments 2,141,019          1,800,528          
Purchases of property, plant, and equipment (84,488)              -                         

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities (233,429)            (290,729)            

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 96,398               48,246               

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 137,698             89,452               

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 234,096$           137,698$           

Change in net assets

See notes to financial statements

-6-
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Institutions of the Convention

INSTITUTIONS OF THE CONVENTION 
 

 
ANDERSON UNIVERSITY 
316 Boulevard 
Anderson, SC  29621-4035 
Evans P. Whitaker, President 
864 231-2000 
 
BAPTIST FOUNDATION OF SOUTH 
CAROLINA 
190 Stoneridge Drive 
Columbia, SC  29210-8254 
Nathan R. McCarthy, President/CEO 
803 227-6000 
 
CHARLESTON SOUTHERN 
UNIVERSITY 
PO Box 118087 
Charleston, SC  29423-8087 
B. Keith Faulkner, President 
843 863-7502 
 
CONNIE MAXWELL CHILDREN’S 
HOME 
PO Box 1178 
Greenwood, SC  29648-1178 
William D. Nicholson, President 
864 942-1400 
 

NORTH GREENVILLE UNIVERSITY 
PO Box 1892 
Tigerville, SC  29688-1892 
Gene C. Fant Jr., President 
864 977-7018 
 
SCBMA 
190 Stoneridge Drive 
Columbia, SC  29210 
Thomas P. Turner III, President 
803 765-0030 
 
Bethea Retirement Community 
157 Home Avenue 
Darlington 29532 
843 393-2867 
Ben Spurling, Executive Director 
 
Martha Franks Retirement Community 
1 Martha Franks Drive 
Laurens, SC 29360-1799 
864 984-4541 
 
THE BAPTIST COURIER 
100 Manley Street 
Greenville, SC  29601 
Jeff Robinson, Editor and President 
864 232-8736 
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MAP INDEX 
Associations Located by Numbers 

 
 
 
1. Aiken 
2. Allendale-Hampton 
3. Barnwell-Bamberg 
4. Beaverdam 
5. Broad River 
6. Carolina 
7. Charleston 
8. Chester 
9. Chesterfield 
10. Colleton 
11. Columbia Metro 
12. Edgefield 
13. Edisto 
14. Florence 
15. Greenville 
16. Kershaw 
17. Lakelands 
18. Laurens 
19. Lexington 
20. Marion 
21. Moriah 

22. North Spartan 
23. Orangeburg-Calhoun 
24. Palmetto 
25. Pee Dee 
26. Pickens-Twelve Mile 
27. Piedmont 
28. Reedy River 
29. Ridge 
30. Saluda 
31. Santee 
32. Savannah River 
33. Screven 
34. Southeast 
35. Spartanburg County 
36. Three Rivers 
37. Union County 
38. Waccamaw 
39. Welsh Neck 
40. Williamsburg 
41. Woodruff 
42. York 

 
 
 

Institutions Located by Association 
 

 
CHARLESTON: 
 Charleston Area BCM Center – Charleston 
 Charleston Southern University – Charleston 
COLUMBIA METRO: 
 Allen University/Benedict College – Columbia  
 Baptist Foundation of South Carolina – Columbia 
 South Carolina Baptist Convention Building – Columbia 
 Camp LaVida – Winnsboro 
 SCBMA – Columbia  
 University of South Carolina BCM Center/Columbia Area – Columbia  
FLORENCE: 
 Francis Marion University BCM Center/Florence Area – Florence 
GREENVILLE: 
 The Baptist Courier – Greenville 
LAKELANDS: 
 Connie Maxwell Children’s Home – Greenwood 
 Lander University BCM Center/Greenwood Area – Greenwood 
 LAURENS: 
 Martha Franks Retirement Community – Laurens 
Three Rivers: 
 North Greenville University – Tigerville 
PICKENS-TWELVE MILE: 
 Camp McCall – Sunset 
SALUDA: 
 Anderson University – Anderson 
 Clemson University BCM Center/Clemson Area – Clemson 
SPARTANBURG COUNTY: 
 Spartanburg Area BCM Center – Spartanburg 
WACCAMAW 
 Myrtle Beach Area BCM Center – Myrtle Beach 
WELSH NECK: 
 Bethea Retirement Community – Darlington 
YORK: 
 Winthrop University BCM Center/York Tech – Rock Hill 
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2023 South Carolina Baptist 
Convention “Let’s Go!” 
Schedule
Shandon Baptist Church, Columbia, South Carolina
November 13–14, 2023

Session 1 - Darkness   
November 13, 2023 - Monday Evening  
 
6:00 PM Worship 

6:11 PM  Call to Order    
  Albert Allen, Convention President - SCBaptist 

6:12 PM  Organization of the Convention  
  Brian Sherwood, Registration Secretary - SCBaptist 

6:14 PM  Adoption of Order of Business  
  Ryan Goodroe, Convention Vice President - SCBaptist 

6:16  PM Welcome - Shandon Baptist Church
  Daniel Dickard, Senior Pastor - Shandon Baptist Church 

6:18  PM Greetings - Baptist Educational and Missionary Convention of South Carolina 
  Dr. Donald E. Greene, President - Baptist Educational and Missionary Convention of South Carolina 

6:23  PM Report - Committee on Committees
  Cory Horton, Chair - Committee on Committees 

6:28  PM Report - South Carolina Baptist Ministries of Aging
  Tom Turner, President and CEO - South Carolina Baptist Ministries of Aging 

6:33  PM Report - Nominations Committee
  Lisa Willard, Chair - Nominations Committee 

6:43  PM Report - SCBaptist Introduction 
  Lee Clamp, Associate Executive Director-Treasurer - SCBaptist 

6:50  PM Report - South Caronlina Woman’s Missionary Union
  Jess Archer, Executive Director-Treasurer - South Caronlina Woman’s Missionary 
 
7:00  PM “Let’s Go!” - Theme Introduction
  Albert Allen, Convention President - SCBaptist 

7:20  PM Worship 

7:30  PM Message 
  Paul Chitwood, President - International Mission Board 

8:00  PM Closing 
  Albert Allen, Convention President - SCBaptist  
 

The Monday evening session will be immediately followed by a prayer gathering. 

1
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Session 2 - Calling  
November 14, 2023 - Tuesday Morning

9:00 AM Worship 

9:10  AM Report - Baptist Courier 
  Jeff Robinson, President and Editor - Baptist Courier

9:15  AM Welcome - SBC Executive Committee
  Brandon Porter, Editor - Baptist Press 
  Associate Vice President of Convention News - SBC Executive Committee

9:20  AM Election - 2024 Registration Secretary 
  Albert Allen, Convention President - SCBaptist

9:27  AM Report - History Committee
  Paul Noe, Chair - History Committee  
 
9:35  AM Report - SCBaptist Serve Team
  Jon Jamison, Serve Team Leader - SCBaptist

9:40  AM New Business 
  Albert Allen, Convention President - SCBaptist

9:50  AM Report - Connie Maxwell Children’s Ministries
  Danny Nicholson, President - Connie Maxwell Children’s Ministries

9:55  AM Election - 2024 Vice President 
  Albert Allen, Convention President - SCBaptist 

10:00  AM Report - SCBaptist Strong Team
  Steve Rohrlack, Strong Team Leader - SCBaptist 

10:05  AM Report - Sexual Abuse Task Force
  DJ Horton, Co-Chair - Sexual Abuse Task Force  
  Kathy Robinson, Co-Chair - Sexual Abuse Task Force 

10:15  AM Worship 

10:20  AM Report - Christian Life and Public Affairs Committee
  Mark Krieger, Chair - Christian Life and Public Affairs Committee - Chair 

10:30  AM Report - SCBaptist Start Team 
  Cliff Marshall, Start Team Leader - SCBaptist

10:35  AM Panel Discussion - “Let’s Go!” : A Closer Look  
  Albert Allen, Convention President - SCBaptist 

10:50 AM Report - Executive Director-Treasurer
  Dr. Tony Wolfe, Executive Director-Treasurer - SCBaptist 

11:05  AM Election - 2024 President-Elect 
  Albert Allen, Convention President - SCBaptist 
 
11:15  AM Worship  
 
11:25  AM President’s Address 
  Albert Allen, Convention President - SCBaptist

11:55  AM Closing 
  Albert Allen, Convention President - SCBaptist
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Session 3 - Impact 
November 14, 2023 - Tuesday Afternoon
 

2:00  PM Worship 

2:08  PM Report - SCBaptist Share Team
  Chad Stillwell, Share Team Leader - SCBaptist

2:13  PM Report - Bylaws Committee
  Ryan Goodroe, Chair - Bylaws Committee

2:28 PM  Report - Executive Board 
  Steve Hogg, Chair - Executive Board 

2:43  PM Business Session 
  Albert Allen, Convention President - SCBaptist

2:58  PM Worship 

3:03  PM Report - Baptist Foundation of South Carolina 
  Nathan McCarthy, President and CEO - Baptist Foundation of South Carolina

3:08  PM Report - Resolutions Committee 
  Doug Mize, Chair - Resolutions Committee

3:18  PM Presentation - 2024 Officers
  Albert Allen, Convention President - SCBaptist

3:20  PM Introduction - 2024 Theme 
  Wes Church, Convention President-Elect - SCBaptist

3:24  PM Report - SCBaptist Send Team
  Ken Owens, Send Team Leader - SCBaptist

3:29  PM Panel Discussion - “Let’s Go!” : Drilling Down
  Albert Allen, Convention President - SCBaptist

3:44  PM Worship 

3:49  PM Message
  Greg Mann, Affinity Group Leader, Asia-Pacific Rim Peoples Affinity - International Mission Board 

4:19  PM Recognition - 2023 Officers 
  Dr. Tony Wolfe, Executive Director-Treasurer - SCBaptist 

4:30  PM Closing 
  Albert Allen, Convention President - SCBaptist 
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Session 4 - Response 
November 14, 2023 - Tuesday Evening  

6:00  PM Worship 

6:07  PM Report - Anderson University
  Evans Whitaker, President - Anderson University

6:12  PM Report - Charleston Southern University
  Keith Faulkner, President - Charleston Southern University

6:17  PM Report - North Greenville University
  Gene Fant, President - North Greenville University

6:22  PM Panel Discussion  - “Let’s Go!” : Dialing In
  Albert Allen, Convention President - SCBaptist

6:37  PM Introduction - Tom Elliff
  Albert Allen, Convention President - SCBaptist

6:39  PM Worship 

6:47  PM Message and Invitation
  Tom Elliff, Founder - Tom Elliff Center for Missions at Oklahoma Baptist University

7:27  PM Adjourn
  Albert Allen - Convention President - SCBaptist

7:30  PM Closing Prayer
  Wes Church, Convention President - SCBaptist
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An Open Letter to
South Carolina Baptists
Albert Allen, Convention President
Senior Pastor, First Baptist Newberry

Dear Fellow South Carolina Baptists, 
                 

In response to God’s call for us to reach the nations with 

the Gospel, South Carolina Baptists have always had an 

eye on far-away places. Many of our forebears and

contemporaries have served, or are serving,

internationally in short-term, mid-term, and long-term 

roles. 

Our Convention’s international missions priority was 

most recently evidenced by a five-year partnership 

established in 2019 between our Convention of churches 

and International Mission Board personnel serving within 

what is now a larger field called the Asia-Pacific Rim 

Peoples Affinity Group.  Because of pandemic travel

limitations, the partnership was extended by a year 

during the 2020 Annual Meeting, which means that our 

partnership commitment will last through November 

2025.  

 

In support of this vital commitment, our emphasis this 

past year has been to move beyond the praying, giving, 

and sending phases of engagement (all of which are 

very important) into the going phase. We have always 

had our eyes on far-away places, but it is now time for 

us to GO, with God’s enablement, and under His 

leadership and direction (which He has copiously 

supplied in His Word).  

In addition to conducting the important and necessary 

business of the Convention, this annual meeting is all 

about encouraging and challenging pastors and

churches to take our own feet, hands, and voices to 

those far-away places. Innumerable precious image- 

bearers in the Asia-Pacific Rim, and certainly all over the 

world, do not realize that they need someone like you 

to come and share the Good News of Jesus with them. 

They do not know that they are waiting, potentially for 

someone who will never come. Many would believe if 

they just had the chance to hear from a true believer on 

an incarnational mission.

This year’s Convention theme is “Let’s Go!” We will move 

through a sequence of three motivating realities:

Darkness, Calling, and Impact. These three sessions will 

build towards the fourth, which will culminate in a

powerful service of Response. The first session theme 

will be jarring; the second, convicting; the third,

encouraging; and the fourth, challenging and inviting.

I am so glad that you are present and participating in 

the 2023 Annual Meeting of the South Carolina Baptist 

Convention! Thank you for making it your priority to be 

here. I hope you will be present for all of our Convention 

sessions and that you will say ‘yes’ to the Lord of the 

harvest, who bids you to go to the nations!

Let’s Go!



2

An Open Letter to
South Carolina Baptists
Steve Hogg, Executive Board Chair
Senior Pastor, First Baptist Church of Rock Hill

This has been a year of transition as we welcomed Dr. 

Tony Wolfe as our new Executive Director-Treasurer 

following the retirement of Dr. Gary Hollingsworth. These 

two brothers worked together during the month of April 

2023 to ensure a smooth transition, and we are grateful 

to God for both of them. 

 

Your Executive Board gathered at First Baptist Church in 

Columbia on February 27th for a called meeting to hear 

the recommendation of the ED-T Search Team, chaired 

by Pastor Ian Geimer. After a presentation by

members of the Search Team, Dr. Wolfe met with the 

Board to share his journey and answer questions from 

Board members. This was followed by a unanimous 

vote of the Board to accept the recommendation of the 

Search Team and to nominate Dr. Tony Wolfe as the next 

Executive Director-Treasurer of the South Carolina

Baptist Convention.

 

The Board presented the nomination of Dr. Wolfe to 

messengers at a called state convention on Monday, 

March 20, at 1:30 p.m. at Shandon Baptist Church in

Columbia. Messengers approved the nomination, and

Dr. Wolfe was called as our new ED-T.

 

Throughout this transition, our Convention staff

demonstrated commitment to our Lord and faithfully 

served the churches who cooperate for Kingdom impact 

through the SCBaptist Convention. They helped this 

transition in leadership occur as smoothly as possible 

and continue to set an example of what a great team 

looks like.

 

Meanwhile, the ministries of our cooperating churches 

and ministry partners are growing God’s Kingdom in 

South Carolina and beyond. We are blessed in South 

Carolina to have ministry partners who are excited to 

serve with us and cooperate in good faith to advance 

the Gospel.

 

Your Executive Board is currently working to reorganize 

the Board’s committee structure and update our

standing rules to improve the effectiveness of the Board 

and to make the service of each Board member more

meaningful. These changes will also accommodate the 

smaller size of the Board in the years ahead.

 

It has been an honor for me to serve on your Executive 

Board, and I want to express appreciation to each

member of the Board for their faithful and dedicated 

service. Please join me in praying for the Board in 2024. 

Great days are ahead for South Carolina Baptists under 

the leadership of Dr. Tony Wolfe and the Lordship of 

Jesus Christ, our Savior and King.
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Report of the
Executive Director-Treasurer
Tony Wolfe, SCBaptist

Since the day Vanessa and I first stepped foot in South 

Carolina, we knew God was up to something special in 

this family of churches. It has been one of the greatest 

joys of our lives to enter your world and embrace this 

calling. Like the apostle Paul’s affection for the saints 

in Philippi, our hearts are glad in every remembrance of 

you and in our partnership in the Gospel. Likewise, we 

are increasingly assured that the One who began this 

good work in the Palmetto State will see it through to 

completion until the day of Christ Jesus. Ours is a good 

and worthy work. 

 

We are 2,004 Baptist churches in 42 Baptist associations 

training 10,000 leaders in three Baptist Universities;

ministering to 240,000 college students on 31

campuses; serving statewide, national, and international 

communities in Disaster Relief; demonstrating Christ’s 

love for all South Carolinians by supporting both a 

Children’s Home and a Ministry to the Aging; managing 

Kingdom funds that fuel our shared mission; reaching 

the next generation through summer camps, events, and 

focused evangelism and discipleship initiatives; sending 

missionaries; planting churches; strengthening leaders; 

and so much more. How can any of us say that we do 

all of this? Only because we work together. In words of 

ancient wisdom, “Two are better than one because they 

have a good reward for their efforts,” (Ecc. 4:9).

 

South Carolina Baptists are one family on one mission 

through one cooperative effort. We pool our resources 

and our relationships together to reach South

Carolinians with the Gospel, disciple them in the faith, 

and mobilize them to reach their neighbors and the

nations. We have no other objective. We contrive no 

other plan. We know no greater burden. We share no 

greater joy.

For me, personally, 2023 has been a year of praying, 

preparing, listening, and learning. This year, I have met 

one-on-one with every SCBaptist staff member, present 

and incoming Convention officers, most

associational leaders, many pastors, every ministry 

partner and auxiliary leader, several state government 

leaders, and a handful of non-SCBaptist faith-based 

leaders as well. To hear their hearts for Christ’s work in 

and through this family of churches is refreshing and

invigorating. The Holy Spirit is stirring a fresh, new work 

in South Carolina. I see it, hear it, and feel it all around 

us. 

 

Richard Furman, upon the founding of this first Baptist 

State Convention in 1821, pled for ongoing Great

Commission cooperation from the churches and

associations: “For the accomplishment of his gracious, 

sublime designs, God condescends to use the

instrumentality of feeble men, even men like ourselves. 

Shall we then, who profess to love him, and are called 

to the high honor of being ‘Workers together with him,’ 

in his sacred cause, remain inactive and negligent? We 

are ready to say, God forbid! No; let us rise to vigorous 

action, concentrate our energies and exert them in the 

service of our God.”

 

SCBaptists, ours is a great entrustment. We are called 

to our time as others before us were called to theirs. My 

prayer is that as we listen to what the Spirit is saying 

to the churches, we remain uncompromisingly focused 

on the mission and that, while many in our world find 

reasons to divide, we embrace active togetherness as a 

core value in our Great Commission advance. The

unfinished task lies ever before us, calling us to our time 

and daring us to empty ourselves in sacrificial servitude 

on the altar of faith. Let’s give it all we have. Together.
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2024 South Carolina Baptist
Convention Ministry Plan
Recommendations

Recommendation 1: 
That the Convention commend to the churches the Cooperative Program as the wisest, most effective, and most 

efficient plan of giving. The South Carolina Baptist Convention recommends that we continue to honor and affirm the 

Cooperative Program as the most effective means of mobilizing our churches and extending our outreach and that 

designated giving to special causes is to be given as a supplement to the Cooperative Program and not as a

substitute for Cooperative Program giving.

Recommendation 2:
That special offerings for the benevolent institutions be continued, where it is consistent with the financial policy of 

the local churches, as follows: 1) first Sunday in each month for Connie Maxwell Children’s Ministries; 2) annually on 

Mother’s Day for the South Carolina Baptist Ministries for the Aging.

Recommendation 3:
That the Executive Director-Treasurer report on a timely basis cumulative gifts received from the churches and the 

allocation of the gifts as follows: 1) Total gifts to the South Carolina Baptist Convention Cooperative Program at the 

end of each quarter; 2) Designations for Southern Baptist Convention and South Carolina Baptist Convention

ministries after the conclusion of the calendar year; 3) Weeks of Prayer offering gifts for home and state missions 

after the conclusion of the calendar year; 4) Lottie Moon offering gifts for international missions at the conclusion 

of the fiscal year for the offering. All gifts will be processed in accordance with the instructions of the contributor 

without any deduction for expenses.

Recommendation 4:
That the Executive Director-Treasurer forward all Southern Baptist Convention funds on a monthly basis to the

Executive Committee of the SBC in Nashville, Tennessee.

Recommendation 5:
That the 2024 Cooperative Program Ministry Plan be $26,500,000.
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South Carolina Baptist Convention
2024 Cooperative Program Ministry Plan

Our State      54.50%   $14,442,500

South Carolina Baptist State Missions *    31.67%     $8,392,550

Anderson University      5.21%     $1,380,650

Charleston Southern University     4.77%     $1,264,050

North Greenville University     4.13%     $1,094,450

Connie Maxwell Children’s Ministries    3.20%     $848,000

South Carolina Baptist Ministries of Aging   3.16%     $837,400

South Carolina Woman’s Missionary Union   1.75%     $463,750

Baptist Courier       0.61%     $161,650

Baptist Foundation of South Carolina    0.00%     ‐

Our Nation      20.34%      $5,390,100

North American Mission Board‐NAMB    9.34%     $2,475,100

Theological Seminaries      9.07%     $2,403,550

Executive Committee & SBC Operating    1.23%     $325,950

Ethics & Religious Liberty Committee    0.70%     $185,500

Our World      25.16%     $6,667,400

International Mission Board‐IMB‐CP Allocation   20.66%     $5,474,900

IMB‐additional percentage from SC Baptist     4.50%    $1,192,500

Grand Total **     100.00%   $26,500,000

Our State 54.50% 14,442,500                

South Carolina Baptist State Missions * 31.67% 8,392,550                       
Anderson University 5.21% 1,380,650                       
Charleston Southern University 4.77% 1,264,050                       
North Greenville University 4.13% 1,094,450                       
Connie Maxwell Children's Ministries 3.20% 848,000                          
South Carolina Baptist Ministries of Aging 3.16% 837,400                          
South Carolina Woman's Missionary Union 1.75% 463,750                          
Baptist Courier 0.61% 161,650                          
Baptist Foundation of South Carolina 0.00% ‐                                   

Our Nation 20.34% 5,390,100                  

North American Mission Board‐NAMB 9.34% 2,475,100                       
Theological Seminaries 9.07% 2,403,550                       
Executive Committee & SBC Operating 1.23% 325,950                          
Ethics & Religious Liberty Committee 0.70% 185,500                          

Our World 25.16% 6,667,400                  

International Mission Board‐IMB‐CP Allocation 20.66% 5,474,900                       
IMB‐additional percentage from SC Baptist 4.50% 1,192,500                       

Grand Total ** 100.00% 26,500,000          

* Annual Cooperative Program contributions account for 58% of the total budgeted operating revenue for SC Baptist State Missions.
Additional revenues are received from the Janie Chapman and other designated offerings, camp and conference fees, and investments

** Total SC Baptist Great Commission Investment including Cooperative Program, Lottie Moon Christmas Offering, Annie Armstrong
Easter Offering, Janie Chapman State Offering, and other gifts and fees totals $47.3 million.

South Carolina Baptist Convention
2024 Cooperative Program Ministry Plan

.
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2024 Total Great  
Commission Giving*

88
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Financial and  
Accounting Office
Bryan Holley, Chief Financial Officer

As Chief Financial Officer, I assist the Executive Director-Treasurer in the operation of the Convention, Executive 

Board, and Convention staff. Our office is responsible for all financial and legal matters of the Executive Board and 

Convention. We support and foster SCBaptist ministries through financial expertise with integrity and accountability 

that inspires a culture of excellence to strengthen the bond of trust and confidence in the value of cooperative work. 

 

Ministry Highlights
• Obtained an unqualified audit for 2022

• Monitored Operating Budget for 2023

• Planned Operating Budget for 2024

• Streamlined paperless accounting system

• Filed all government reporting requirements and tax returns in a timely manner

• Served as a resource for the Convention and its churches regarding financial matters 

• During 2022, Cooperative Program (CP) receipts decreased 2.6% or $700,510 from 2021

• The 2022 CP Budget was $26,500,000 and receipts were $25,878,432 

• In 2022, our office received $42,258,884 from CP, mission offerings, and other designated offerings. This was 

1% or $421,023 increase from 2021

• Updated all employee job descriptions

• Updated employee performance review process

• Researched plans to lower employee prescription drug cost 

 

 

Prayer Requests 
• Pray for wisdom to be good stewards of all the resources God has given us. 

• Pray that churches will see the value of the Cooperative Program and that we can accomplish more together.
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Top 25 CP Giving Churches
Giving Through the Cooperative Program
Twelve Months Ended June 2023

Rank   Church   Association   Amount

1   Taylors First   Three Rivers   $511,842

2   Summerville   Screven    $329,504

3   Simpsonville First  Greenville   $279,587

4    Riverland Hills   Lexington   $277,980

5   Lancaster Second  Moriah    $277,138

6   Columbia First   Columbia Metro   $277,014

7   Concord   Saluda    $266,722

8   Spartanburg First  Spartanburg County  $248,070

9   Mt. Airy    Piedmont   $238,011

10   Brushy Creek   Greenville    $237,500

11   Rocky Creek   Greenville   $228,451

12   Shandon   Columbia Metro   $225,001

13   North Side   Lakelands   $201,638

14   Edwards Road   Greenville   $194,473

15   Gaffney First   Broad River   $190,002

16   Fort Mill First   York    $183,874

17   Holly Springs   Three Rivers   $183,164

18   Northside   Lexington   $179,128

19   Rock Hill First   York    $178,334

20   Forestville   Three Rivers   $166,121

21   Church at the Mill  Spartanburg County  $154,998

22   Georgetown First  Southeast   $142,727

23   Newberry First   Reedy River   $140,533

24   Sumter First   Santee    $137,535

25   Seneca    Beaverdam   $137,406
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Personnel Changes
October 15, 2022 – October 1, 2023

New Staff
Field Service Staff:
• Laurie Register (PT), Send Team, January 10, 2023 

• Ben Reed, Camp McCall, February 1, 2023

• Stephen Leopard (PT), Church Strategies, 

February 1, 2023

• Tony Wolfe, Executive Director-Treasurer, 

March 27, 2023

• Jay Overbay, (PT), Creative Services, May 1, 2023

• Morgan Allen (PT) Collegiate Ministries,  

September 1, 2023

• Ronnie Richardson, Creative Services,  

September 26, 2023

• Nick Ritenour (PT), Creative Services,  

September 27, 2023

 

New Staff
Support Staff:
• Sherry Brown, Operations, January 1, 2023

• Michala Beesley, Generations, May 15, 2023

 

Resignations/Separations
Field Service Staff:
• Jerry Zapata (PT), Start Team, November 28, 2022

• Ken Forrester, Church Development & Pastoral Care, 

February 15, 2023

• Wes Howard (PT), Creative Services, March 15, 2023

• Lesley Joseph (PT), Collegiate Ministries, May 15, 

2023

• Suzanne Bachelor, Collegiate Ministries, June 30, 

2023

• Jay Overbay (PT), Creative Services, August 15, 

2023

• Adriana Melendez (PT), Creative Services, August 

21, 2023

  

 

 

Resignations/Separations
Support Staff:
• Nadine Pabón, Start Team, January 8, 2023

• Kimberly Smith (PT), Human Resources, July 25, 

2023

• Michala Beesley, Generations, September 21, 2023

 

Retirements
• Gary Hollingsworth, Executive Director-Treasurer, 

April 30, 2023

 

Reassignments
• Tim Rice, Send Team to Director, Missions 

Partnerships, January 1, 2023

• Katrina Stikeleather, Church Strategies to Team 

Assistant, Start Team, February 16, 2023

• Michael Pigg, Share Team Leader to Director of 

African American Engagement, September 1, 2023

• Lee Clamp, Chief Strategic Officer to Associate 

Executive Director-Treasurer, September 1, 2023

• Bryant Sims, Director, Denominational Relations to 

Chief Operations Officer, September 1, 2023

• Chad Stillwell, Director, Collegiate Ministries to 

Share Team Leader, September 1, 2023
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Operations and Denominational 
Relations Office
Bryant Sims, Chief Operations Officer
SCBaptist

It is an honor to assist our Executive Director-Treasurer 

(ED-T), Dr. Tony Wolfe, with the day-to-day operations 

of the South Carolina Baptist Convention, the Executive 

Board, and the Convention committees, as well as the 

ongoing work of relationship building with our ministry 

partners both locally and nationally.

 

It has been a busy year filled with planning this

meeting that you are attending today, as well as the 

called meeting back in February for the election of a new 

ED-T. It has been a joy to assist our Convention

President, Albert Allen, in fulfilling his vision to see South 

Carolina Baptists embrace a missionary heart and get up 

and go to the nations with the Good News. This

preparation includes meeting with your Convention 

committees to ensure that their work is accomplished 

in a timely and orderly manner according to the bylaws 

this Convention has set forth to guide their work. Each 

committee chair and vice chair has been diligent in their 

important tasks that will ultimately help to keep us

faithful to the mission to which Christ has called us.

 

One of the highlights this year has been working as a 

liaison between the History Committee, the Budget, 

Finance, and Audit Committee, and North Greenville 

University. Plans are moving forward to relocate the 

Convention archives and historical collection to North 

Greenville University in the near future. We were also 

able to acquire a large collection of SCBaptist history 

from a private collector back in August. This collection 

fills in several gaps that previously existed in our

collection.

 

Another highlight from the past year was a New Pastors’ 

Orientation event held in partnership with Associational 

leaders from across the state. These pastors learned 

about the vision, mission, and strategy of SCBaptists 

and built relationships that will serve them well while 

transitioning to new positions.

 

In addition to providing direct oversight in these areas, 

I have the privilege of providing guidance to our

Building Services Team, Information Services Team, 

and the Operations Committee of the Executive Board. 

Together, we are working hard to maintain and improve 

the facilities here at 190 Stoneridge Drive, Camp McCall, 

and our Baptist Collegiate Ministries (BCM) facilities 

around the state. Jeff Dial does an incredible job leading 

our Building Services Group. We believe that this 

work is foundational to the ministry that’s happening 

around the state. Whether it is providing new chairs 

for a BCM building, providing statistical analysis for a 

church charting its progress, or providing a safe work 

environment for your Convention staff, the people that 

make up these teams work together for the

advancement of the Gospel.
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SCBaptist ADVANCE Ministries
Lee Clamp, Associate Executive Director-Treasurer

Our South Carolina Baptist Convention team of missionaries exists to help each church advance the Great 

Commission together.  

 

EACH CHURCH. 
 
We believe EACH CHURCH can advance! SCBaptists are a family of churches helping each other advance the Great 

Commission by mobilizing missionaries and developing leaders. Rock Hill can! They rallied 38 churches to come 

together for the largest ONE Night event thus far, with 1,100 students in attendance, 118 responses to the Gospel, 

and 70 students following up in baptism. Over the past few years, 8,840 students have heard the Gospel through a 

ONE Night evangelistic event, and there have been 560 decisions for Christ. Kingdom Church can! Kingdom Church 

is a new church plant. Joe Douglas is in a residency at Cane Bay and will launch publicly in 2024. Thirty-one new 

church plants have received funding and training in 2023, 13 of those being non-anglo. First Union African Baptist 

Church can! This beautiful church was planted by freed African American slaves on Daufuskie Island and reaches 

10% of their population of 550. Pastor Aaron Crosby led his church to begin cooperating with SCBaptists last year. 

He said, “Because I am on an island, I need other churches to help me. Aren’t all pastors on an island?” We love to 

tell the story of Gospel advance because we believe that every life counts and that each church can advance.  

EVERY LIFE. 
 
We believe EVERY LIFE counts! We see a day when every life is saturated and transformed by the hope of the 

Gospel beginning in South Carolina. We are relentless in helping the Church love every life. Diamond’s life counts! 

She was the first student to come to know Christ at the new Benedict College Baptist Collegiate Ministries that 

began this past year. Thirty-one of 60 college campuses have a BCM ministry on them, reaching out to 15,725 

college students directly. Sara’s life counts! She is a Palmetto Collective graduate that is living on mission in Los 

Angeles with The Abiding Church, one of the church plants partially funded by South Carolina Baptist churches.  

Palmetto Collective has 54 college students annually preparing for the mission field. James’ life counts! He and his 

wife Peggy are on mission teaching English through Bible reading to refugees. They are a part of an ever-growing 

number of retirees who are “Re-hired” to live life on mission. Fifty-two SCBaptist churches sent 162 volunteers on 11 

SCGo mission trips. Daniel’s life counts! Daniel has Down syndrome. He became the first individual baptized in five 

years at Gethsemane Baptist Church. He said, “Jesus loved me. Jesus died for me. Jesus saved me.” Gethsemane is 

one of 20 churches who have affirmed revitalization recommendations rendered through a process with our team.

 

 

In the following pages, you’ll see the celebration of Advance Stories. Advance Stories are God’s stories of life 

transformation and celebrations of what he is doing in the life of an individual, ministry, church, or association.
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Our Mission 
 Helping each church advance the Great
 Commission together.

Our Values

Our Measures

The Potential of Every Life:
therefore, we network all kinds of churches to ensure that every person  
is seen, heard, and given a chance to experience hope.

The Strength of Collaboration: 
therefore, we connect like-minded partners, share resources,  
and respect one another’s perspectives.

The Energy of Innovation: 
therefore, we experiment with new methods that spark breakthrough  
and encourage churches to do the same.

The Lever of Leadership: 
therefore, we build intentional relationships  
with leaders of leaders to strengthen ongoing movement.

# of churches connected in process
# of churches advancing
# of new baptized believers
# of disciples deployed
# of communities transformed
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Our Strategy

Moment 
We create environments to steward “moments” when missionaries are called to be  
deployed and leaders desire to lead differently. 
 
Where is God inviting you to advance?

Map
We help leaders develop plans to “map” out their journey.  
 
What do you need to get there?

Mountain 
We connect them with like-minded leaders to climb the “mountain” together and  
encourage them in the valley.  
 
Who will provide support in the climb and courage in the valley?

Moment Map Mountain
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Serve Team
Jon Jamison, Team Leader

We help churches identify needs and opportunities in their communities and offer support as they launch healthy 

ministries within those communities. Whether it is Disaster Relief responses, addressing hunger or poverty

issues, caring for vulnerable children through foster care, or serving students and teachers through

Heart4Schools, we believe that our churches have a tremendous opportunity to demonstrate the hope of Jesus 

in tangible ways as they build meaningful relationships across our state.

Advance Story
River Springs Church in Irmo has a Heart4Schools partnership that has consistently supported teachers and staff 

through meals and gifts, celebrating special occasions, and adopting 42 teachers, allowing them to create

meaningful relationships. They have met student needs by providing weekly Snack Packs for students

identified as transitionally homeless. This led to an opportunity to help a student living with a foster family attend 

her senior prom. They gave her a gift card to dinner for prom night, and a volunteer provided her with a prom 

dress shopping experience. River Springs Church is investing in their community and is just one example of many 

across the state who are making an impact for the Gospel. Each church can advance. Every life counts.

Highlights
• Over 530 of our 1,217 public schools have South 

Carolina Baptist churches serving them well. Let’s 

keep pressing toward a day when every school, 

teacher, and student is within ministry reach of an 

SCBaptist congregation. 

• In South Carolina, 1 in 7 people are food insecure. 

However, through the SC Hunger Relief Offering 

and the faithful work of our churches, more than 

150,000 people were fed, and 81 individuals 

professed faith in Jesus. 

• South Carolina Baptists once again partnered 

to provide a prisoner packet for every inmate 

in the South Carolina prison system. SCBaptist 

churches provided 23,177 packets in 2022, and 

130 volunteers gathered to process these packets, 

which were distributed by chaplains. 

• Hundreds of refugees from around the world now 

call South Carolina home. Currently, more than 50 

SCBaptist congregations are engaged in 

meaningful ministry to this growing population.



15

Disaster Relief
Susan Peugh, Director of Disaster Relief

South Carolina Baptist Convention Disaster Relief strives to bring help, hope, and healing after a crisis. Disasters 

create opportunities for committed volunteers to serve in hard places to provide emotional and spiritual care, 

debris removal, hot meals, showers, laundry services, and more. Disasters change lives and have a Kingdom 

impact.

Advance Story
Vermont flood survivors Don and Veronica met SCBaptist Disaster Relief volunteers on their hardest day in the 

most difficult circumstances. DR volunteers struggled to remove mud and debris from their flooded home. 

Despite the hard work, they shared the hope of Jesus with the couple as they labored. Overwhelmed, Don 

revealed he had done too many terrible things to be forgiven. He confessed that thinking of those behaviors put 

him in a bad mood, and he took his frustrations out on his wife. The DR volunteers shared with Don the power 

of forgiveness in Jesus Christ. Don asked Jesus for forgiveness and, in turn, asked Veronica to also forgive him. 

Disasters create moments for committed volunteers to serve in hard places to share the hope of the Gospel.

Highlights
• Over the last year, DR volunteers made 1,635 

spiritual contacts with disaster survivors. 

• The Gospel was presented 62 times. 

• Seven individuals made a decision to follow Jesus. 

• Pray for the physical and emotional healing of 

those who have been affected by disasters. 

Ask the Lord to provide them with comfort and 

strength during this difficult time.

• Pray for those who have answered the call to 

serve in Disaster Relief efforts. Ask the Lord to 

bless them with the skills, knowledge, and re-

sources needed to effectively serve those in need. 

• Pray for the provision of the resources needed to 

support recovery efforts in times of disasters.
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Share Team
Michael Pigg, Team Leader

It is the mission of the Share Team to help each South Carolina Baptist Convention church reach every life that 

they may be transformed by the hope of the Gospel beginning in South Carolina.

Advance Story
Walter Belton, pastor of Radiant Church Charleston, was praying with an older African man in Kalingalinga, 

Zambia, with the help of an interpreter. He saw a young African lady standing in her doorway, listening and 

watching them. After they finished speaking with the older gentleman, the young African lady said through the 

interpreter, “I want to know Jesus!” Belton shared the Gospel with her, and she accepted the Lord Jesus in her 

heart.

As Belton prayed for the young lady, she fell to her knees in the dirt and gravel because her home had no floors. 

She wept uncontrollably out of her excitement of being saved from her sins. “Never in my 22 years of pastoring 

have I experienced such a heart-moving conversion. There is work for us to do in Africa,” Belton said.

Highlights
• Churches reported 7,891 baptisms. 

• In 2023, we partnered, with five ONE Night 

events with a total of 2,580 students, 227 Gospel 

decisions, and 67 students called into ministry! 

The total number of students over the past few 

years who have heard the Gospel at ONE Night is 

8,840 with 560 decisions for Christ. 

• We hosted three DiscipleSC events with 32 

churches.
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Collegiate Ministry
Chad Stillwell, Director of Collegiate Ministries

Our Baptist Collegiate Ministry sees every campus saturated and transformed by the hope of the Gospel. South 

Carolina is home to 250,000 college and university students. These students are from across our state, the 

United States, and the world. To reach a quarter of a million college students with the Gospel, it will take every 

church partnering together. As SCBaptists, we are sending BCM missionaries (Campus Ministers) onto 30 of the 

60 campuses in our state, with the goal of seeing the Gospel on every campus.

Advance Story
Maura O’Hare’s transformation began with a care package she was given by a student from Baptist Collegiate 

Ministry (BCM) on campus at Coastal Carolina University. After being surprised by the kindness she found upon 

attending BCM meetings, O’Hare joined a small group and was invited to CONVERGE, an SCBaptist weekend 

event for students. At CONVERGE she gave her life to Christ. This summer, God used Maura to lead her sister to 

Christ. Maura is now a student leader at Coastal Carolina BCM.

Highlights
• BCMs reported outreach to 15,725 students across 

SC, a 21% increase over the previous year.  

• There were 175 professions of faith this year 

through BCM ministry.  

• Over 550 BCM students served on mission trips 

this year with 177 serving during the summer of 

2023 in locations such as North Africa, Europe, 

Los Angeles, Denver, Salt Lake City, New Orleans, 

and New York City. Students raised $107,510 to 

serve on evangelistic mission trips.  

• BCM Directors reported 1,786 Gospel-sharing 

conversations with students.

• New collegiate missions partnerships were 

launched with Los Angeles, Vermont, and 

Thailand, with BCM students graduating and 

moving to Vermont to help start a new collegiate 

ministry at Vermont State University.  

• Over 1,500 students were involved in small group 

Bible studies or discipleship on college campuses. 

 

• In total, 1,617 BCM student leaders were equipped 

to verbally share the Gospel with their peers on 

campus.
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Women and Ministers’ Wives
Ministry
Melanie Ratcliffe, Director of Relational Evangelism

We value women in ministry and ministers’ wives in South Carolina and beyond. We desire to provide support, 

encouragement, and quality leadership development for women to make disciples where they live, work, and 

play. We do this by providing opportunities through conferences, retreats, mission trips, and cohorts, where we 

facilitate the conversation and build lasting community along the way.

Advance Story
Shanna Crosby is a pastor’s wife and an educator in a Christian school. One morning, she was interrupted while 

teaching as her students began asking spiritual questions. Shanna was so excited about the questions that she 

closed her teacher’s book and began answering their questions. As one student walked out of class, Shanna 

shared the truth of the Gospel with him and led him to faith in Christ. Shanna has learned not to be so scheduled 

that she misses God-ordained moments like this one.

Highlights
• In the last 12 months, 856 ministers’ wives, 

women’s leaders, and lay leaders have been 

invested in through one-on-one meetings, cohorts, 

mission trips, conferences, and retreats.  

• We currently have 1,059 ministers’ wives 

information in our network. 

• We partner with Associations to help build 

ministers’ wives initiatives. Over the past year, we 

partnered with four Associations to host events 

for over 77 ministers’ wives from 51 churches. We 

have plans to partner with four more Associations 

in the next six months. 

• We offer mission opportunities for ministers’ wives 

to encourage and support North American Mission 

Board church planters’ wives in partnering cities. 

This year, we hosted retreats in Los Angeles and 

New York City. Our desire is for ladies to catch 

the vision and build a partnership between their 

church and the missionaries for continued support.
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Send Team
Ken Owens, Team Leader

The Send Team is focused on helping churches advance the Great Commission by sending mission workers to 

reach the nations locally and globally with the hope of the Gospel. With almost half of the world’s population 

unreached with the Gospel, it is imperative that SCBaptist churches send and support mission workers across 

the globe to share the Good News of Jesus. With over 300,000 foreign-born people in South Carolina, we must 

find ways to reach the nations that God is bringing to our state.

Advance Story
Northwood Baptist Church in North Charleston is on a mission to reach the nations locally and globally. Locally, 

they are helping another church in a flourishing revitalization work, supporting Portuguese and Spanish- 

speaking congregations and engaging in local school and community outreach projects. Nationally, they sent 

mission volunteers this summer to serve with mission partners in Massachusetts, West Virginia, California, and 

Utah. Northwood’s college ministry sent the second-highest number of North American Mission Board GenSend 

summer missionaries in the country. Northwood mission teams also served with partners in the Dominican 

Republic and Japan. As pastor Tommy Meador shared, “This is the kind of church we want to be—a sending 

church.”

Highlights
• This year, 52 SCBaptist churches sent 162 

volunteers on 11 SCGo mission vision / trips with 

strategic mission partners in Greece, Turkey, 

France, Italy, Thailand, Japan, South Africa, 

Tanzania, Angola, Zambia, Puerto Rico, New York, 

California, Utah, Maryland, and Pennsylvania.  

• Sixty-five pastors, spouses, and leaders 

participated in the SCBaptist multi-ethnic pastor 

retreat, with over three-fourths of the world’s 

population represented by SCBaptist pastors in 

attendance.

• Three multi-ethnic church plants began 

(Chinese in Columbia, Slavic in Spartanburg, and 

Vietnamese in Columbia). Pray for more language 

churches to be started across the state. 

• Collaboratives, cohorts, and the Outside the Walls 

Conference equipped 154 mission leaders from 68 

churches in mission sending.
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Next Generation Mobilization
Charlie Swain,  Next Generation Mobilization Strategist

Palmetto Collective (PC) asks college students one question: “Where is the most strategic place you could live 

for Jesus after graduation?” We desire to see more students prepared and sent to places in need of Gospel 

Advance. Currently, 54 college juniors and seniors from around the state are gaining clarity on God’s calling in 

their life and preparing for the possibility of going to the nations with the Gospel through Palmetto Collective.

Advance Story
Meredith graduated from Anderson University in the spring of 2023 with a degree in Nursing. She has a tight-knit 

family and a great community of believers at the Church at the Mill in Spartanburg. It would have been easy for 

her to get a job at a hospital in the Upstate and begin her career. But, through the discipleship of her church and 

the leadership of Palmetto Collective, she moved to Provo, Utah, in August to plant her life in one of the darkest 

yet most strategic locations for Gospel advance.

Highlights

• In total, 44 students have graduated from 

Palmetto Collective. 

• Of our graduates, 35 are in ministry, and 11 of 

those are in seminary.  

• Three students were deployed to North American 

Mission Board Send Cities.  

• Five students were deployed through the 

International Mission Board’s Journeyman program. 

Seven more graduates are in the application 

process with the IMB, and nine current PC 

students have begun the application process. 

• One of our graduates was the first Project 3000 

Missionary Explorer sent by the IMB to South Asia. 

 

• Currently, 54 students make up this year’s PC 

class. There are 20 students from North Greenville 

University, 14 from Anderson University, 13 from 

Charleston Southern University, and seven from 

public universities in South Carolina.

Palmetto Collective students accepted into the program receive one-on-one mentorship through their local 

church, world-class missions training through collective retreats, and international experience through hands-on 

experiences—all without any financial cost to them.
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Start Team
Cliff Marshall, Team Leader

From the early days of the Church in the book of Acts, starting new churches has proven to be one of the most 

effective ways of saturating communities with the truth of the Gospel. The Start Team believes that churches 

plant churches, and we assist each SCBaptist church to advance the Great Commission by partnering with, 

praying for, and sending out missionaries to new churches across our state. The need for new Baptist churches 

in our state has never been greater than it is today.

Advance Story
In 2012, Utica Baptist Church in Seneca sent a mission team to Puebla, Mexico, to work with a church planter 

named Edson Garcia. This trip resulted in an ongoing partnership with Edson as he planted churches to reach the 

lost in Mexico. Utica continued to send mission teams, funding, and supplies to meet the ongoing needs of the 

new churches in Mexico. As the church focused on this mission, they were burdened about the need for a new 

church in Seneca to reach the growing Hispanic population. The church turned to Edson, and in 2020, he and 

his family moved to Seneca to begin planting La Roca Oconee. In 2023, this new SCBaptist church baptized ten 

people, and is working to start another Hispanic church in the area.

Highlights
• Since January of 2023, 31 new churches have 

received monthly funding made possible by the 

Janie Chapman State Missions Offering. Each of 

these new churches are in friendly cooperation 

with the Convention and have an established 

SCBaptist church as their sending church. 

• Thirteen of the 31 new churches that received 

monthly funding are ethnically diverse. Three 

congregations are multi-ethnic, two are African 

American, five are Hispanic, two are Chinese, and 

one is Brazilian.

• Pray that every established SCBaptist church 

would partner with a new church. These 

partnerships can be through intentional prayer, 

ongoing funding, sharing facilities, or sending 

workers. 

• Pray that more SCBaptist churches will identify 

and begin training leaders in their congregation 

to be sent out to plant churches across our state. 

More churches are needed to reach the fast- 

growing population of our state, and each 

SCBaptist church can take part.
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Strong Team
Steve Rohrlack, Team Leader

The Strong Team exists to help churches grow stronger in fulfilling the call to advance the Great Commission. We 

strongly believe every church can advance. We are energized by connecting with pastors, staff, and volunteer 

leaders, personally investing in these leaders spiritually, and then developing Great Commission ministers and 

ministries with purpose. How can we help?

Advance Story
Recent high school graduate, Natalie Cannon, found her calling in worship leadership through the transformative 

uWorship Weekend hosted by the South Carolina Baptist Convention. For Natalie, this weekend led her to pursue 

a worship leadership internship with Mill City Church in West Columbia, SC, where she was challenged to grow 

in her walk with the Lord and in her calling as a worship leader. She will pursue a worship leadership degree at 

North Greenville University this fall.

Highlights
• Over 160 pastors and staff took part in one of the 

22 NextStep cohorts offered in partnership with 

local Associations. 

• Funnel Fusion, a brand new mission, vision, 

and values process, is being piloted with select 

churches.   

• Worship attendance and baptisms are increasing in 

many of our churches where pastors are 

participating in monthly revitalization pastor 

cohorts. These are cohorts for pastors seeking to 

strengthen God’s Church and transform a 

community through the power of the Gospel of 

Jesus Christ. This year, 53 new pastors enrolled in 

revitalization cohorts.

• Both SummerSalt and KidSalt experienced record 

attendance this summer. More than 4,400 

students attended the seven weeks of camp 

hosted at Charleston Southern University. 

• The Worship & Music Office facilitated three 

regional summer internship opportunities for 

college-aged students discerning a call to ministry. 

Two additional internship locations are planned for 

2024. 

• The Worship & Music Office partnered with 

SummerSalt, providing worship leadership training 

during all weeks of camp. Over 400 students 

attended the training during the five weeks of 

camp.
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Church Strategies
James Nugent, Director of Church Strategies

We see a day when every community in South Carolina has stronger churches fulfilling God’s mission of making 

disciples. To advance this purpose, your Church Strategies Group seeks to serve churches, equip pastors, and 

develop partners so that every church can have a hopeful future.

Advance Story
Gethsemane Baptist Church in Summerville, SC, had been experiencing declining attendance and Gospel 

influence for quite some time when the pastor reached out to Tommy Meador, pastor of Northwood Baptist 

Church, seeking assistance. The result of their conversations was a partnership between a healthy church 

and an at-risk church as a viable pathway for church revitalization.

Highlights
By God’s grace and the fervent work of pastors and 

partners, we celebrate: 

• More than 20 churches affirmed recommendations 

for revitalization, restarting, or reinvestment; 

• That 53 pastors/churches have enrolled in 

revitalization cohorts; 

• Partnering to launch several new pastoral 

residency programs across the state; and 

• Baptisms and worship attendance increased in 

many of our churches with pastors participating in 

a revitalization cohort.
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Camps - KidSalt
Kathy Miles, Associate Director of Children

Every summer has a story, and this year KidSalt campers explored “The Chase: God’s Ultimate Pursuit.” Third 

through fifth graders discovered how to live a life of new purpose and pursue the mission that God has paved for 

them—a relationship with Him. 

In 2023, KidSalt hosted 1,084 campers and over 200 children’s ministry leaders were engaged. In partnership 

with Baptist Collegiate Ministry and Woman’s Missionary Union, KidSalt campers packed 3,000 “Find Life”

welcome bags for BCM that were given out to college students across the state. KidSalt campers continue to be 

on mission in their church and community, sharing the Gospel, and living out the Great Commission.

Highlights
• Number of salvation decisions: 63 

• Number of students repenting of sin: 10 

• Total decisions: 73



25

Camps - SummerSalt
Bryant Laird, Associate Director of Students

 SummerSalt is a Christ-centered summer camp for students grades six through twelve led by the Generations 

Group of the South Carolina Baptist Convention. It is designed to grasp and captivate the next generation with 

the Gospel. In 2023, SummerSalt hosted 121 churches with a record-setting 3,284 participants for five weeks at 

Charleston Southern University in North Charleston. A total of 397 spiritual decisions were made.

Highlights
• Number of salvation decisions: 88 

• Number of students called to ministry: 115 

• Number of students repenting from sin: 151 

• Total decisions: 397
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Camps - Camp McCall
Matt Allen, Camp McCall Director

Camp McCall exists to support the local church. We are in our 64th year of ministry.  

We conducted 11 summer camps with 2,303 campers from 231 churches, recording 189 decisions for Christ. 

We hosted 34 retreat groups with 1,648 participants in addition to hosting 32 SCBaptist pastors and ministers. 

We sent 28 staff members on 13 short-term mission trips and commissioned four former staff members to the 

mission field, three with the International Mission Board in undisclosed locations. We are thankful for the ongoing 

support of the South Carolina Baptist Convention.

Highlights
• Number of salvation decisions: 55 

• Number of students called to ministry: 23 

• Number of students repenting from sin: 111 

• Total decisions: 189
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Office of Associational Relations
Scott Shields, Director of Associational Relations

The Office of Associational Relations exists to create a Kingdom movement and partnerships among our 42

Associations impacting our state and beyond so that we can help each church advance as we advance the Great 

Commission together.

Advance Story
We celebrate our Associations in their work and collaboration with the South Carolina Baptist Convention. We 

are strategic partners in the advance work of collective trainings like IMPACT, church planting, Heart4Schools, 

missions partnerships, cohorts, DiscipleSC, and other priority focuses of the Convention. Working together as 

a family across the state makes a major difference. South Carolina has some of the best association mission 

strategists who love working and building strategic partnerships among the churches they serve. Continue to 

pray for these AMS leaders and their families as they lead daily across South Carolina.

Highlights
• Our April AMS/DOM retreat in Myrtle Beach was 

a great time to equip in leadership development. 

Rick Curtis, NAMB, did an awesome job 

encouraging our AMS leaders and spouses. 

• The Spring AMS/DOM Summit was held on March 

23 at the Lexington Association and the fall 

summit is scheduled for October. 

• The Strong Team and our office continue online 

trainings for revitalization and restarting. Virtual 

and in-person training begins in March.

• Our office is building intentional relationships 

between the SCBaptist Convention and 

Associations so that assistance can be given at 

the highest level so that every life in South 

Carolina has the opportunity to be saturated and 

transformed by the hope of the Gospel.
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Creative
Alex Lyons, Creative Director

In 2023, the Creative Team proactively executed a content, marketing, and distribution strategy. This led to 

significant growth and reach in promoting, equipping, and celebrating the Gospel’s advancement in our SCBaptist 

family through digital channels. Advance Stories were written, filmed, and published, reaching new audiences on 

new platforms. In 2024, we will partner to create and curate 250 online resources for our pastors and leaders.

Advance Story
The Creative Team’s main focus in 2023 was to put significant effort into telling the story of each church and 

every life. In October 2022, our team hired Isabella McElveen as our Creative Producer. Through her 

coordinating, producing, and organizational abilities, our Editorial Specialist’s writing abilities, and regional 

Creative Specialists’ photo and video abilities, our initial goal of 40 Advance Stories was surpassed by May 2023. 

At the time of writing, the Creative Team has completed 79 Advance Stories with a projection of 130 by the end 

of the year, an increase of our original goal by 325%.

Highlights
• Website 

page views: 258K 

unique users: 76K 

mobile traffic: 61.6% 

written Advance Stories published: 79 

written resources created: 57 

written news created: 94 

• Social 
posts published: 2,206 

Instagram – Thrid largest Convention following, 

reach: 53,477 (+15%), visits: 8,940 (+85%), new 

followers: 667 (+451%) 

TikTok – 2023 YTD avg. view/video: 250, 2023 

goal view/video: 100 

Facebook – reach: 246,014 (+66%), visits: 16,357 

(+171%), new followers: 538 (+32%) 

YouTube – watch time: 431 hours, views: 45.8K 

• Photo/Video 
videos edited: 201 

video clips recorded: 9,867 

photos taken: 21,884 

people interviewed: 91 

events covered: 71 

• Podcasts – episodes published: 76 

• Email – 117,705 emails sent (16 lists, 30 segments, 
27,000 contacts, 56% open rate, 4.8% click rate)
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Bylaws Committee
Ryan Goodroe, Chair
Joel Ainsworth, Vice-Chair

The Bylaws Committee presented amendments to the 

Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws, Part I, as a first 

reading in 2022. A vote to incorporate these 

amendments will be taken at the annual meeting in 

2023. Five of the amendments propose changes to 

processes or requirements; other amendments simply 

update grammar or wording for clarification and 

consistency.

 

Two of the proposed amendments – found in Article XIII 

of the Articles of Incorporation and Article XII, Section 

B, Item 1-c – deal with the procedure for amending the 

Articles of Incorporation and Part I of the Bylaws. In 

order to communicate clearly the process for amending 

a proposed amendment after the first reading, the 

following sentence would be added as Articles of 

Incorporation Article XIII, Section B, Item 3, and again as 

Bylaws Part I Article XII, Section B, Item 1-c: Any 

amendment proposed to an amendment that has already 

had a first reading (at the previous meeting of the

Convention) must be presented to the Bylaws 

Committee at least sixty (60) days before the 

annual meeting so that it can be considered by the 

Bylaws Committee and presented in advance to the 

Convention.

 

The proposed amendment in Article VI, Section B, Item 

5 (removing the words or an association) would make 

association employees eligible for service on the 

Executive Board. In the past, a financial arrangement 

between the Convention and the associations created a 

conflict of interest, but that arrangement is no longer in 

effect, eliminating the conflict of interest.

 

The proposed amendments in Article VII, Section C, 

Items 1 and 2, specify the need for a 2/3 majority vote to 

significantly change the relationship between the state 

Convention and the institutions.

The proposed amendment in Article VII, Section E, 

directs the secretary of the trustee board of each 

Institution to give absentee reports to an officer of the 

Executive Board rather than the Executive Director-

Treasurer.

 

Other minor changes, mostly dealing with grammar or 

wording, can be found in the following places in Part I of 

the Bylaws: Article I; Article II, Section E; Article III; 

Article IV, Section D; Article VI, Section C; Article VII, 

Section B; Article VII, Section D, Item 3; Article VII, 

Section D, Item 4; Article VIII.

 

The Bylaws Committee met to discuss the reaction by 

the Convention to the first reading and to consider the 

possibility of other new amendments but decided to 

offer no additional amendments at the 2023 Annual 

Meeting.
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South Carolina Baptist Convention  
Articles of Incorporation

Pursuant to the provisions of the South Carolina Nonprofit Corporation Act, the undersigned corporation,

presently named General Board of South Carolina Baptist Convention, hereby submits its Amended and Restated 

Charter, amending its present charter by deleting it in its entirety. This Amended and Restated Charter

supersedes the corporation’s original charter and all prior amendments thereto.

ARTICLE I
The name of the corporation is South Carolina Baptist Convention. 

ARTICLE II
The corporation is a religious corporation 

ARTICLE III
The corporation has no members. 

ARTICLE IV
The corporation will have messengers (delegates) who shall constitute the Convention in session. The

characteristics, qualifications, rights, limitations, and obligations of messengers, together with provisions for 

calling, noticing, holding, and conducting meetings of messengers, and the carrying on of corporate activities 

during and between meetings, shall be provided for in these Articles and the corporation’s Bylaws.

ARTICLE V
A.    The Convention reserves the right to determine the identity of those persons who participate as

messengers. The Convention shall consist of messengers who are members of Baptist churches in the 

state which are in friendly cooperation with the South Carolina Baptist Convention and evidence their

concern by financial support through the Cooperative Program. Only members of the electing church may 

be seated as messengers from that church.

B.    Churches shall qualify for the seating of messengers as determined by the Bylaws.

ARTICLE VI
The address of the principle office for the corporation is 190 Stoneridge Drive, Columbia, South Carolina 29210-

8239.

ARTICLE VII
The South Carolina Baptist Convention has the sole right to govern itself under the Lordship of Christ and

recognizes the autonomy of churches and other Baptist bodies.
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ARTICLE VIII
The comprehensive purpose of the South Carolina Baptist Convention shall be to serve churches throughout 

the state in efforts to advance the Kingdom of Christ in the world through evangelism, missions, education, 

benevolence, social ministries, public morals, and any other interests in the Kingdom of our Lord which the 

Convention shall undertake.

ARTICLE IX
The South Carolina Baptist Convention approves the Cooperative Program as the basic channel of support 

for our total world mission outreach. The Convention appeals to the churches to contribute through the 

Cooperative Program and to recognize the right and responsibility of the Convention to divide equitably 

Cooperative Program receipts.

ARTICLE X
The corporation shall be governed by a board of directors which shall be the Executive Board as elected by 

the messengers. All corporate powers and affairs of the corporation shall be exercised by, under the

authority of, and under the direction of the Executive Board except to the extent that the Articles of

Incorporation or Bylaws give the messengers the authority to declare the annual meeting in session.

ARTICLE XI
The corporation is nonprofit. The purposes for which the corporation is organized are to operate

exclusively for religious purposes within the meaning of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 

1986, or corresponding section of any future federal tax code. No part of the net earnings of the

corporation shall inure to the benefit of, or be distributable to, its directors,officers, or other private

individuals or persons, except that the corporation shall be authorized and empowered to pay reasonable 

compensation for goods and services rendered and to make payments in furtherance of the purposes set 

forth above. No substantial part of the activities of the corporation shall be the carrying on of propaganda 

or otherwise attempting to influence legislation and the corporation shall not participate in, or intervene in 

(including the publishing or distribution of statements) any political campaign on behalf of or in opposition to 

any candidate for public office. Notwithstanding any other provision of these Articles, the corporation shall 

not carry on any activities not permitted to be carried on by a corporation exempt from federal income tax 

under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, or corresponding section of any future federal 

tax code, or by a corporation, contributions to which are deductible under Section 170(c)(2) of the Internal 

Revenue Code of 1986, or corresponding section of any future federal tax code.

ARTICLE XII
Upon dissolution, after all creditors of the corporation have been paid, the assets of the corporation shall be 

distributed to one (1) or more organizations which qualify as exempt organizations under Section 501(c)(3) 

of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, or corresponding section of any future tax code.

ARTICLE XIII
A.    After first reading to the Convention, amendments offered to this amended and restated Articles 

of Incorporation shall automatically be referred to the Bylaws Committee for study and report at the 

next annual meeting. Study by the committee shall not prevent consideration of the proposed
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amendment by the messengers.

B.    Amendments may be made in these Articles by a vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the messengers

present and voting at any meeting of the Convention, and provided that:

1.  All amendments must be presented before the final session, and

2. The amendment shall have been presented at a previous meeting of the Convention before 

action is taken on it.

3. Any amendment proposed to an amendment that has already had a first reading (at the 

previous meeting of the Convention) must be presented to the Bylaws Committee at least sixty 

(60) days before the annual meeting so that it can be considered by the Bylaws Committee and 

presented in advance to the Convention.

C.    The requirements of Sections A and B above may be waived if the messengers evidence their 

belief that an emergency exists by a vote of three-fourths (3/4) of the messengers present and voting 

and if the substance of the amendment has been presented at least thirty (30) days in advance of the 

Convention to the Bylaws Committee, the Executive Board, and to the Baptist Courier for publication 

in one (1) of the following three (3) ways: (i) in a print edition; (ii) in an electronic edition; or (iii) on its 

website.

D.   Upon approval by the messengers, the amendment to the Articles of Incorporation shall be filed 

according to state law.

South Carolina Baptist  
Convention Bylaws

PART I
The name of this corporation is South Carolina Baptist Convention. The Bylaws, as that term is understood 

by the law, of the South Carolina Baptist Convention shall consist of Bylaws as determined by the
messengers. The Executive Board Standing Rules and Business and Financial Plan are determined by the

Executive Board. No portion of the Bylaws may be inconsistent with the Articles of Incorporation. The 

Business and Financial Plan and the Executive Board Standing Rules shall not be inconsistent with the

Bylaws.

ARTICLE II
Churches shall qualify for the seating of messengers as follows:

A.    One (1) messenger from each church which is in friendly cooperation with this Convention and 

sympathetic with its purposes and work and has, during the fiscal year preceding, been a bona fide 

contributor to the Convention’s work, which must include having made a monetary contribution to the 

Cooperative Program.

B.    One (1) additional messenger for each one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) contributed to the work 

of the Convention through the Cooperative Program, during the fiscal year preceding the annual

meeting.
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C.    Newly organized and constituted churches will be eligible for messengers to the state annual 

meeting in the first year the church becomes a bona fide contributor to the work of the State

Convention. Contributions to the State Convention must be received by October 31 of the first year.

D.   The maximum number of messengers allowed to any church shall be twenty-five (25).

E.    Messengers to the annual meeting shall be registered upon presentation of proper credentials. 

Credentials shall be presented by each messenger, in person at the annual meeting Registration Desk. 

Messengers registered in compliance with the provisions shall constitute the Convention in session.

ARTICLE III
CHURCH MEMBERSHIP OF OFFICERS, BOARDS, APPOINTEES, COMMITTEES
Except as provided in Bylaws Part I, Section D, Article VII, Section D, Item 3, for out- of-state trustees of
institutions, all officers of the Convention, all appointees, and all persons elected to membership of the 

Executive Board, boards of trustees of the institutions, and Convention committees shall be members of 

Baptist churches who are in friendly cooperation with the South Carolina Baptist Convention, and are
sympathetic with its purposes and work, and have during the fiscal year preceding been bona fide

contributors to the Convention’s work, which must include having made a monetary contribution to the

Cooperative Program.

ARTICLE IV
OFFICERS

A.    The officers of the Convention shall be President, President-Elect, Vice President, Registration 

Secretary, and Treasurer (non-voting). The Executive Director-Treasurer of the Convention shall serve 

as Treasurer of the Convention.

B.    In case of the President’s death, resignation, move from the state, or removal from office

pursuant to Bylaws Part I, Article VI, Section B, Item 7, the Vice President shall automatically succeed 

to the office of President, and the President-Elect shall automatically succeed to the office of Vice 

President while continuing to serve as the President-Elect. Should the President-Elect no longer be 

able to fulfill the duties of the office, the office of the President-Elect shall remain vacant until the next 

annual session of the Convention, at which time both a President and a President-Elect will be elected 

pursuant to Bylaws Part II, Article I, Section E. Except as specified above, the Executive Board may fill 

any vacancies which may occur between annual meetings. Removal of an officer prior to the expiration 

of the term of office may occur only by a vote of two- thirds (2/3) of the messengers voting and after 

the officer has been advised of an intent to remove and after the officer has been afforded an

opportunity to be heard.

C.    These officers shall perform the duties described by the Bylaws and by the parliamentary

authority adopted by this Convention and as directed by the Convention.

D.   Officers, other than the President and the Treasurer, shall hold office for one (1) year or until their 
successors are elected and shall not be eligible to succeed themselves until one (1) year has elapsed. 

Any officer filling an unexpired term shall be eligible for election for one (1) full term. The President 

shall hold office for one (1) year and shall be succeeded by the President-Elect as provided in Bylaws 

Part II, Article I, Section E. The President may not serve as both President and President-Elect

simultaneously.

E.    Officers shall begin their terms of service upon adjournment of the annual meeting at which they 

are elected.
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F.    Except as provided in these Bylaws, the President-Elect shall have no duties, powers, or

responsibilities, but shall be included on all correspondence and notices provided to the officers of the 

Convention, and shall have the opportunity to attend and observe, without voting power or authority, 

all meetings that may be attended by the President, whether in person or through some other mode of 

communication.

ARTICLE V
MEETINGS

A.    Annual Meetings

The South Carolina Baptist Convention shall hold its meetings annually at such time and place as it 

may choose.

B.     Special Meetings

In cases of important concern(s), the Executive Board shall instruct the Convention President to call a 

special meeting of the Convention provided two (2) weeks written notice is given through the South 

Carolina Baptist Convention website and the Baptist Courier.

ARTICLE VI
EXECUTIVE BOARD
A.    Authority and Function

1.      The Executive Board shall constitute the board of directors of the South Carolina Baptist

Convention. The work of the Convention, except as otherwise specified,shall be committed to the 

Executive Board of the South Carolina Baptist Convention. The Executive Board shall not have

authority to control the other boards of corporations sponsored by the Convention but shall maintain 

general care and responsibility for the work of these boards in the following manner: study

annually their reports, interpret and apply the rules of the Bylaws of the Convention and the Business 

and Financial Plan of the Executive Board, make recommendations directly to these boards, and make 

whatever recommendations to the Convention concerning them it may deem advisable.

2.      While the messengers and the members of the Executive Board shall mutually respect the rights 

which the Articles of Incorporation and the Bylaws vested in the Convention in session and in the 

Executive Board, the directives to the Executive Board, not contrary to the Articles of Incorporation 

and Bylaws of the Convention and not invasive upon the rights of boards of trustees of the sponsored 

institutions, shall be carried out by the Executive Board.

3.      All actions of the corporation and all decisions concerning the investment, management, and 

utilization of the Executive Board contingent reserve, shall be made by the Executive Board or by

persons pursuant to the authority vested in them by the Executive Board.

4.      It shall also be the responsibility and prerogative of the Executive Board to determine when a 

member of the Executive Board or a trustee of an institution should be removed from office prior to 

the expiration of the member’s or trustee’s term.

a.    If the Executive Board finds that a member or trustee has been absent for three (3)

consecutive meetings of the board, the member or trustee shall be deemed to have resigned, 

and the position shall be declared vacant.

b.    If the Executive Board determines by a vote of at least two-thirds (2/3) of the members of 
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the Executive Board in office that one (1) or more of the cited causes for removal of a member 

of the Executive Board or a trustee of an institution exists (see Bylaws Part I, Article VI, Section 

B, Item 7), the member’s or trustee’s position shall be declared vacant.

c.     Upon the occurrence of either of the two above events, the Executive Board  shall 

advise the member or trustee. The Executive Board shall advise the secretary of the board on 

which the trustee serves of the Executive Board’s action. This notice shall occur not less than 

sixty

(60) days prior to the annual meeting. Unless a written appeal is filed in the office of the

Executive Director-Treasurer within ten (10) days of the effective date of the notice, the position 

held by the member or trustee shall be deemed vacant and the Nominations Committee so

advised. If a timely appeal occurs, the matter shall be reconsidered. The member or trustee shall 

be afforded a hearing before the Executive Board if such a request is contained in the appeal.

d.    If the Executive Board determines by an affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the

members of the Executive Board in office that the absences should not be excused or reaffirms 

its conclusion that the cause for removal does exist, the Executive Board shall recommend to 

the Convention removal of the member or trustee and shall so advise the Nominations

Committee. The Executive Board’s decision on appeal shall be communicated to the member or 

trustee and the secretary of the affected board.

e.    A member or trustee who is removed from office prior to the expiration of the term to which 

he or she has been elected shall not be eligible for election to any board whose members are 

chosen by the Convention for the unexpired term to which the member or trustee had been 

elected.

f.      Notice under this section may be oral unless specifically required to be in writing. Notice 

may be communicated in person, by telephone, fax, email, or by certified mail.

B.    Membership

1.      The membership of the Executive Board shall include two (2) members from each of twelve (12) 

geographic regions as determined by the Bylaws Committee (BylawsPart II, Article III, Section F, Item 

2) with at least one (1) of the two (2) members in each region coming from a church with fewer than 

200 in worship attendance and four (4) at-large members selected by the Nominations Committee. 

Only one (1) person from a church affiliated with the Convention may serve as an elected member of 

the Board at a given time. No region shall have more than three (3) members. Members may come 

from unassigned churches within a given region and not participating in an association, but affiliated 

with the South Carolina Baptist Convention within that region. At the time of the member’s election, 

the member shall have been a member for at least one (1) year of a church in the area of the region 

from which the person is elected. The Convention President is a voting member of the Executive Board 

completing a twenty-nine (29) member Board. Membership of the Executive Board shall also include 

the following non-voting ex officio members: Convention officers, the state president of the Woman’s 

Missionary Union, and the state president of the Baptist Collegiate Ministries. No member of the

Executive Board, except ex officio members, shall serve simultaneously on a board of trustees of a 

South Carolina Baptist Convention-sponsored institution.

2.      The Executive Director-Treasurer of the Executive Board, who also serves as Treasurer of the 

Convention, shall serve as an ex officio, non-voting member of the Executive Board, and aid by

furnishing information, printed material, and needed guidance for the work of the Executive Board.
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3.      The elected members of the Executive Board shall be divided into two (2) groupings: one (1) 

group comprised of ordained church employees, and one (1) group comprised of others. No more than 

eighty (80) percent of the members of the Board shall be drawn from either grouping. The Board will 

include, within the two (2) groupings, persons with business expertise, women, and ethnically diverse 

people to provide a capable and inclusive membership. Only one (1) person from an affiliated church 

may serve as an elected member of the Board at a given time. At the time of the member’s election, 

the member shall have been a member for at least one (1) year of a church in the region from which 

the person is elected.

4.      The term of office of elected members of the Executive Board shall be four (4) years. Terms 

commence January 1 following election by the messengers. Members of the Board shall not succeed 

themselves, except in the case of the Convention President serving one (1) year or a member who has 

first been elected to fill less than one-half (1/2) of an unexpired term. The terms of approximately one-

fourth (1/4) of the membership of the Board shall expire annually. One (1) year shall elapse before a 

member may be returned to the Executive Board or be elected to another board of the Convention.

5. No member of the Executive Board, except ex officio members, shall have any official connection 
with any of the institutions of the Convention, nor shall the member be an employee of the 

Convention, or an institution of the Convention, or an association.
6.      Any member of the Executive Board who moves church membership to another region in the 

state shall remain on the Board until the Convention fills that vacancy. Any member of the Board who 

becomes a member of a church in another state shall thereby terminate membership on the Board. 

Any vacancy occurring on the Board shall be filled for the remainder of the term by the Convention’s 

nominating and election process. The Board may temporarily fill the vacancy pending the Convention’s 

election.

7.      The Convention may remove an elected member of the Executive Board prior to the expiration of 

the term for which the member has been elected, upon the recommendation of the Executive Board, 

by a vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the messengers voting. Removal may occur only upon the

Convention’s finding that removal of the member is in the best interest of the convention and one (1) 

or more of the following causes for removal are deemed in the judgment of the Convention to exist: 

breach of trust, neglect of duty, physical or mental incapacity of the member; conduct by the member 

which is deemed by the Convention to be immoral, fraudulent, or dishonest; or the member’s engaging 

in a conflict of interest transaction.

C.    Organization Documents, Officers, and Committees

The Executive Board shall govern itself by the election of such officers and committees, and by the adoption 

of the Executive Board Standing Rules and such other rules, and the procedures of that the Executive Board 
deems desirable. The Executive Board shall adopt a Business and Financial Plan.

D.   Convention Employees

1.      Executive  Director-Treasurer

a.    The Executive Director-Treasurer shall be nominated by the Board and elected by the 

messengers for an indefinite term. When a vacancy occurs, nominations from the floor shall be 

allowed. The Executive Board is empowered to manage and terminate the Executive

Director-Treasurer.

b.    The Executive Director-Treasurer shall be the chief executive officer supervising and

coordinating the work of all the employees of the Convention through the administrative staff. 
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The Executive Director-Treasurer shall, as Treasurer of the Convention, authenticate records of 

the corporation.

2.      Other Employees

The Executive Director-Treasurer shall be solely authorized to employ, manage, and terminate all

Convention staff.

ARTICLE VII
INSTITUTIONS
A.    Purposes

The Convention shall sponsor institutions for the accomplishment of the purposes of the Convention and 

shall elect the members of the boards of trustees (directors) to which the governance of these institutions 

shall be committed in accordance with their charters.

B.     Identification of Sponsored Institutions

The following are the institutions sponsored pursuant to the Convention’s Bylaws: Anderson University,

Baptist Courier, Baptist Foundation of South Carolina, Charleston Southern University, Connie Maxwell

Children’s Home Ministries, North Greenville University, and South Carolina Baptist Ministries for the Aging, 
Inc.

C.     Changes Regarding Sponsored Institutions

1.      A motion made to the Convention to dissolve or substantially alter the relationship between the 
Convention and a sponsored institution or to add a sponsored institution may be made by the

Executive Board. Any such motion not originating in the Executive Board shall be referred to the

Executive Board for study and a recommendation to the following Convention. If the motion is in the 
nature of or contains an amendment to the Bylaws, the motion shall be considered in keeping with 
the amendment provisions of these Bylaws. A majority two-thirds (2/3) of those voting is needed 
to dissolve or substantially alter the relationship between the Convention and that institution.
2.      A request by the board of trustees of an institution to dissolve or substantially alter the
relationship between the Convention and that institution shall be conveyed in writing to the Executive 

Board. The Executive Board shall submit the institution request, along with the Board recommendation, 

and call for a vote by the messengers at the annual meeting. A majority two-thirds (2/3) of those 
voting is needed to dissolve or substantially alter the relationship between the Convention and that 
institution.

D.    Terms of Trustees’ Service

1.      Trustees shall be elected to a term of five (5) years, except trustees being elected to complete 

an unexpired term. One-fifth (1/5) of the trustees shall retire from each board each year. Board

members shall not be eligible to succeed themselves or be elected to any other board until one (1) 

year has elapsed, except in the case of a board member who has first been elected to fill less than 

one-half (1/2) of an unexpired term. Terms commence January 1 following election by the Convention.

2.      No person shall serve on more than one (1) board of trustees at the same time. A Person who is 

an employee of or who has an official connection with an institution of South Carolina Baptist

Convention or the Executive Board, except officers of the Convention, may not serve as a member of a 

board of trustees of an institution sponsored by the Convention.

3.      At least four-fifths (4/5) of the trustees of each institution must be South Carolina residents 

who are members of a South Carolina churches in friendly cooperation with the Convention. and the 
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trustee affirms the Baptist Faith and Message 2000 as provided in Bylaws Part II, Article III, Section 
B, Item
4.d.ii. Up to one-fifth (1/5) of the trustees of each institution may be nonresidents of South Carolina 
provided they are members of churches in friendly cooperation with the Southern Baptist

Convention. and the All trustees must affirms the Baptist Faith and Message 2000 and meet other 
criteria as provided in Bylaws Part II, Article III, Section C B, Item 4.d.ii. The date for determining 
whether a trustee is an in-state or out-of-state trustee shall be the date of his or her election by the 

Convention. However, if an in-state trustee ceases to be a South Carolina resident during his or her 

term of office, and thereby causes more than one-fifth (1/5) of the trustees of the affected institution 

to be out-of-state trustees, then the Convention may, by a two-thirds (2/3) vote, terminate the

trustee’s membership on the institution’s board.

4.      The elected membership of the Board of Trustees shall be divided into two (2) groupings: one (1) 

group comprised of ordained ministers church employees,and one (1) group comprised of others. No 
more than eighty (80) percent of the members of the Board shall be drawn from either grouping. The 

Board will include,within the two (2) groupings, persons with business expertise, women, and

ethnically diverse people for the purpose of providing a capable and inclusive membership. Only one 
(1) person from an affiliated church may serve as an elected member of the Board at a given time. 
At the time of the member’s election, the member shall have been a member for at least one (1) year 
of a church in the area of the association from which the person is elected.

E.     Trustee Attendance

The Secretary of each institution shall report to an officer of the Executive Board the Executive
Director-Treasurer those trustees who are absent for three (3) consecutive meetings of the board.
F.     Articles of Incorporation

All proposed Articles of Incorporation, or changes or amendments to Articles of Incorporation of institutions 

sponsored by the Convention under these Bylaws, and of a subsidiary corporation created by a sponsored 

institution, shall be submitted by the institution to the Convention or the Executive Board, according to the 

criteria set forth below in Section G, Item 6, for approval before they become effective.

G.    Contents of Articles of Incorporation

The Articles of Incorporation of an institution sponsored by the Convention under these Bylaws shall contain 

the following provisions:

1.      The board of directors (trustees), consisting of (a specific number of) persons, a number

sanctioned by the South Carolina Baptist Convention, shall be elected by the South Carolina Baptist 

Convention in session.

2.      Trustees shall be elected for terms of five (5) years. Trustees’ terms shall be staggered.

3.      South Carolina Baptist Convention may remove trustees prior to the expiration of the term of the 

trustees’ election upon the recommendation of the Convention’s Executive Board, by a vote of two-

thirds (2/3) of the messengers voting. Removal may occur only upon the Convention’s finding that 

removal of the trustee is in the best interest of the corporation and one (1) or more of the following 

causes for removal are deemed in the judgment of the Convention to exist: breach of trust, neglect 

of duty, physical or mental incapacity of the trustee; conduct by the trustee which is deemed by the 

Convention to be immoral, fraudulent or dishonest; the trustee’s engaging in a conflict of interest 

transaction.

4.      Vacancies in the board of trustees may be filled temporarily by the Executive Board pending the 
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filling of the vacancy for the unexpired term by the South Carolina Baptist Convention.

5.      The trustees may adopt Bylaws consistent with the Articles of Incorporation.

6.      Any proposed amendment to the Articles of Incorporation must be approved in writing by the 

Executive Board of South Carolina Baptist Convention or by South Carolina Baptist Convention. Any 

amendment to the Articles of Incorporation that would change the relationship of the institution with 

the South Carolina Baptist Convention must be approved by messengers at the annual meeting.

7.      Any merger shall require the consent of the South Carolina Baptist Convention.

8.      Before the corporation may sell, lease, exchange, or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all 

of its property other than in the usual and regular course of its activities, the permission of the South 

Carolina Baptist Convention must be secured.

9.      Dissolution of the corporation may occur only with the permission of the South Carolina Baptist 

Convention, and upon dissolution, the assets of the corporation shall pass to South Carolina Baptist 

Convention if at that time the Convention is a nonprofit corporation within the meaning of 501(c)(3) of 

the Internal Revenue Code or corresponding section of any future federal tax code. If the Convention 

is not a nonprofit corporation, then the assets of the corporation shall be distributed to one (1) or more 

nonprofit organizations selected by the Convention.

10.   The corporation is a religious nonprofit corporation.

11.   The Articles shall contain language appropriate for a corporation exempt from federal taxation 

under 501(c)(3) or a successor section of the Internal Revenue Code.

ARTICLE VIII
GIFTS AND LEGACIES
The Convention shall receive contributions, legacies, and bequests for the several objects which it fosters. 

All properly designated gifts for South Carolina Baptist Convention and Southern Baptist Convention causes 
shall be applied to the objects as specified by the donor. When any contribution or bequest is made without 
designation, the same shall be applied to the Cooperative Program. The Baptist Foundation of South

Carolina is the institution designated for the management of trust funds.

ARTICLE IX
SUPREME AUTHORITY
The Holy Bible shall be the supreme and final authority for all of the activities of the Convention and for all 

decisions that are made by or on behalf of the Convention.

ARTICLE X
STATEMENT OF FAITH
While the Holy Bible shall be the supreme and final authority, the Baptist Faith and Message 2000 shall be 

the Convention’s statement of faith.

ARTICLE XI
PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY
The rules contained in the latest edition of Robert’s Rules of Order, Newly Revised shall govern the

Convention in all cases to which they are applicable and in which they are not inconsistent with the Articles 

of Incorporation or these Bylaws and/or any special rules of order the Convention may adopt.
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ARTICLE XII
AMENDMENTS

A.    After a first reading to the Convention, amendments offered to Part I of the Bylaws shall

automatically be referred to the Bylaws Committee for study and report at the next annual or special 

meeting of the Convention. Study by the committee shall not prevent consideration of the proposed 

amendment by the Convention.

B.     Voting

1.      Amendments may be made to these Bylaws, Part I, by a vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the 

messengers present and voting at any meeting of the Convention, provided that:

a.     Amendments must be presented before the final session, and

b.     The amendment shall have been presented at the previous annual or special meeting of 

the Convention before action is taken on it.

c.     Any amendment proposed to an amendment that has already had a first reading (at the 
previous meeting of the Convention) must be presented to the Bylaws Committee at least 
sixty (60) days before the annual meeting so that it can be considered by the Bylaws
Committee and presented in advance to the Convention.

2.      The requirements of Section B, Item 1 (a and b) above may be waived if the messengers 

evidence their belief that an emergency exists by a vote of three-fourths (3/4) of the

messengers present and voting, and if the substance of the amendment has been presented 

at least thirty (30) days in advance of the Convention to the Bylaws Committee, the Executive 

Board, and to the Baptist Courier for publication in one (1) of the following three (3) ways: (i) in a 

print edition; (ii) in an electronic edition; or (iii) on its website.

 

Bylaws Part I last amended November 9, 2021
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Christian Life and Public 
Affairs
Mark Krieger, Chair 
Daniel McGaha, Vice-Chair

The Christian Life and Public Affairs Committee, along with the Office of Public Policy, keeps pastors and leaders 

informed about key pieces of legislation and activity associated with the South Carolina State House through Action 

Alerts and the Office of Public Policy Newsletter.  

 

This committee addresses moral, social, and cultural trends in the Palmetto State. Committee members work closely 

with the Office of Public Policy to educate, inform, and engage the public on current issues and pending legislation 

that affects families and churches. This committee meets formally four or five times throughout the year to stay 

abreast of current issues and develop action plans.

 

An annual highlight is the announcement of the three committee awards. The E. A. McDowell Award recognizes an 

individual who exemplifies Christian action in the public arena—politics, government, or community action. 

Additionally, the committee recognizes one church in our Convention that demonstrates a similar commitment to 

social and moral concerns by conferring the Impact Your World Award. Lastly, the Public Service Award 

recognizes a public official who has gone above and beyond in representing Christian ideals through their role in the 

public square.

The 2023 recipients are:

E. A. McDowell Award
Dr. Gene Fant, President - North Greenville University                         

Impact Your World Award                
Joel Ainsworth, Pastor - The Church at Cane Bay 

Will Oswald, Pastor - The Church at Cane Bay

Public Service Award
Leon Lott, Sheriff - Richland County Sheriff’s Office

W. H. “Skip” Holbrook, Chief - City of Columbia Police Department 

Mark Keel, Chief - South Carolina Law Enforcement Division

C. N. Williamson, Commander - South Carolina Highway Patrol

                                 

The CLPAC works in cooperation with the SCBaptist Office of Public Policy, which is under the direction of Dr. Tony 

Beam. Dr. Beam works with committee members to draft pertinent resolution proposals that assist him in presenting 

a Baptist point of view at the State House. Members of the committee are grateful for the opportunity to serve South 

Carolina Baptists.

Mark Krieger, Chair 

Danie McGaha, Vice-Chair

Chad Connelly 

Rod Elliot

Eddie Hill

Alex Sands

Terrye Seckinger

Tommy Shelley
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Committee on Committees
Cory Horton, Chair
Chuck Sprouse, Vice-Chair

The Committee on Committees is selected by the outgoing president from the previous year. The Bylaws stipulate 

the makeup of this group, which comes from all sizes of churches. This committee accepts nominations to fill  

vacancies on all Standing Committees of the Convention. The length of service varies on these committees, but all 

terms begin on January 1, 2024.

2023 Committee on Committees

Cory Horton, Chair

Chuck Sprouse, Vice-Chair

Phillip Beacham

Kyle Caudell

Terry Corder

Michael Crawford

Nathan Dye

Ken Frederick

Pat Gillen

Clark McCrary

Mike McMinn

Anna Richardson

Arnaldo Silva

Chris Spires

Dale Wood

Nominations to Fill 2024 Standing Committee Vacancies

*Laity

#Filling an Unexpired Term

Committee Nominee Church, Association Term Expires
Bylaws

(3-year term)

Bobby James

Cedar Creek, Kershaw

12/31/2026

Sean McElrath

North First, Orangeburg-Calhoun

12/31/2026

Greg Somers

Berea First, Three Rivers

12/31/2026

Christian Life & Public Affairs (3-year 

term)

Brandon Blair

Langston, Waccamaw

12/31/2026

*Linda Hite

Red Bank, Lexington

12/31/2026

Jeremy Ussery

Timrod, Kershaw

12/31/2026

Enrollment & Credentials (1-year 

term)

*Harriet Johnson

Columbia First, Columbia Metro

12/31/2024

*Cotton Kirkland

Columbia First, Columbia Metro

12/31/2024

*Dee Kirkland

Columbia First, Columbia Metro

12/31/2024
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*Sharon Price

Columbia First, Columbia Metro

12/31/2024

*Kathy Spires

Columbia First, Columbia Metro

12/31/2024

*Randy Spires

Columbia First, Columbia Metro

12/31/2024

History

(3-year term)

Joey Farrington

Whitefield, Palmetto

12/31/2026

#Brad Ramey

White Plains, Palmetto

12/31/2024

*Becky Slayton

Southside, Spartanburg

12/31/2026

Nominations

(3-year term)

Adrian Allen

Lamar First, Welsh Neck 

Region 9

12/31/2026

Jon Bell

Eastview, York

Region 5

12/31/2026

*Zeke Benjamin

Mountville, Laurens

Region 5

12/31/2026

Mark Bishop

Landrum First, Spartanburg

Region 4

12/31/2026

Kirk Carlisle

New Calvary, Santee

Region 11

12/31/2026

Drew Gunter

New Prospect, Saluda

Region 1

12/31/2026

Michael How

Ninety Six First, Lakelands

Region 6

12/31/2026

Greg Hyler

North Myrtle Beach First, Waccamaw

Region 12

12/31/2026

Johnny McDaniel

Greenwood, Florence

Region 11

12/31/2026
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Woody Oliver

Okatee, Savannah River

Region 10

12/31/2026

Alex Smith

Taylors First, Three Rivers

Region 3

12/31/2026

#J.D. Wilson

Mt. Zion, Chester

Region 7

12/31/2024

Resolutions

(3-year term)

Darrell Boyleston

Bull Swamp, Orangeburg-Calhoun

12/31/2026

Daniel Dickard

Shandon, Columbia Metro

12/31/2026
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History Committee
Paul Noe, Chair
Greg Nix, Vice-Chair

History is “HIS” story. The South Carolina Baptist Convention has a providential and vivid history that began in 1821. 

The History Committee has been entrusted with the task of promoting and preserving the history of the South 

Carolina Baptist Convention, its Associations, and its churches. 

 

A major historical event took place for South Carolina Baptists on March 20, 2023, during a special called meeting of 

the South Carolina Baptist Convention. The meeting was held at Shandon Baptist Church in Columbia. Dr. Tony Wolfe 

was called as the Executive Director-Treasure of the South Carolina Baptist Convention. Dr. Wolfe’s call begins a new 

chapter of history for South Carolina Baptists. 

 

We are very excited about our partnership with North Greenville University. During the annual meeting last 

November (November 15, 2022), the Convention voted to relocate the archives that are presently housed at the 

Convention Building in Columbia to North Greenville University. This will allow for a special area where the archives 

can be displayed and utilized by students, scholars, historians, and churches for research and general awareness. 

The archives will be preserved and maintained with dignity, honor, and professionalism. Details are still being 

formulated and will be reported to the Convention at a later date. 

 

Anna Wilson-Stillwell, Historian and Archivist for the South Carolina Baptist Convention, is an invaluable resource 

for the History Committee and South Carolina Baptists. With her assistance, our committee continues to seek ways 

to encourage local associations and churches to compile and conserve their histories. One way is through printed 

resources available through Anna and our Convention that provide suggestions and guidelines for associations and 

churches to preserve their personal histories through a history room, display area, or history booklet, among other 

ideas. 

 

We are grateful and blessed to serve South Carolina Baptists on this very important committee. 

Paul Noe, Chair

Carol Bryan

Walter Johnson

Greg Nix, Vice-Chair 

H. E. Barkley
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Nominations Committee
Lisa Willard, Chair
Clay Smith, Vice-Chair

The Nominations Committee is comprised of two members from each of the 12 geographic regions. Their work is 

invaluable in choosing knowledgeable people to conduct the work of the Convention and our Ministry Partners. We 

are grateful for each committee member and appreciate the time they invested in naming these candidates for 

election to the 2024 boards.

Executive Board members serve a four-year tenure unless fulfilling an unexpired term. The number of members of 

the Executive Board is in transition as the 2021 Bylaws amendments allow natural attrition to bring the size down to 

29 members (including the Convention President as a voting member of the Board).

Trustees serve a five-year term unless they are filling an unexpired term. All terms begin on January 1, 2024.
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Nominations Committee

Ministry Partners
Ministry Partner   Nominee Name, Church, Association  Term Expires
Anderson University   Wes Brashier, Scenic Hills, Unassigned   12/31/2028

Anderson University   *Hugh Burgess, Welcome, Saluda   12/31/2028

Anderson University    Jay McSwain, First Redeemer, Cumming, Georgia  12/31/2028

Anderson University    Condy Richardson, Fountain Inn First, Greenville  12/31/2028

Anderson University    Cliff Satterwhite, Mt. Airy, Piedmont   12/31/2028

Charleston Southern University  *Ryan Ashley,Millbrook, Aiken    12/31/2028

Charleston Southern University  *Larry Driggers, Highland Park, Charleston  12/31/2028

Charleston Southern University  *Rick Redden, Church at Lifepark, Charleston  12/31/2028

Charleston Southern University  *Tim Whitfield, Grace on the Ashley, Charleston  12/31/2028

Charleston Southern University   Bobby Wood, Redemption Church, Ogden, Utah  12/31/2028

North Greenville University  Daniel Dickard, Shandon, Columbia Metro  12/31/2028

North Greenville University   Marcus Hayes, Crossroads, The Woodlands, Texas 12/31/2028

North Greenville University  *Michael Lord, Church at Lifepark, Charleston  12/31/2028

North Greenville University  *Lenna Smith, Ebenezer Welcome, Three Rivers  12/31/2028

North Greenville University  *David Wilcox, Biltmore, Asheville, North Carolina  12/31/2028

Connie Maxwell Children’s Ministries David Bennett, Lake Murray, Lexington   12/31/2028

Connie Maxwell Children’s Ministries *Terry Lee, Cedar Creek, Aiken    12/31/2028

Connie Maxwell Children’s Ministries  Clark McCrary, St. Matthews First, Orangeburg-Calhoun 12/31/2028

Connie Maxwell Children’s Ministries *Jerry Rentz, North Side, Lakelands   12/31/2028

Connie Maxwell Children’s Ministries *Eddy Thomas, Church at Lifepark, Charleston  12/31/2028

Connie Maxwell Children’s Ministries #*Sarah Traynum, Columbia First, Columbia Metro 12/31/2027

Baptist Courier    Travis Kerns, Greer First, Three Rivers   12/31/2028

Baptist Courier     Michael Wren, Hephzibah Baptist, Georgia  12/31/2028

Baptist Foundation of South Carolina Marshall Blalock, Charleston First, Charleston  12/31/2028

Baptist Foundation of South Carolina *Jim DuBose, Springfield First, Edisto   12/31/2028

Baptist Foundation of South Carolina *Homer Reeves, Brushy Creek, Greenville   12/31/2028

Executive Board   
Region     Nominee Name, Church, Association  Term Expires
1     *April Burgess, Earle’s Grove, Beaverdam   12/31/2027

5     Don Peake, Welcome, Laurens    12/31/2027

10 (AT-LARGE)    Tommy Meador, Northwood, Charleston   12/31/2027

*Indicates Laity

#Indicates Filling an Unexpired Term

Nominations Committee

SCBaptist Ministry of Aging  *Lyn Burkholder, Columbia First, Columbia Metro  12/31/2028

SCBaptist Ministry of Aging       *Randy Moody, Taylors First, Three Rivers                      12/31/2028

SCBaptist Ministry of Aging        *Brian Morris, Shandon, Columbia Metro                        12/31/2028

*Indicates Laity | #Indicates Filling an Unexpired Term
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Nominations Committee

Ministry Partners
Ministry Partner   Nominee Name, Church, Association  Term Expires
Anderson University   Wes Brashier, Scenic Hills, Unassigned   12/31/2028

Anderson University   *Hugh Burgess, Welcome, Saluda   12/31/2028

Anderson University    Jay McSwain, First Redeemer, Cumming, Georgia  12/31/2028

Anderson University    Condy Richardson, Fountain Inn First, Greenville  12/31/2028

Anderson University    Cliff Satterwhite, Mt. Airy, Piedmont   12/31/2028

Charleston Southern University  *Ryan Ashley,Millbrook, Aiken    12/31/2028

Charleston Southern University  *Larry Driggers, Highland Park, Charleston  12/31/2028

Charleston Southern University  *Rick Redden, Church at Lifepark, Charleston  12/31/2028

Charleston Southern University  *Tim Whitfield, Grace on the Ashley, Charleston  12/31/2028

Charleston Southern University   Bobby Wood, Redemption Church, Ogden, Utah  12/31/2028

North Greenville University  Daniel Dickard, Shandon, Columbia Metro  12/31/2028

North Greenville University   Marcus Hayes, Crossroads, The Woodlands, Texas 12/31/2028

North Greenville University  *Michael Lord, Church at Lifepark, Charleston  12/31/2028

North Greenville University  *Lenna Smith, Ebenezer Welcome, Three Rivers  12/31/2028

North Greenville University  *David Wilcox, Biltmore, Asheville, North Carolina  12/31/2028

Connie Maxwell Children’s Ministries David Bennett, Lake Murray, Lexington   12/31/2028

Connie Maxwell Children’s Ministries *Terry Lee, Cedar Creek, Aiken    12/31/2028

Connie Maxwell Children’s Ministries  Clark McCrary, St. Matthews First, Orangeburg-Calhoun 12/31/2028

Connie Maxwell Children’s Ministries *Jerry Rentz, North Side, Lakelands   12/31/2028

Connie Maxwell Children’s Ministries *Eddy Thomas, Church at Lifepark, Charleston  12/31/2028

Connie Maxwell Children’s Ministries #*Sarah Traynum, Columbia First, Columbia Metro 12/31/2027

Baptist Courier    Travis Kerns, Greer First, Three Rivers   12/31/2028

Baptist Courier     Michael Wren, Hephzibah Baptist, Georgia  12/31/2028

Baptist Foundation of South Carolina Marshall Blalock, Charleston First, Charleston  12/31/2028

Baptist Foundation of South Carolina *Jim DuBose, Springfield First, Edisto   12/31/2028

Baptist Foundation of South Carolina *Homer Reeves, Brushy Creek, Greenville   12/31/2028

Executive Board   
Region     Nominee Name, Church, Association  Term Expires
1     *April Burgess, Earle’s Grove, Beaverdam   12/31/2027

5     Don Peake, Welcome, Laurens    12/31/2027

10 (AT-LARGE)    Tommy Meador, Northwood, Charleston   12/31/2027

*Indicates Laity

#Indicates Filling an Unexpired Term

*Ryan Ashley, Millbrook, Aiken
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2024 Committee on Committees
In accordance with the South Carolina Baptist Convention Bylaws, Part II, Article II, Convention President Albert 

Allen has selected his Committee on Committees.

The Committee consists of at least one (1) from churches with five hundred (500) in worship or more, at least three 

(3) persons from churches with two hundred to four hundred and ninety-nine (200–499) in worship; at least three 

(3) from churches with fewer than two hundred (200) in worship and at least one (1) from churches that are new 

works (church plants) that have been in existence between one (1) and five (5) years. Worship attendance shall be 

based on the latest published Annual Church Profile Report.

The President is strongly encouraged to seek people who accurately reflect the ethnic diversity and regional 

representation of the South Carolina Baptist Convention.

The Committee on Committees nominates the Standing Committee members and, unless otherwise provided for, 

any special committees authorized by the Convention.

 

 

 

Nominee Name  Church   Association
Mrs. Miriam Beacham  Columbia First   Columbia Metro 

Rev. Walter Belton   Radiant Church   Charleston 

Rev. Jason Burley   Newberry First    Reedy River 

Rev. Tim Coker    Central     Welsh Neck 

Rev. Jamie Duncan   East Pickens    Pickens-12 Mile 

Rev. Dwight Easler   Corinth     Broad River 

Rev. Rod Elliott    Cheraw First    Chesterfield 

Rev. RaShan Frost   The Bridge Church   Charleston 

Rev. Ian Geimer    Kingstree First    Williamsburg 

Rev. John Goudelock   Living Water    Waccamaw 

Rev. Zack Little    Southside    Lakelands 

Dr. Clark McCrary   St. Matthews First   Orangeburg-Calhoun 

Mrs. Ruth McWhite   Rocky Creek    Greenville 

Rev. Jim Oliver    Bethlehem    Spartanburg 

Mrs. Cindy Sanders   Barnwell First    Barnwell Bamberg

South Side
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South Carolina WMU
Auxiliary to the South Carolina Baptist Convention
Jess Archer, Executive Director-Treasurer

Serving as South Carolina Woman’s Missionary Union’s newest Executive Director-Treasurer has been a joy and

honor. Time flies by, and we never want to miss what God is doing. We have learned more about the state whenever 

we get in our vehicles and travel to a city near you! God has been gracious to us, and we want to join Him at work!

MAKING DISCIPLES OF JESUS WHO LIVE ON MISSION
 

That’s the WMU mandate. At South Carolina WMU, we focus on making disciples of Jesus who live on mission. This 

mandate holds believers in Jesus accountable to the command Jesus speaks about in the Great Commission. As we 

go, we make disciples (or followers) of Jesus who live for Christ and make Him known.

 

We carry out the WMU mandate by focusing on four vital missional characteristics:

 • Learn about Missions 

 • Pray for Missions

 • Support Missions

 • Do Missions and Tell People about Jesus

 

A key phrase in the fourth WMU mandate is to tell people about Jesus. We know that to make disciples of Jesus who 

live on mission, we must tell people about Jesus.

 

Our WMU mandate reminds us that as we go about our day, we should tell people about Jesus and share the Gospel. 

We want to come alongside you and help you with this. Believers should be looking to share the Gospel with all

people, especially those seeking to know more. 

 

Missions Cooperation:
Over $1,990,500 was given to the Janie Chapman Offering for State Missions, Missions Education, and Kingdom

ADVANCE in South Carolina for 2022! Janie Chapman is 3.4% over $66,068 the previous year.

 

For the twenty-fifth year in a row, SC WMU sent a check for over a million dollars to the South Carolina Baptist

Convention to support the Convention initiatives of Serve, Share, Send, Start, and Strengthen and associational

ministries. Thank you so much for giving to this offering.

Missions Awareness
With society becoming less churched and more people following the “you do you” or a “live your truth” culture, we 

must navigate new ways of being on mission and sharing with others who we are as a Woman’s Missionary Union 

organization. We must speak a language that people can understand. With God as our leader, He will show us how to 

navigate to reach a growing population of post-modern people.
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New goals that our staff is focusing on are:

 1. Having specific conversations with the South Carolina Baptist Convention team leaders about
 partnership. We want to lock arms with mission-minded partners in our field of work. 
 

 2. Connecting with more churches already on board with Missions Discipleship and WMU. Find key   

 leaders in the church. We want to encourage and challenge mission leadership to focus on the four

 missional characteristics as God leads them.

 

 3. Expanding our social media presence. The United States has 302.35 million social media users as of   

 2023. That means 90% of our country’s population uses social media actively. Facebook is the most popular  

 social media platform in the United States, with 74.2% of adults using it. This statistic shows that we must   

 increase our social media presence.

 

 4. Conveying the value and vision of WMU. We are finding ways to engage with people by sharing with   

 others about the ministry of the Woman’s Missionary Union. 

 

Missions Sending:
Kenna Boyle grew up in Columbia, South Carolina, attending First Baptist Church of Columbia. The church and her 

parents encouraged and taught a missions lifestyle using a Girls in Action (GA) and Acteens curriculum. Kenna was 

also involved in music at her church, including choir, leading worship, and music camps. Her love for music grew as 

she discovered world music. She attended Camp La Vida as a camper and worked on staff for three years. Camp 

La Vida opened doors for her to meet missionaries from all over the world. All these things ultimately impacted her 

desire to pursue missions. When she was about nine years old, she did a small research project on the culture of 

Botswana, Africa. Thus began the dream of traveling to Botswana, meeting the people who lived there, learning 

their culture, and sharing the Gospel. The miraculous opportunity to serve the people of Botswana soon as an

International Mission Board Journeyman is one that she attributes to the Lord with thankfulness.

Missions Camping:
Over 315 churches from six states sent 1,400 students to Camp La Vida in 2023! Over 70 students decided to follow 

Christ, and over 30 were called to a life of mission service. Please pray for us as we continue serving and honoring 

the Lord.
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Baptist Foundation of 
South Carolina
Nathan McCarthy, President & CEO

Whatever you do, do it from the heart, as something done for the Lord…  Colossians 3:23a

The Baptist Foundation of South Carolina (BFSC) serves churches by providing financial and giving services to help 

God’s people fund the Great Commission. We believe that God’s commission is fulfilled through His church, and our 

aim is to serve His church through a Kingdom mindset. Whether speaking to a church committee, conducting a 

legacy program, opening a new fund, or providing account statements, our desire is that we serve the church well.

We focus on three major areas of service:

Ministry Investments - Since this time last year, more dollars have been invested through BFSC than in any 
single year in our history. The Kingdom Fund, our signature investment, performed extremely well in a volatile 2022 

market and did so with much less risk than traditional investments. Our simple investment solutions are designed 

with a church mindset that focuses on strategy and protection of assets. More importantly, we actively seek out 

investments that honor the Lord through choosing investments with a focus on Kingdom growth and human 

flourishing.

Seed Financial Services, Inc. - In 2022, BFSC established a subsidiary organization, Seed Financial Services 
Inc. (SFS) to provide another avenue for serving churches. SFS offers church lending services to help churches with 

financing needs for building and renovation projects. SFS also offers fixed-rate investment options for churches and 

individuals who want to invest in church growth. After much prayer, preparation, and legal filings, SFS received 

approval by the State Attorney General’s office as of November 2022. As of this report, a total of five loans have 

been completed, with a sixth in process. Our fixed investments, Certificates of Growth (COGs), are gaining 

momentum as institutions, churches, and individuals are investing in Kingdom growth.

SFS is, first and foremost, a ministry arm of BFSC. Through capital campaign and church lending expertise, BFSC 

and SFS provide advice and guidance to churches who are preparing for future growth. SFS comes alongside 

churches early in the process to help them prepare for major projects with the goal of maintaining church health and 

financial stability as they proceed.

Generosity and Legacy - BFSC continues to focus on Christian stewardship in life and death. We provide 
generosity and legacy planning programs in churches, and we provide personal legacy planning services. During this 

past year, estate gifts that were initiated through BFSC’s ministry have provided over $5 million outright and over $3 

million in endowed gifts for Baptist ministries in our state. Along with these, countless men and women have learned 

about the joy of generosity and have made plans to give today and from Heaven! What an impact these individuals 

will have on future generations who will have the opportunity to experience the love of Christ through their giving! 
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Major accomplishments since the last report include:
• Our Kingdom Fund continues to be a top investment (better returns with less risk) when compared to 

nationwide institutional investments of $1 billion or less. Not only does BFSC screen out investments such as 

alcohol, tobacco, abortion, and pornography, but we actively seek to invest in high-quality, solid investments 

that support Kingdom initiatives and human flourishing!

• Completing all legal and operational tasks to fully manage Seed Financial Services, Inc. This included the 

installation of software, development of policies, procedures, and forms, training, marketing, and processing 

almost $8 million in loans.

• Distributing almost $4 million to primarily Baptist ministries through endowment and investment income in our 

fiscal year ending 2022. Since its inception, the Foundation has distributed over $95 million to Kingdom 

ministries—from churches in South Carolina to ministries and missions projects around the world.

• Continuing to tithe our own ministry resources to provide grants to help fund evangelistic projects. In 2022, 

grants totaling $86,494 were awarded. Since 2002, endowed gifts and the BFSC tithe have resulted in almost 

$1,370,000 in ministry grants to churches and ministries.

• Continuing to assist small churches and other ministries with online giving platforms, including custom pages. 

Since March 2020, we have established 100 online giving platforms to assist churches, associations, and other 

ministries. In 2022, over $1 million in online transactions were processed through these platforms. 

• Providing customized estate planning for families or individuals who desire to leave a portion of their estates to 

Kingdom ministries. To date, almost 260 families have completed estate plans with anticipated future gifts of 

over $80 million for primarily Baptist ministries. 

• Since 2016, the Foundation has operated with NO Cooperative Program financial assistance. BFSC has 

distributed to ministries a return of $9.88 for every Cooperative Program dollar we have received since 

inception.

• As of July 31, 2023, the Foundation manages over $173.3 million in assets for the benefit of churches, 

associations, and Baptist institutions across our state, nation, and world.

BFSC continues to seek ways to resource and engage churches and ministries in the areas of God-honoring 

investments, church-centered lending, and biblical stewardship and generosity.

We humbly request prayer for the following needs:
• Guidance towards godly men and women who have a heart for Jesus and the skill sets needed to serve 

alongside us on our staff and Board of Trustees

• Humble discernment that will help us effectively teach and serve churches

• Wisdom in making investment and business decisions that will bring honor and glory to God

• Yearning in the hearts of God’s people to prayerfully steward their resources as an act of worship
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Connie Maxwell
Children’s Ministries
Danny Nicholson, President

In 1924, A.T. Jamison, President of Connie Maxwell for 46 years, penned these words that are relevant today:

 

“The beginning was in the days of small things and it may be, who knows, that even the accomplishments of the 

present are small compared to the great future that lies ahead.”

 

As Debra and I celebrate our sixth anniversary at Connie Maxwell and near completion of our third year of  

“A Decade of Dreams” strategic plan, it is with a great sense of enthusiasm and momentum that we report on  

progress made towards our future dreams.

 

We launched the silent phase of our “For the Dreams of Children” Campaign by recruiting the leadership to 

implement a fundraising effort focused on garnering the financial support needed to accomplish our strategic 

objectives. Chairman Doug Kauffmann and ten other steering committee members have set a high bar by making 

significant leadership gifts and creating momentum toward this defining effort.

 

Alongside the campaign, we continue to make significant progress in the development of the inner workings of the 

Healing Center, the first steps toward defining Maxwell Farms as an SC destination and continuing the process of 

establishing a new campus in Charleston. The completion of these strategic priorities in future years will fulfill our 

vision of becoming “a national leader in healing and ministry for vulnerable children and families.”

 

Additionally, progress is being made towards other various “Decade of Dreams” goals and objectives. Our 

Residential Care served 220 children and families, and we continued to double-staff cottages to strengthen security, 

safety, and the presence of Christian couples as an example of whole and healing families. Foster Care continues 

to grow and flourish with 39 homes licensed, serving 85 children. Family Care provided services for eight families, 

which consisted of eight single parents and their 16 children. Crisis Care has served 35 children and families, and 

the Higher Education/Independent Living program served 18 children this year.

 

As a part of the “Decade of Dreams,” a growing sense of momentum continues to bolster our annual giving and 

volunteer service levels. This year, “Giving Tuesday” secured $510,677.77, representing 616 gifts. Besides financial 

support, Connie Maxwell has welcomed 785 individuals, 27 church groups, and four civic groups to serve on 

campus. These volunteers have completed over 6,660 hours of volunteer activities. Additionally, 18,000 participated 

in Connie Maxwell Christmas, and 3,500 participants came to our new Corn Maze event at Maxwell Farms, which 

raised over $25,000.

 

As always, we want to thank each South Carolina Baptist for your prayers and support. 

 

As I conclude this report, I am reminded of the scripture in Isaiah 60:22:

“The smallest family will become a thousand people, and the tiniest group will become a mighty nation. At the right 

time, I, the Lord, will make it happen.”
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South Carolina Baptist 
Ministries of Aging
Tom Turner, President & CEO

SCBMA takes pride in knowing that for over 60 years, we have provided a safe place for over 350 seniors and their

families to celebrate life and continue to serve the Lord. Not only do we touch the lives of our residents and their 

families, but we minister, in the name of Jesus, to 350 employees and their families daily. 

As we look back, this past year has been a challenging one. Higher prices for basic services like food, water,

electricity, and supplies, coupled with shortages nationwide in the healthcare work force, has caused us to be very 

creative in the ways we minister to our seniors every day. God, though, was faithful and met every need at just the 

right time. While all financial gifts are impactful to an organization, legacy gifts help to further ministry today and 

tomorrow. SCBMA’s leadership and trustees continue to marvel at how timely God brought those gifts to us this past 

year. Because of these gifts and the ongoing support of our residents, their families, and the South Carolina Baptist 

Convention, I am pleased to share several recent accomplishments: 

• In the summer of 2022, SCBMA launched their in-home initiative, Senior Smart Solutions. The goal of this 

initiative is to provide smart and safe solutions to help seniors remain in their own environments for as long as 

they can. 

• In January 2021, our campus in Darlington, Bethea Retirement Community, opened their new 88-bed, 

state-of-the-art nursing and rehabilitation facility. Since then, it has consistently maintained a 90% or above 

occupancy, thereby continuing to provide needed healthcare services to Pee Dee residents.  

• Since launching our Bethea and Martha Franks’ Helping Seniors Thrive Giving Society in 2016, we have raised 

over $936,440 in donations and pledges, added 73 members to the Society, and have grown the total donor 

support to 620 patrons. Faithful supporters of this campaign enable us to continue to provide financial 

assistance to those who need it for residential living expenses each month. 

• Our 2022 Mother’s Day Offering campaign raised $113,353 with 37 new churches or individuals participating. 

This scholarship provides financial assistance for pastors, missionaries, and their spouses who live in our 

communities. 

Our Trustees recognize that there will be many issues to manage in the years ahead—a growing senior population,

maintaining a capable and caring workforce, and assuring our communities are prepared to meet the challenges of a 

competitive and ever-evolving retirement community industry. Our faith and confidence remain in the Lord as we

continue to provide professional services for seniors with compassionate care in the name of Jesus Christ so that all 

we serve may thrive. The future looks to be exciting for SCBMA and South Carolina Baptists! 

 
We ask for your prayers as we:  
• Continue to meet the healthcare needs of the people in the Pee Dee;  

• Continue to reach people for the Lord by reorganizing our Martha Franks Billy Graham Call Center in Laurens; 

and 

• Expand our ministry throughout South Carolina with our Senior Smart Solutions initiative.

David Brower once said, “We don’t inherit the earth from our ancestors. We borrow it from our children.” We have all 

heard it said that you cannot out-give God. SCBMA has certainly seen that evidenced this past year as South 

Carolina Baptists have faithfully given and supported our mission.
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Anderson University
Evans Whitaker, President

For God and humanity, Anderson University (AU) seeks to be an innovative, entrepreneurial,  

premier comprehensive university where liberal arts, professional studies, and graduate studies thrive within an 

 uplifting, welcoming, and distinctively Christian community of diverse faculty, staff, and students dedicated to  

intellectually rigorous learning, a caring and hospitable campus culture, and personal transformation.

Student Testimonies 
Allow me to share two brief stories about students as evidence of why SCBaptists support Anderson University.

 

Carrie is a sophomore nursing major from the Upstate who loves the Lord and dedicates her life to helping others. 

Her family has few financial resources. She has an academic scholarship, but she also works 40 hours a week at a 

retail shop in Anderson to pay for college. She’s a member of a local Baptist church. She’s in a God-honoring 

relationship with her boyfriend, John, an AU engineering major, also a Baptist from North Carolina, who works all 

summer long for college tuition. Carrie and John take accountability and responsibility seriously. AU nurtures their 

faith through weekly chapel, Bible courses, and an intentionally conservative Christian campus culture. At a time 

when so many young people are “taken in” by “woke” propaganda, Carrie and John represent hope for their 

generation. They believe that to follow Jesus, adhering to traditional moral values, and doing hard work is the best 

way to live their lives. They are champions for Christ. They are Kingdom builders.

 

Jackson is a senior criminal justice/homeland security major from Yorba Linda, California, and a member of the AU 

baseball team. This summer, he served on the Fellowship of Christian Athletes (FCA) Shepherds baseball ministry 

team, coaching 1,000 FCA campers ages 5 to 13, conducting Bible studies, leading campers to Christ, and working 

in a Mexican orphanage. He says he uses baseball for the glory of God, and his faith is the most important aspect of 

his life. Jackson and his teammates led 196 kids to accept Christ as Lord and Savior. He loves the fact that Heaven 

rejoices each time one of his campers gives his life to Christ! He says that AU has helped him grow and mature in his 

faith in countless ways. Jackson is a champion for Christ, a Kingdom builder.

 

There will be no end to the impact that will be made by the lives and ministry of Carrie, John, and Jackson in this life 

and for all eternity.

2023 Highlights
A total of 950+ new students joined the Anderson University family this Fall. 

Anderson University continues to be recognized as one of the best universities by nationwide publications. Its latest 

rankings and distinctions include:

• Best Student Engagement: Ranked 25th among the top 800 universities in the United States (Wall Street 

Journal/ Times Higher Education, 2022)

• Among the “Best Southeastern” universities (The Princeton Review, 2023)

• U.S. News & World Report, 2023 ranks Anderson University:

* “Best First-Year Experience” among all colleges and universities;

* #2 in SC for Online Graduate Nursing programs;
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* #3 in SC for Online Master of Business Administration (MBA);

* #6 in SC for Online Bachelor Programs

• South Carolina’s Business Journals’ Top Workplace Survey recognized Anderson University as #7 among the 

state’s large employers

• Clamp Divinity School initiated a new Ph.D. in Preaching degree.

• In August, the 45,000-square-foot Field House opened, featuring spaces for Trojan Football, Sports Medicine, 

and classrooms.

• New campus housing for another 196 students has increased the residential population to approximately 2,100 

students.

• This summer, the AU Campus hosted more than 7,500 young people across various spiritual, academic, and ath-

letic camps and at Palmetto Boys State. 

• Clayton King is our primary evangelistic partner, along with our many ministerial graduates and our Convention. 

During Clayton King Ministry’s Crossroad Summer Camps, more than 1,300 high school and junior high students 

made professions of faith, 550 decisions to pursue leadership in ministry were made, and nearly $40,000 was 

raised for missions. Praise God for saving these souls and for empowering so many to do the Lord’s work around 

the world.

• We welcomed Ms. Maddy Woodford as Director of Women’s Ministries and Community Missions. She recently 

earned a master’s degree from Baylor University and is a member of Highland Baptist Church in Waco, TX.

• The College of Engineering is moving into its new 40,000-square-foot home in 2023-24. We also welcome Dr. 

Lisa Zidek as our new Dean. She has decades of experience, most recently as Associate Dean at a public 

university and a full professor of bioengineering.

 

Prayer Requests
• Please join us in continuing to pray for our students and God’s will for their lives.

• Pray for AU’s campus ministries to be strong instruments for worshiping, evangelizing, equipping, and serving.

• Pray for the mission and health of faithful Christian institutions, like Anderson University, as we face increased 

cultural and social pressure against our Christ-centered values and practice. Pray that religious freedom will be 

respected and upheld. 

• Please pray for our campus as we continue our ambitious capital projects campaign.

• Pray as we develop our new five-year strategic plan over the next few months.
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Charleston Southern
University
B. Keith Faulkner, President

During this past year, CSU challenged students from all backgrounds to deepen their Christian faith and explore 

God’s purpose for their lives. Students were equipped with a biblical worldview, encouraged to follow Christ’s

example by serving others (Matthew 20:28), and sent on mission (Matthew 28:19-20).

 

Highlights:
• We praise God that 29 CSU students received Jesus Christ as their Lord and Savior during formal campus 

ministries events this year. We thank the Lord as well that 65 students served in the United States and 

overseas. 

• The North American Mission Board recognized South Carolina for sending the largest number of summer 

missionaries through its GenSend initiative. In fact, CSU sent more students on mission (21 of 51 from the state) 

than any other university in South Carolina. 

• Our weekly college night of worship averaged 212, and our women’s discipleship ministry included 100 females 

in one-on-one discipleship relationships.

• We are thankful that 397 decisions were made at SummerSalt on CSU’s campus (88 salvations, 151 repentance, 

115 calls to ministry, and 43 other decisions).

• CSU students, faculty, and staff set the national collegiate record for Operation Christmas Child for the fourth 

straight year, packing 13,019 shoeboxes in 2022.

• CSU awarded 711 academic degrees in 2022-2023. Aeronautics celebrated its first graduate from the 

Professional Pilot program with the coveted Restricted-Airline Transport License certification. Four students 

earned the first BS in engineering degree and obtained a 100% pass rate on the Fundamentals of Engineering 

Exam.

• U.S. News & World Report ranked CSU #39 nationally in its Best Online Undergraduate Bachelor’s Programs 

category and #22 for Veterans (the top-ranked university in South Carolina).

• In collaboration with the Enrollment team, the College of Christian Studies has awarded 12 of 25 available Call 

to Ministry scholarships thus far, which grants incoming freshmen pursuing a Christian Studies major with 

nearly $70,000 in scholarships over four years. 

• CSU Athletics placed third in the Big South’s Sasser Cup competition (best all-around Athletics program) for the 

second year in a row. On the academic front, our student-athletes earned a cumulative 3.23 GPA, the third 

consecutive year above 3.0, and the highest cumulative athletic GPA on record in university history.

• CSU dedicated our new intramural field complex in March 2023. Intramural entrance improvements (fire pits, 

grill station, sidewalk replacement, and renovation of existing deck) are also planned. 

Prayer Request: 
• Please pray for CSU as we seek to do the Lord’s work for His glory. 

• Pray for the Lord to bring revival in and beyond our campus.
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North Greenville
University
Gene Fant, President

Motto: “Christ makes the difference!”
Mission: Equipping transformational leaders for church & society
Core Values:
• Christ-Centered

• Biblically Faithful

• Academically Excellent

• Mission-Focused

Theme Word: CELEBRATE!
 

In the academic year 2022-2023, the university’s theme word was “Celebrate!”, marking the conclusion of the fifth 

year of the Fant administration, the conclusion of the pandemic’s primary effects on higher education, and the 

launch of many new initiatives. Together, we claimed for the entire year Psalm 68:3b-4a: “Sing to God! Sing praises 

to his name. Exalt him who rides on the clouds—his name is the LORD—and celebrate before him.”

 

The university sought to emphasize the “unity” in community as we fully operationalized alignment between student 

life, residence life, and campus ministries. In the new configuration, these important co-curricular aspects of the 

Tigerville experience were merged in order to emphasize our mission of equipping transformational leaders for the 

church and society. Students have already reported a strong positive response to the initiatives, which are

dramatically impacting annual retention rates and student satisfaction markers. This emphasis also underscores the 

overall exaltation of Christ over all areas of the university and the Lordship of Christ over all aspects of life: heart, 

soul, mind, and strength (Mark 12:30-31).

 

We continued our longstanding tradition of emphasizing spiritual formation through our chapel and campus

ministries programs. Chapel is the largest course on campus, and we emphasize that while it is an important part 

of the university experience, it is not a substitute for worship and service in a local body of believers. As students 

report for the year, we provide a “Church Fair,” where about a hundred local churches interact with students and 

provide them with an overview of the churches’ opportunities for service. The first chapel of the year is called 

“Convocation” and emphasizes President Fant’s overview of the year, with this year’s address titled, “The Purpose of 

the Christian University,” an explication of Genesis 2 and Colossians 1:16-18. The Ignite Conference was led by Rob 

Wilton, a North American Mission Board church planter in Pittsburgh, PA. President Jamie Dew of the New Orleans 

Baptist Theological Seminary spoke a few weeks later on the power and importance of the resurrection; this was 

followed by Clayton King presenting a bold Gospel proclamation that saw over 40 students respond to the invitation 

to follow Christ in that single event. The Global Impact Conference assembles an entire cadre of missionaries on 

campus, connecting with our many students who experience a call to missions and outreach. In the spring, our 

Biblical Worldview Emphasis included dynamic challenges for students to understand God’s call over their lives, no 

matter their academic disciplines. 
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Finally, our Read-Through-The-Bible emphasis brings oral reading of the Scriptures to campus, with the entire Bible 

read cover-to-cover, Genesis through Revelation, emphasizing our dedication to being Biblically Faithful.

This year, we continued the full launch of the College of Business & Entrepreneurship (COBE), which began before 

the pandemic and was somewhat paused during the pandemic. The COBE strongly emphasizes marketplace 

ministry, helping students to see that God provides resources for stewardship as a part of His plan for human 

flourishing. As a part of this, we began the largest capital project of the Fant administration, the complete 

renovation of Donnan Hall, which will be a $10 million project. Built in 1956, Donnan has served the university well 

as its signature building, but it has not been fully renovated since its construction. We anticipate rededicating the 

facility in January 2024, with the campus executive offices relocated to the building’s second story and the COBE 

filling the rest of the facility. This “Class A” facility for “Class A” business students will prepare them for “Class A” 

career opportunities.

 

The university finished the year with a strong balance sheet that continues to reflect no long-term interest-bearing 

debt and a tuition / fee schedule that is among the lowest in the region for private universities. We continue to be 

certified / members in both Excellence in Giving (https://excellenceingiving.com) and the Evangelical Council for 

Financial Accountability (https://www.ecfa.org). NGU is one of the only universities in the nation with both

certifications, which evaluate our financial operations and commitment to transparency in philanthropy. 

 

NGU continues to provide leaders who serve our churches and denominational structures. This year, an unusual

number of leaders were named:

• Alumnus Daniel Dickard served as President of the SBC Pastor’s Conference

• Alumnus Alex Sands served as 2nd Vice President of the Southern Baptist Convention

• NGU Provost Nathan Finn served as Recording Secretary of the SBC

• Alumnus David Sons served on the Executive Committee of the SBC

• Alumnus Josh Powell served as chair of the Board of Trustees of the Southern Baptist Theological Seminary

• Alumnus Marshall Blalock chairs the Task Force related to Sexual Abuse 

• Alumnus Michael Pardue served as President of the North Carolina Baptist Convention

Many others served on other committees and in other roles at the national and state levels.

 

North Greenville University values the support, accountability, and prayers of the South Carolina Baptist Convention 

and looks forward to being partners in God’s redemptive work in our state, our nation, and our world!

 

Prayer Requests
• Pray for us to be able to cultivate a Christ-first community where students, faculty, and staff have genuine 

relationships that encourage one another in their intellectual and spiritual formation.

• Pray that our faculty and staff will be God-honoring mentors and disciple-makers who can discern God’s calling 

for each of our students.

• Pray for our students to discover the personal confidence that the Gospel can bring to those who seek to exalt 

the name of Christ. 

• Pray that God will allow us to continue to be an irenic place of solace for those in our surrounding communities, 

as they see our love for Him and our fellow persons lived out in our hearts, minds, souls, and strength. 
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The Baptist 
Courier
Jeff Robinson, President

On February 17th, the trustee board of The Baptist Courier unanimously elected Dr. Jeff Robinson as the new 

president and editor-in-chief of the historic monthly magazine and publishing company. Dr. Robinson replaced Rudy 

Gray, who retired after ten years as president and editor and many years in pastoral ministry in the Upstate of South 

Carolina. In his acceptance address, Jeff set forth a four-pronged vision for his editorship, encompassed in four key 

words: “Inform and Instruct, Edify and Glorify.” Jeff began work March 1st and has been busy laying the foundation 

for a new direction he believes will help the Courier remain strong in years ahead.  Here’s what’s in the works:

A major redesign of the monthly magazine 
With graphics and aesthetics constantly changing, it’s important to keep up the look of the magazine to make it 

attractive to all kinds of readers. The Courier will be undergoing its first facelift in years at the outset of 2024.

A redirecting of Courier Publishing 
The excellently conceived Courier Publishing will continue to offer a publishing venue for new authors in Southern 

Baptist churches across the Palmetto State under the Palmetto Collective imprint. However, a new line will also 

be making its debut at the 2024 Annual Meeting of the Southern Baptist Convention. Labeled 1821 in honor of 

the beginning of the South Carolina Baptist Convention, this side of Courier Publishing will offer books on the 

Bible, theology, church history, biography, local church ministry, and more by established authors from our state 

and beyond. Three books are currently in the works to debut at the convention, including a new one by President 

Robinson. The goal with this side is to publish independently but also to develop publishing partnerships with 

better-known evangelical publishers, publishing books under the 1821 imprint. 

New overhauled websites for both the Courier and Courier Publishing 
Our goal is to eventually publish several articles per day, at least five days a week, with news and features from 

around our state and beyond. We want to drive traffic to the website and seek to have it become the Courier’s 

central resource. The new websites will include videos on news and video interviews along with author interviews 

and stories about new books as they arrive from Courier Publishing. 

A thematic approach to the monthly magazine 
Since the Courier only publishes its magazine once a month, we want to make it a trusted resource and give it 

a longer shelf life for pastors and laypeople alike. The magazine will still include news and features as before, 

but some months will also examine in greater depth an important topic with several articles. For example, the 

September issue looked at confessionalism, a burning topic among Southern Baptists today. In October, we devoted 

space to helping churches love their pastors better in celebration of Pastor Appreciation Month. 

Continuing Courier Tours 
We are continuing to offer Courier Tours, with one tour last summer to Midwest Amish country with stops at the Ark 

Encounter and other places in Ohio and Kentucky. 

Biweekly episodes of Courier Conversations 
We are continuing to record biweekly episodes of Courier Conversations, the Courier’s podcast. Recent interviews 

have included Three Rivers leader Travis Kerns on engaging cults and SCBaptist Executive Director-Treasurer Dr. 

Tony Wolfe on how Christians who disagree can do so lovingly while cooperating in Kingdom work for God’s glory. 
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